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FORM NO. CAA. 2

[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) and rule 6 and 7)]
BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
C.A. (CAA)/2926/MB/2019

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013;

AND
IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION
230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND
IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN
ARSHIYA LIMITED AND ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS.

Arshiya Limited, a Company incorporated under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered
office at 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-
Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
Maharashtra, India.

--First Applicant Company/ Demerged Company

NOTICE GIVEN PURSUANT TO THE ORDER DATED 26™ FEBRUARY, 2021 OF THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI
BENCH

To,
The all the Secured Creditors (Including Debenture Holders) of Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company”)

TAKE NOTICE that by an order dated 26t February, 2021 (“Order”), the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal has
directed a meeting to be held of the of secured creditors (Including Debenture Holders) of Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company”)
for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification, the arrangement proposed to be made
between the Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company”) and their
respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In pursuance of the Order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Secured Creditors (Including
Debenture Holders) of the said company will be held at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra on Saturday, the 20t March, 2021 at 11:00 A.M at which time and place the said Secured
Creditors (Including Debenture Holders) are requested to attend.

At the meeting, following resolution will be considered and if thought fit, be passed, with or without modification(s):

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, applicable rules and regulations made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), the Securities and Exchange Board of India’s Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10,
2017 (as amended from time to time), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (as may be amended from time to time), No objection letter / observation letters dated 15th Day of July, 2019 and
12th Day of July, 2019 issued by the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and the BSE Limited, respectively, relevant provisions of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to sanction/approval(s) of National Company Law Tribunal
(“NCLT”), and such other approvals, sanctions and permissions of other regulatory or government bodies /tribunals or institutions as
may be applicable, and subject to such conditions and modification(s) as may be prescribed or imposed by NCLT or by any regulatory
or other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the
Company/Demerged Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”), the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited




(“Demerged Company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company”)(presently wholly owned subsidiary company of
the Demerged Company) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”), which provides for the demerger of the “Domestic
Business Undertaking” (as defined in the Scheme) and transfer and vesting thereof into the Resulting Company, a copy of which is enclosed
with this notice and placed before this meeting and initialled by the Chairperson or the Alternate Chairperson of the meeting, as the case
may be, for the purpose of identification, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute
discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and
to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by NCLT while
sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities under law, including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments
in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper, and to settle any
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in respect of aforesaid without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the
equity shareholders of Company or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly
by the authority of this resolution.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the provisions of Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Demerged
Company has provided the facility of voting by ballot/polling paper at the venue of the meeting to be held on Saturday, 20th March,
2021.

NCLT has appointed Mr. Ajay Shankarlal Mittal, Managing Director of the Demerged Company as the Chairperson and failing him, Mr.
Ashishkumar Bairagra, Independent Director of the Demerged Company as the Alternate Chairperson of the said Meeting, including
for any adjournment or adjournments thereof.

Copies of the Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 230, 232 and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6
of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with the enclosures as indicated in the Index,
can be obtained free of charge at the registered office of the Demerged Company at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra India or at the office of its Authorised Representative, Aabid &
Co, Company Secretaries, at 302, 3rd Floor, 22 Business Point, Opposite Andheri Subway, Next to DCB Bank, S. V. Road, Andheri (W),
Mumbai - 400 058, Maharashtra, India.

The above mentioned Scheme, if approved by the meeting, will be subject to subsequent approval of the NCLT.

A copy of the Explanatory Statement, the said Composite Scheme of Arrangement and other enclosures including the Form of Proxy and
Attendance Slip are enclosed and form part of the notice and can be obtained free of charge from the registered office of the Company.

For Arshiya Limited.

Sd/-
Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Date: 26t February, 2021
Place: Mumbai

Registered Office: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3,
Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400018




Notes:

1.

Only Secured Creditors (Including Debenture Holders) of the Applicant Company may attend and vote (either in person or
by proxy) at the Secured Creditors (Including Debenture Holders) meeting. The representative of body corporate which is a
Secured Creditor (Including Debenture Holders) of the applicant Company may attend and vote at Secured Creditors (Including
Debenture Holders) Meeting provided a certified true copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing body
of the body corporate is deposited at the registered office of the applicant company not less than 48 (forty eight) hours before
the time fixed for the aforesaid meetings.

All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed.

The Statement under Sections 230(3), 232(1) & (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 is annexed hereto.

The notice, Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying documents, is being sent to the Secured Creditors as on 31st
December, 2020 in electronic form or physical mode by the permitted mode.

The quorum of the meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Company shall be Five (5). In case the quorum as noted above for the
Meeting is not complete at the scheduled time, then the meeting shall be adjourned by half an hour, and thereafter, the person
present at the meeting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.

In terms of the directions contained in the Order and in compliance with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules 2014, the advertisement will be published in ‘Active Times’ in English language and translation thereofin
‘Mumbai Lakshadeep’ in Marathi Language, circulated in the State of Maharashtra indicating the day, date, place and time of the
meeting and stating that the copies of the Scheme can be obtained free of charge on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays) during 10:00 AM to 5:00 PM from the registered office of the Company.

NCLT has appointed, Mr. Mohammed Akram, (ACS 22589 C.P. NO. 9411), Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the voting at the venue of the Meeting.

The Scrutinizer, shall on conclusion of the Meeting, unblock the votes in the presence of at least 2 (two) witnesses not in
employment of the Company. Thereafter, the Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman of the Meeting, after completion
of scrutiny of votes cast by the creditors of the Company through Ballot. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes shall
be final. The results of the voting on the resolution(s) set out in the Notice will be announced on or before 22nd March,2021. The
results, together with the Scrutinizer’s report, will be displayed on the notice board of the Company at its registered office, on the
website of the Company viz. www.arshiyalimited.com, besides being communicated to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited.
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FORM NO. CAA. 2

[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) and rule 6 and 7)]
BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
C.A. (CAA)/ 2926/MB/2019
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013;
AND
IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 230
TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND
IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN
ARSHIYA LIMITED AND ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

Arshiya Limited, a company incorporated under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered
office At 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-
Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
Maharashtra India

----First Applicant Company/ Demerged Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230, 232 AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OFTHE
COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 (“EXPLANATORY STATEMENT")

1.

Pursuant to the order dated 26t February, 2021 (“Order”), passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench (the “NCLT”) in Company Application Number 2926 of 2019 filed jointly by Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company”) and
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company”), a meeting of the Secured Creditors (Including Debenture holders)
of the Demerged Company, is being convened and is to be held at the registered office of the Resulting Company at 302, Ceejay
House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018 Maharashtra India at 11:00 A.M.
Saturday, 20th March, 2021, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the
proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement between the joint applicants (thatis, the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company) and their respective shareholders and creditors (hereinafter referred to as the “Scheme”) under Sections 230 to 232
read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”). A copy of the Scheme setting out
details of parties involved in the proposed Scheme, Appointed Date, Effective Date, Share Entitlement Ratio etc., is enclosed as
Annexure A.

Capitalised terms used herein but not defined shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Scheme, unless otherwise stated.

In terms of the Order, quorum for the said meeting shall be 5 members. In case the quorum as noted above for the meeting is not
complete at the scheduled time, then the meeting shall be adjourned by half an hour and thereafter, the person(s) present at the
meeting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum. For the purposes of quorum, valid proxies will also be considered, if the proxy
in the prescribed form, duly signed by the persons entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is filed with the registered office
of the Demerged Company at least 48 hours before the meeting. Further, in terms of the Order, the NCLT has appointed Mr. Ajay
Shankarlal Mittal, Managing Director of the Demerged Company as the Chairperson and failing him, Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra,
Independent Director of the Demerged Company as the Alternate Chairperson of the said meeting, including for any adjournment
or adjournments thereof.

This Explanatory Statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230(3), 232(1) & (2) and 102 of the Act read with Rule
6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

Arshiya Limited, (herein after called the “The Demerged Company” or “AL”) is a Listed Public Company, originally incorporated
under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 on 3rd July, 1981 as a Private Company under the name and style of IID Forgings
Private Limited. In the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 24th day of August, 1982 consent of the Members of the Company
has been accorded to change the name of the Company pursuant to conversion from Private Company to Public Company under
the name and style of “IID Forgings Limited”. Further in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 4th day of May, 2006




consent of the Members of the Company has been accorded to change the name of the Company under the name and style
“Arshiya Technologies International Limited”. Further the Company on 28th day of September, 2007 has changed the name
to “Arshiya International Limited”. Further the Company on 5th day of September, 2013 the Company has changed the name
under the name and style of “Arshiya Limited”.

The Registered Office, email and website address of the Demerged Company is 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 Maharashtra India, Email:info@arshiyalimited.comand Website: www.
arshiyalimited.com, respectively.

The main objects for which the Company was formed as set out in the Memorandum of Association are as following:

I.  To carry on all or any of the business of designing, manufacturing, developing, improving, hiring, repairing, buying, selling
and dealing in forgings and castings of ferrous and non-ferrous materials and in any weight for any industry whatsoever,
including chilled and malleable castings, special alloy castings. Gunmetal castings, steel castings, gunmetal, copper, brass
and aluminium castings and foundry work.

II. To carry on the business of providing integrated supply chain and demand chain management services which interalia
includes services of air and ocean freight forwarding, cargo consolidation, project logistics air, sea and surface transportation,
shipping, chartering of vessels, warehousing, development and providing hubbing facilities at ports and strategic locations
development and providing port facilities, container freight stations, inventory and order management services, storage,
drumming, consignments at customs, development and providing import and export documentation services, distribution
services, analysis and consulting services to enhance supply chain/demand chain logistics, providing information technology
services to logistics and value added activities and for the aforesaid purposes to acquire or develop software solutions,
acquire on ownership or lease airplanes and ships, trucks, railway wagons and to build or acquire or take on lease tank
farms, warehouses, distriparks, container freight stations or develop infrastructure for above services including knowledge
Centre for imparting educational training for persons to attain, enhance professional competency in global logistics services.

III. To carry on the business of developing, operating and maintaining special economic zones (SEZs)/free trade and
warehouse zones (FTWZs), inland container depots (ICDs), industrial parks, logistic parks, warehouses, infrastructure or
infrastructure projects; and to act as contractors, builders, town planners, estate developers, engineers, land developers,
land consolidators, land scapers, estate agents, immovable property dealers and other allied and/or ancillary activities;
and to acquire, build, operate, buy, sell, lease, sub-lease, long lease, leave and license basis, consolidate, exchange, hire or
otherwise; lands, buildings, immovable property of any tenure or any interest in the same, SEZs, FTWZs, ICD, warehouses,
houses, flats, bungalows, commercial complexes, shopping malls, multiplexes, food courts and other ancillary and/or allied
activities, on the land of the company or other land or any immovable property whether belonging to the company or not;
and to pull down, rebuild, enlarge, alter any other conveniences and to deal with and improve, in India or abroad either by
company or with joint venture or in partnership or on sub-contract basis or otherwise.

IV.  To carry on the business of any type of transport/ logistic services including but not limited to setting up of rail infrastructure
/ network within India and abroad including buy, construct, sale ,operates including movement of containers / goods trains
using any rail network; and also to acquire, procure, obtain, trade, lease/license or otherwise: container trains, rakes,
wagons, boggies; and to create, develop, sale, Purchase, trade or obtain on lease/license basis railway sidings, rail yards,
warehouses required for the business of the company and all allied and ancillary services / products related to that.

V. To carry on the business developing and maintaining container freight stations, warehousing infrastructure and services,
facilities for customs examination or any other regulator/ regulatory authority or department, EDI, empty container yard for
storage of shipping containers and other containers or materials; and to carry out repairs and refurbishment of containers,
truck, cargo and material handling equipment; and to provide transportation, warehousing, IT & IT infrastructure and
services, cold storage and other allied activities; and to provide services of distribution, reverse logistics, forward logistics,
supply chain management, value added services, repair and maintenance, manufacture, transportation, consultancy services;
and also to provide system/ software solutions, data analytics, acquire, take on lease, hire or otherwise, distribution centres,
trucks and material handling equipment as may be necessary to carry on the aforesaid business in India or abroad.

During the last 5 (five) years, there has been no change in the name, however the registered office of the Company was changed
to Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 registered office 29th
September, 2015. Also, the object clause of the Demerged Company was altered by insertion of addition in object clause on 7th
November, 2016 which is as stated in point no. 6 above.

It may be noted that the Demerged Company is a public limited company and its securities are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”).
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9.  The capital structure of the Demerged Company as on March 31, 2018 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

24,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 49,50,00,000
1,10,00,000 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 11,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

22,82,16,776 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up 45,64,33,552

There is no change in the Total Authorised Share Capital of the Company. However on 23rd July, 2019 with the approval of
shareholders the Authorised capital of the Company is re-classified from Rs. 60,50,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Crores Fifty Lakhs only)
comprising of 24,75,00,000 (Twenty-Four Crore Seventy - Five Lakhs only) equity Shares of Rs. 2 (Rupees Two only) each and
1,10,00,000 (One Crore Ten Lakhs only) Zero Percent Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten
only) each to Rs. 60,50,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Crores Fifty Lakhs only) divided into 28,75,00,000 (Twenty - Eight Crores Seventy
Five Lakhs only) Equity Shares of Rs.2 (Rupees Two) each and 30,00,000 (Thirty Lakhs) Zero Percent Optionally Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each.

The capital structure of the Demerged Company as on 26t February, 2021 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

28,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 57,50,00,000
30,00,000 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 3,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

26,22,75,915 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up 52,45,51,830

10. The names and addresses of the Promoters of the Demerged Company is provided below:

NAMES ADDRESS
Ajay S Mittal Mittal Bhavan 2, 3rd Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400026
Archana A Mittal Mittal Bhavan 2, 3rd Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400026

11. The list of directors of the Demerged Company as on 26t February, 2021 along with their names and addresses is provided

below:
List Of Director
SR [ Name Of Director DIN Designation Address
No.
1 | Ajay Shankarlal Mittal 00226355 | Managing Director [Mittal Bhavan 2, 3rd Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai
400026 Maharashtra India
2 | Archana Ajay Mittal 00703208 Joint Managing  |Mittal Bhavan 2, 3rd Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai
Director 400026 Maharashtra India
3 | Ashishkumar Bairagra 00049591 [Independent Director | 44, Sadhana Building, B Road, Churchgate Mumbai

400020 Maharashtra India

4 | Tara Sankar Bhattacharya | 00157305 |IndependentDirector | 8e, B-1, Harbor Heights, N A Sawant Road, Colaba,
Mumbai 400005Maharashtra India

5 | Rishabh Pankaj Shah 00694160 [IndependentDirector | Saranam Building, Block No. 7, 7th Road, Prabhat
Colony, Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400055 Maharashtra
India

6 | Ved Prakash 02988628 |Independent Director |L-1/1, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi - 16.

7 | Manjari Ashok Kacker 06945359 ([Independent Director |B-702, Beaumonde, Appa Saheb Marathe Marg,

Prabhadevi, Mumbai- 400025 , Maharashtra, India

12. Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited, (hereinafter referred to as “The resulting Company” or “ARIL”) is a Public Limited Company
originally incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on 7th April, 2008.




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The Registered Office, email and website address of the Demerged Company is 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 Maharashtra India, Email:info@arshiyalimited.com and Website: www.
arshiyalimited.com respectively.

The main objects for which the resulting Company was formed as set out in the Memorandum of Association are as following:

I.  To carry on the business of setting up of Rail Infrastructure/Network within India and abroad including operations/
movement of Container/Goods Trains using Indian Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain on lease/licence or
otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or Obtain on lease/licence basis Railway Sidings,
Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

II. Tocarryonthebusiness predominantly in the Northern Region of India, of container freight stations which, inter-alia includes
setting up of bonded warehousing infrastructure and services, facilities for customs examination, EDI, empty container yard
for storage of shipping containers, repairs and refurbishment of containers, truck, cargo and material handling equipments,
transportation, non-bonded warehousing, IT & ITES infrastructure and services, warehousing, cold storage and other cargo
related activities.

III. To carry on the business of Transport & Handling of Containers/ Goods/ Network within India and abroad including
operations/movement of Container/Cargo/Goods Trains using India Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain
on lease/licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or obtain on lease/ licence
basis Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

There is no change in the name of the Resulting Company, however the registered office was changed on 27th October, 2015 to
302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 and the objects of the
Resulting Company was altered on 28th July, 2016 and thereafter on 9th March, 2017 by insertion of additional object clause. The
altered object clause of the Company is as stated in point No. 14 above.

It may be noted that the Resulting Company is a public limited company and its securities are not listed on any stock exchange.

The capital structure of the Resulting Company as on the 31st March, 2018 is given below:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

45,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 450,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

42,384,417 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 423,844,170

After March 31, 2018, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Resulting
Company.

The proposed capital structure of the Resulting Company post the completion of demerger will be as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

32,52,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 65,05,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

12,30,22,333 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up 24,60,44,666

The name and address of the Promoter(s) of the Resulting Company is provided below:

NAMES ADDRESS
Arshiya Limited 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018



mailto:info@arshiyalimited.com
http://www/

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

The list of Directors of the Resulting Company is provided below:

List Of Director
SR [ Name Of Director DIN Designation Address
No.
1 | Ashishkumar Bairagra 00049591 Director 44, Sadhana Building, B Road, Churchgate Mumbai 400020
Maharashtra India
2 | Navnit Jugal Kishore 00613576 Director Flat No 114, Aakash Wing, Indraprasth Complex, Satya Nagar,
Choudhary Borivali West, Mumbai 400092 Maharashtra India
3 | Ajay Shankarlal Mittal 00226355 Director Mittal Bhavan 2, 3rd Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400026
Maharashtra India
4 | Rishabh Pankaj Shah 00694160 Director Saranam Building, Block No. 7, 7th Road, Prabhat Colony,
Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400055 Maharashtra India

RELATIONSHIP SUBSISTING BETWEEN PARTIES TO THE SCHEME

The Resulting Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.

BOARD MEETING OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY AND THE RESULTING COMPANY FOR APPROVAL OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme has been unanimously approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company vide resolution passed in the
meeting held on 24th May, 2018. Out of total 6 (Six) Directors of the Demerged Company, 5 (Five) directors were present in the

Meeting, all of whom voted in favour of the resolution.

The details of voting by Directors on the resolution is as under:

NAME OF THE DIRECTORS DESIGNATION VOTED IN FAVOR | VOTED AGAINST | ABSTAINED FROM
VOTING
Ashishkumar Bairagra Independent Director Yes NA NA
Tara Sankar Bhattacharya Independent Director Yes NA NA
Ajay Shankarlal Mittal Managing Director Yes NA NA
Mukesh Kacker Independent Director Yes NA NA
Archana Ajay Mittal Joint -Managing Yes NA NA
Director

The Scheme has been unanimously approved by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company vide resolution passed in the
meeting held on May 24, 2018. Out of total 4 (Four) Directors as on that date, 3(three) Directors of the Resulting Company were
present in the meeting, and voted in favour of the resolution. The details of voting by directors on the resolution is as under:

NAME OF THE DIRECTORS DESIGNATION VOTED IN FAVOR | VOTED AGAINST | ABSTAINED FROM
VOTING
Ashishkumar Bairagra Independent Director Yes NA NA
Navnit Jugal Kishore Choudhary | Director Yes NA NA
Ajay Shankarlal Mittal Director Yes NA NA
DETAILS OF THE SCHEME

The parties to the Scheme are the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company along with their respective shareholders and
creditors.

The “Appointed Date” of the Scheme is April 1, 2019. “Effective Date” means the last of the dates, if applicable, on which the
certified or authenticated copy of the order(s) sanctioning the Scheme passed by the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”)
of Judicature at Mumbali, is filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. This date in only drawn to capture references to all
transactions undertaken between the Appointed Date and date of filing of the NCLT order with Registrar of Companies (“ROC”).
Thus, the same is not to be construed as the effective date for the purpose of Section 232(6) of the Act.
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25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Share Exchange Ratio

The Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two) fully paid-up equity shares of the
Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name appears in the register of members
of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators or the successors-in-title, as the
case may be, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New Equity Shares’).

Rationale for the Scheme and benefits of the Scheme as perceived by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company are:

e  Tointegrate / consolidate its DWA, RAIL, PFT & ICD business into ARIL, which would enable Arshiya to focus solely on FTWZ
Business ;

e To provide more flexibility in terms of creating business synergies in the Resulting Company i.e. ARIL, enable cost savings,
rationalizing capital requirements and optimizing utilization of valuable resources which will enhance management focus
on the different businesses being housed under separate entities, thereby leading to higher operational efficiency;

. To enhance value for the shareholders and allow focused strategy on expansion/ operation of both the FTWZ and the
Domestic Business independently;

e To achieve and fulfill their objectives more efficiently and economically and the same is also in the interest of all the
stakeholders.

Salient Features of the Scheme:

The Scheme provides for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) to the Resulting Company.
There will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in
consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the
Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two) fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged
Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name appears in the register of members of the
Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators or the successors-in-title, as the case
may be, subject to the provisions of Clause 7.4 of the Scheme, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting
Company (‘New Equity Shares’).Further, upon issue of the new equity shares to the Shareholders of the Demerged Company
on the record date, all existing equity shares held by the existing shareholders of the Resulting Company (i.e. not including the
shareholders of the Demerged Company on the record date), shall stand cancelled, without any further act or deed.

The equity shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme in the Resulting Company will be listed with BSE Ltd. and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Details of capital or debt restructuring, if any: Basis the share exchange ratio mentioned above, the shareholders of the Demerged
Company shall be provided with shares of the Resulting Company in the ratio of 2:1 and the shares held by the Demerged Company
in the Resulting Company shall be extinguished.

Amount due to secured creditors as on 31st December, 2020:

CREDITORS NO. OF CREDITORS AMOUNT DUE
Secured Creditors 10 11,59,04,57,000

APPROVALS/ SANCTIONS/NO-OBJECTIONS FROM REGULATORY OR GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY RECEIVED OR PENDING

The BSE Limited was appointed as the designated stock exchange by the Demerged Company for the purpose of co-ordinating
with the SEBI, pursuant to the SEBI Circular.

The Demerged Company received “no adverse observation letter” and “no-objection letter” from BSE and NSE respectively, each
dated 12th Day of July, 2019 and 15th Day of July, 2019 respectively, conveying their “no adverse observations” and “no-objection”
for filing the Scheme with NCLT.

Copies of the aforesaid “no-objection letter” and “no adverse observations letter” of NSE and BSE, respectively, are enclosed as
Annexure B (I) and Annexure B (II).
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32.

33.

34.

As required by the SEBI Circular, the Demerged Company had filed the complaint report with BSE and NSE on. The reportindicated
that the Demerged Company has not received any complaints. A copy of the complaint report submitted by the Demerged
Company to BSE and NSE, dated 17th Day of November, 2018 and 14th Day of May, 2019 is enclosed as Annexure C.

The Demerged Company has also filed the compliance report with BSE and NSE and is enclosed as Annexure D.

Effect of Scheme on various Parties

A.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

None of the Directors and key managerial personnel of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company or their
respective relatives have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent the (i) equity shares held by them in the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company directly or as a nominee; and/or (ii) Director(s) are common director(s) in the
two companies; and/or (iii) the Director(s), key managerial personnel and their respective relatives are the director(s),
partner(s), member(s) and/or beneficiary(ies) of the companies, firms, association of persons, bodies corporates and/or
trust, as the case may be, that hold shares in the Demerged Company/ Resulting Company. There will be no adverse effect of
the Scheme on the directors and key managerial personnel of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company.

Promoters and Non - Promoter equity shareholders of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company

In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company, in their meetings held on May 24, 2018, have adopted a report, inter alia, explaining the effect of the
Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, directors, promoters and non-promoter shareholders.
Copy of the reports adopted by the respective Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are
enclosed as Annexure EI and EII respectively.

Depositors
Neither the Demerged Company nor the Resulting Company have accepted any deposits.
Creditors and Debenture - Holders /Debenture Trustees

The debts pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking are taken over by the Resulting Company. Any charge, security interest,
lien, statutory lien or statutory charge pertaining to any assets of the Demerged Undertaking shall continue to have effect
only on the assets of the Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company and shall cease to have effect on the assets of the
Remaining Business. The debts pertaining to the Remaining Business (as defined in the Scheme) continue to be the debts
or liabilities of the Demerged Company. Accordingly, if any creditor has any charge, security interest, lien, statutory lien
or statutory charge on any of the assets or properties of Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company, such creditor
shall continue to enjoy and hold such charge, lien or security interest upon the properties of Demerged Undertaking in the
Resulting Company.

The rights of the creditors of the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company shall not be affected by the scheme. There
will be no reduction in their claims on account of the Scheme. The creditors will be paid in the ordinary course of the
business as and when their dues are payable. There is no likelihood that the creditors would be prejudiced in any manner as
a result of the Scheme being sanctioned. The Demerged Company or the Resulting Company has not issued any debentures
and accordingly, do not have any debenture holders.

Employees

I.  Onand from the Effective Date, all permanent employees relating to the Demerged Undertaking, as were employed by
the Demerged Company, immediately before such date, shall become the employees of the Resulting Company with the
benefit of continuity of service and without any break or interruption in service. It is clarified that the employees of
the Demerged Undertaking, who become employees of the Resulting Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall continue
to be governed by the same terms of employment as were applicable to them immediately before the demerger. The
Resulting Company undertakes to abide by any agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by the Demerged Company
with any of its respective employees thereof. The Resulting Company further agrees that for the purpose of payment
of any retrenchment compensation, or any other benefits and incentives, if any, such past services with the Demerged
Company shall be taken into account.

II. It is expressly provided that, on the Effective Date, the provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund created
or any other special fund existing for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Company, in relation to the
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35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

1L

Demerged Undertaking shall become the funds of the Resulting Company, for all purposes whatsoever in relation
to the administration or operation of such fund(s) or in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said
fund(s) in accordance with the provisions thereof as per the terms provided in the respective trust deeds, if any, to the
end and intent that all rights, duties, powers and obligations of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking in relation to such fund(s) shall become those of the Resulting Company. These funds shall, subject to the
necessary approvals and permissions and at the discretion of the Resulting Company, either be continued as separate
funds of the Resulting Company for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Undertaking or be transferred to
and merged with other similar funds of the Resulting Company. It is clarified that the services of the employees of
the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall be treated as having been continuous for the
purpose of the said fund(s); and

With effect from the date of filing of this Scheme with the NCLT and up to and including the Effective Date, the Demerged
Company shall not vary or modify the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees, except with the
prior written consent of the Resulting Company.

There are no investigations or proceedings, pending against the Company under the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the directors and KMPs or their respective relatives have any material interest in respect of the Scheme.

A copy of the Scheme has been filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

The following documents will be open for obtaining extract from or for making or obtaining copies of or inspection by the Equity
Shareholders at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company, during 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on all working days (except
Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) upto the date of the Meeting:

a.  Draft of the Scheme which is enclosed as Annexure A.

b.  Copy of the Share Entitlement Ratio Report obtained from ZADN & Associates Chartered Accountants, dated May 24, 2018
which is enclosed as Annexure F.

c.  Statutory Auditor’s certificate in respect of the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme which is enclosed as Annexure

G.

d. The Fairness opinion obtained from the merchant banker which is enclosed herewith as Annexure H.

e.  The audited Accounts of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019
which are enclosed as Annexure I - I and Annexure I - Il respectively.

f.  Copy of the Order of the National Company Law Tribunal pursuant to which the meeting is to be convened which is enclosed
as Annexure J.

The applicable information of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in
Part D of Schedule VIII of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2018 which is enclosed as Annexure-K.

Dissected Financials (List of Assets and Liabilities of Demerged Company which will be transfer to the Resulting Company) is
enclosed herewith as Annexure L.

The Pre - Scheme and proposed Post-Scheme share capital structure of the Resulting Company is enclosed as Annexure M.

Copy of Annual Report of the Demerged & Resulting Companies for the Financial Year 2016-2017,2017-2018,2018-2019.

Contracts or agreements material to the compromise or arrangement - N/A

Any other information or document as the Board believes is necessary - N/A.

It is confirmed that the copy of the Scheme has been filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai by both the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company.

In view of the information provided hereinabove, and the documents attached alongwith this notice and explanatory statement,




the requirement of Section 232(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

47. After the Scheme is approved by the equity shareholders and creditors of the Demerged Company, it will be subject to the

approval/sanction by NCLT.

Date: 26t February, 2021
Place: Mumbai

Registered office: 302, Ceejay House,
Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worlj,
Mumbai- 400018

For Arshiya Limited.

Sd/-
Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting
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1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

Annexure A
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

BETWEEN
ARSHIYA LIMITED
AND
ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER

APPLICABLE PROVISONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

INTRODUCTION

Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Demerged Company” or “Arshiya”), a company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956 (CIN - L93000MH1981PLC024747) and has its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018. Arshiya Limited is listed on the BSE and NSE.

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Resulting Company” or “ARIL”) is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Arshiya Limited. ARIL is a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 (CIN - U93000MH2008PLC180907), and
has its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400
018;

This Scheme of arrangement (“Scheme”), inter alia, provides for demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (hereinafter defined
in Part III) of the Demerged Company and transfer and vesting thereof into the Resulting Company and utilization of securities
premium of the Demerged and Resulting Company (hereinafter defined under Part II) including consequential or related
matters integrally connected therewith.

PREAMBLE

The management of Arshiya Group intends to reorganize its corporate structure spread across various group companies in
order to integrate/ consolidate its operations by housing different businesses into two different entities/ separate verticals.

As part of the aforesaid overall Group reorganization, the management had also filed a separate scheme of amalgamation of two
of Arshiya’s wholly owned subsidiaries, i.e. Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (‘AIDHL’) and Arshiya Transport and
Handling Limited (‘ATHL’) into ARIL (‘merger scheme’) with National Company Law Tribunal and is awaiting its approval. The
appointed date for the said merger scheme is October 1, 2015. Accordingly, this scheme of arrangement is conditional upon the
aforesaid merger scheme becoming effective first. In case the said merger scheme is withdrawn or ARIL ceases to be a wholly
owned subsidiary as on the Record Date (defined hereunder), this Scheme will also be withdrawn.

Further, this Scheme is presented under Sections 230 to 232 read with Sections 66 and 52 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 for demerger of Domestic business (as defined hereinafter) of Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred
to as ‘Arshiya’ or the ‘Demerged Company’) into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘ARIL’ or
‘Resulting Company’) and utilization of securities premium of both the entities.

BACKGROUND AND RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

a. Arshiya, a flagship company of Arshiya Group, is engaged in the business of developing Free Trade Warehousing Zones
(‘FTWZ’) and Domestic Warehousing Areas (‘DWA’) as mentioned below to improve logistics infrastructure in India.

FTWZ Business - FTWZ at Panvel offers over 800,000 Sq. ft. of warehousing space with best in class infrastructure
which is suitable for clients across industries. The facility is well connected to the National and State Highways and
situated only 24 kms from the country’s busiest container port and also close to the proposed International Airport in
Navi Mumbai.




1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

Domestic Business - Domestic Business comprises of Domestic Warehousing activities being carried out by Arshiya at
land admeasuring 43.42 acres of land situated at Khurja (UP) and investments held in the Resulting Company pertaining
to Private Freight Terminal (‘PFT’), Rail Transportation Services (‘RAIL’) businesses being carried in the Resulting
Company and Inland Container Depot (‘ICD’), DWA business being carried in AIDHL.

b. Brief description of the above mentioned business :

PFT: ARIL currently under a PFT license operates Indian Railways traffic business for various customers catering to
bulk goods movement and bagged cargo at sidings specifically earmarked for the same.

RAIL: ARIL holds category-I license to run container trains pan-India and is one of the largest Private Container Train
Operator (PCTO’s) with a rail fleet of 18 rakes and 3,200 owned containers equipped to handle a wide-range of cargo,
with a pan India presence. ARIL’s service is completely equipped to provide efficient movement of cargo between
terminals, hubs and warehouses.

ARIL’s infrastructure consists of rail siding, rail terminal equipped with three loop / blast rail lines and three non-ballast
rail lines with a capacity to handle up to 20 rakes per day.

ICD: The Khurja ICD is co-located with a state-of-the-art Rail Terminal and FTWZ. ICD-Khurja is the only private ICD in
the country to have exclusive connectivity with 6-lane private rail siding offering regular and prompt rail connectivity
through owned rakes to all the major gateway ports that service the northern region of India. ICD Khurja is located
strategically with multiple road approaches from the major 4/6 lane highways providing a congestion-free movement
of cargo and containers.

The Group intends to reorganize its corporate structure and integrate / consolidate its operations by housing the
following businesses into two different entities / separate verticals:

1.3.1. FTWZ business in Arshiya
1.3.2. Domestic business (includes DWA, ICD, Rail and PFT business) in ARIL

Though the businesses of all the Group companies complement each other, the Group believes that in the industry, there
are other companies who are doing consolidated business of offering rail infrastructure, cargo/container handling services,
providing ICD and Domestic warehousing services. The demand in the market for the entities providing consolidated services
is higher than the entities providing individual services. In order to earn higher revenue and to cater to the needs of the market,
the management intends to consolidate the rail infrastructure, transport handling business, DWA and ICD business. Hence, the
management envisages the transfer of Domestic business of Arshiya into ARIL.

Accordingly, the proposed demerger of the Domestic Business (as defined hereinafter) envisaged in this Scheme (‘the
Demerger’) would be in order to integrate / consolidate its DWA, RAIL, PFT & ICD business into ARIL, which would enable
Arshiya to focus solely on FTWZ Business. This would provide more flexibility in terms of creating business synergies in the
Resulting Company i.e. ARIL, enable cost savings, rationalizing capital requirements and optimizing utilization of valuable
resources which will enhance management focus on the different businesses being housed under separate entities, thereby
leading to higher operational efficiency.

Further, the Scheme would be in the bestinterests of the shareholders, creditors and employees of Arshiya and ARIL, respectively
as it would result in enhanced value for the shareholders and allow focused strategy on expansion/ operation of both the FTWZ
and the Domestic Business independently. Pursuant to this Scheme all the shareholders of Arshiya will get shares in ARIL and
there would be no change in the economic interest for any of the shareholders of Arshiya pre and post implementation of this
Scheme.

Apropos, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are of the view that the transfer and
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company with the Resulting Company will
enable both the companies to achieve and fulfill their objectives more efficiently and economically and the same is also in the
interest of all the stakeholders.

The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

The transfer of the Demerged Undertaking shall be on a going concern basis.
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PARTS OF THE SCHEME

2.1.  This Scheme of Arrangement is divided into the following parts:
2.1.1. PART I deals with the definitions and share capital of the Demerged Company (defined hereinafter) and the Resulting
Company;
2.1.2. PART II deals with the utilization of securities premium of the Demerged and the Resulting Company and the
corresponding accounting treatment in connection therewith;
2.1.3. PART IIl deals with the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of Demerged Company and its vesting in the Resulting
Company;
2.1.4. PARTIV deals with the Remaining Business (defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company (defined hereinafter);
2.1.5. PART V deals with the consideration for the demerger and accounting treatment for the demerger in the books of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company consequent to the demerger; and
2.1.6. PART VI deals with general terms and conditions applicable to this Scheme.
PART -1
DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL
1. DEFINITIONS
In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the subject or context or meaning thereof, the following expressions shall have the meanings
as set out herein below:
1.1.  “Act’ means the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, including any statutory modifications, re-enactments or
amendments thereof for the time being in force as the case may be.
1.2. “Appointed Date” means 01 April 2019.
1.3. “Demerged Company” or “Arshiya” means Arshiya Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, and
having its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai -
400 018.
1.4. “Domestic Business Undertaking” or “Demerged Undertaking” or “Domestic Business” means Arshiya’s entire

undertaking, business, activities and operations and domestic business activities pertaining to the DWA Business (including
Arshiya’s investment in its subsidiary, namely ARIL pertaining to PFT, RAIL businesses being carried ARIL). The term Domestic
Business Undertaking shall include the following:

1.4.1. All assets (whether movable or immovable, real or personal, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or contingent,
tangible or intangible) wherever situated and of whatever nature, pertaining thereto through which Arshiya carries on
the business, activities and operations relating to the Domestic Business.

1.4.2. All the debts, duties, obligations, loans and liabilities, whether present or future, whether secured or unsecured, of the
Demerged Company in relation to the Domestic Business as on the Appointed Date comprising of:

1.4.2.1.All the debts, duties, obligations and liabilities, including contingent liabilities which arise out of the activities or
operations of the Demerged Company in relation to the Domestic business and all other debts, liabilities, duties
and obligations of the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking which may accrue or arise
after the appointed date but which related up to the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date;

1.4.2.2.Specific loans and borrowings raised, incurred and / or utilized solely for the activities or operation of the
Demerged Company in relation to the Domestic Business;




1.4.3.

1.4.2.3.Liabilities other than those referred in clauses 1.4.2.1 and 1.4.2.2 above and not directly relatable to the Domestic
Business, being the amounts of general or multipurpose borrowings of the Demerged Company as stand in the
same proportion which the value of the assets transferred under this clause of Domestic Business bears to the
total value of the assets of the Demerged Company immediately before the Appointed Date.

Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Domestic Business shall also include in particular:

1.4.3.1.All assets and properties including land, building, plant and machinery, capital work in progress, equipment,
furniture and fixture, vehicles, computers, electrical installations and any other fixed asset in relation to the
Domestic Business;

1.4.3.2.All current assets, inventory, stock-in-trade, account receivables, loans and advances, prepaid expenses and
other assets in relation to the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.3.Cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and bank accounts relating to the Domestic Business including fixed
deposits;

1.4.3.4.Security deposits, advances, earnest monies, balances, advance lease rentals or other payments made to or
received from the lessors or suppliers or service providers in relation to the Domestic Business and includes
deposits and balances with Government, Semi-Government, local and other authorities and bodies, including
all tax balances or balances with any tax authority or other statutory body pertaining to the Domestic Business,
customers and other persons earnest moneys and/or security deposits paid or received by Arshiya in connection
with the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.5.All agreements (including but not limited to agreements with respect to immoveable properties by way of lease,
license and business arrangements), rights, contracts, entitlements, permits, licenses, registrations, insurance
policies, approvals, consents, engagements, arrangements, subsidies, concessions, exemptions and all other
privileges and benefits of every kind, nature and description whatsoever (including but not limited to benefits
of tax relief including under the Income-tax Act, 1961 such as credit for advance tax, taxes deducted at source,
etc., unutilized deposits or credits, benefits under the VAT/ Sales Tax law / Goods and Services Tax (GST), VAT /
sales tax set off, unutilized deposits or credits, benefits of any unutilized MODVAT / CENVAT / Service tax / GST
credits, etc.) relating to the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.6.Investments, held by Arshiya in ARIL;
1.4.3.7.All permanent employees of Arshiya excluding those who are engaged in relation to the Remaining Business;

1.4.3.8.All records, files, documents, reports, papers, computer programs, manuals, data catalogues, quotations, sales
and advertising materials, list of present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit information,
customer pricing information and other records, whether in physical form or electronic form in connection with
or relating to the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.9.All intellectual property (if any) including but not limited to technical know-how, assignment of trademarks and
other related rights, title and interest vested thereto rights owned or licensed, records, files, papers, data and
documents in the name of Arshiya and in relation to the Domestic Business, Brand name and domain name;

1.4.3.10.All pending litigations or proceedings filed by or against the Demerged Company pertaining to the Domestic
Business;

1.4.3.11.All loans and cash credit facilities availed of by the Demerged Company for the purposes of the Domestic
Business and other liabilities incurred in connection therewith;

Any question that may arise as to whether a specified asset or liability pertains or does not pertain to the Domestic Business

or whether it arises out of the activities or operations of the Domestic Business shall be decided by mutual agreement between

Arshiya and ARIL. Further, it is clarified that the Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Share - I (‘OCRPS-I') issued
by Arshiya does not relate to Domestic Business and unless converted into equity shares on or before the Record Date, no

additional / proportionate consideration shall be payable to its holders pursuant to this Scheme becoming effective. However,
any Corporate Action relating to the Outstanding OCRPS-I shall be kept in abeyance till the last date upto which the option for
conversion is exercisable.
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1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

3.1.

The expressions which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the
context or meaning hereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
bye-laws, as the case may be, or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from time to time.

“Effective Date” means the last of the dates, if applicable, on which the certified or authenticated copy of the order(s)
sanctioning the Scheme passed by the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) of Judicature at Mumbiai, is filed with the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. This date in only drawn to capture references to all transactions undertaken between the
Appointed Date and date of filing of the NCLT order with Registrar of Companies (“ROC”). Thus, the same is not to be construed
as the effective date for the purpose of Section 232(6) of the Act.

“Governmental Authority” or “Appropriate Authority” means any applicable central, state or local government, legislative
body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or commission or any court, tribunal, board, bureau, instrumentality,
judicial or arbitral body having jurisdiction over the territory of India.

“National Company Law Tribunal” or “NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the competent authority under the provisions of Sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act and specifically refers to the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench in respect of Arshiya and ARIL having their registered offices located in Mumbai, Maharashtra.

“Record Date” means the date to be fixed jointly by the Board of Directors of Demerged and Resulting Company for the purposes
of determining the shareholders of Arshiya to whom shares would be issued in accordance with Clause 7 of this Scheme.

“Remaining Business” or “Remaining Business of Arshiya” shall mean all undertakings, businesses, activities and operations
including assets and liabilities of Arshiya pertaining to the FTWZ business and excludes the Domestic Business.

“Resulting Company” or “ARIL” means Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited a Company incorporated under the Companies Act,
1956 and having its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400 018.

“Scheme” means this Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya and ARIL, in its present form and / or with any modifications
and amendments thereto made under Clause 22 of this scheme as approved or directed by the Tribunal.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

This Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) and amendment(s) made under Clause 23 of
this Scheme duly approved or imposed or directed by the Tribunal shall be effective from the Appointed Date but shall be
operative from the Effective Date. Therefore, for all regulatory and tax purposes, the Demerger would have been deemed to be
effective from the Appointed Date of this Scheme as per Section 232(6) of the Companies Act 2013. Notwithstanding the above,
the accounting treatment to be adopted to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme would be in consonance with Indian
Accounting Standards 103 (“IND AS 103”) and the mere adoption of such accounting treatment will not in any manner effect
the vesting of the Demerged Undertaking from the Appointed Date.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of Arshiya Limited as on 30" April 2018 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

247,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 495,000,000
11,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 110,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

229,716,776 Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 459,433,552
OCRPS -1

57,64,619 OCRPS-I of Rs 10 each 5,76,46,190

Subsequent to 30" April 2018, there has been no change in the authorized, issued and paid up share capital of Arshiya Limited.
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3.2

The share capital of the Resulting Company as on 30" April 2018 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital
Authorized capital

45,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 450,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
42,384,417 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 423,844,170

Subsequent to 30" April 2018, there has been no change in the authorized, issued and paid up share capital of Resulting
Company.

PART II

UTILISATION OF SECURITIES PREMIUM

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

4.6.

UTILISATION OF SECURITIES PREMIUM OF DEMERGED COMPANY AND RESULTING COMPANY

Itis proposed to write off the aggregate of the balance in Profit and Loss Account as on Appointed Date and the excess of assets
over liabilities as provided under clause 8.1.3 (‘Arshiya Aggregate Book Losses), against the securities premium account of
Arshiya.

It is also proposed to write off the balance in Profit and Loss Account and any excess of consideration over net assets acquired
as provided under clause 8.2.4 as on Appointed Date (‘ARIL Book Losses’), against the securities premium account of ARIL.

Consequent upon the re-organization / utilization of securities premium, as mentioned in clause 4.1 and 4.2 above, the Arshiya
Aggregate Book Losses and ARIL Book Loss as on Appointed Date shall be reduced to NIL.

The utilization of Securities Premium as aforesaid of Arshiya and ARIL respectively, shall be effected as an integral part of and in
terms of this Scheme in accordance with the provisions of Section 230(2)(a) and shall constitute sufficient compliance in terms
of Section 52 and Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 without carrying out separate compliance thereof. Further, the same
does not involve either diminution of liability in respect of unpaid share capital or payment to any shareholder of any paid-up
share capital. Accordingly, the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under Section 66
of the Act as well as other applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 confirming the reduction of share capital pursuant to
utilization of the securities premium as aforesaid.

The accounting effect of the above sub-clauses shall be directly given in the balance sheet of Arshiya and ARIL respectively.
The utilization of securities premium as aforesaid of Arshiya and ARIL as envisaged in the Scheme shall not affect or impair in
any manner the rights and interests of any of the creditors of Arshiya or ARIL, since Arshiya and ARIL shall, post such reduction,
continue to be in a position to honor the dues of their respective creditors. Therefore, Arshiya and ARIL seeks liberty of the
NCLT for dispensation of words “and reduced” to be added as suffix to its name, as contemplated in Section 66 (2) and 66 (3)
of the Act.

PART - 111

DEMERGER OF DOMESTIC BUSINESS UNDERTAKING

5.1.

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE DOMESTIC BUSINESS UNDERTAKING

On or after the Effective Date and subject to the provisions of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Domestic
Business Undertaking (including all the estate, assets, rights, claims, title, interest and authorities including accretions and
appurtenances of the Domestic Business Undertaking) pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and with other
applicable provisions of the Act shall stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Resulting Company, as a going concern without any further act, deed, matter or thing in the following manner:

Assets

5.1.1. The whole of the Domestic Business Undertaking shall without any further act, deed, matter or thing, stand transferred
to and vested in and / or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company so as to vest in the
Resulting Company all rights, title and interest pertaining to the Domestic Business Undertaking;
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All assets, investments, right, title or interest acquired by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date but prior
to the Effective Date in relation to the Domestic Business Undertaking shall also, without any further act, instrument or
deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company upon the Effective date pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and with other applicable provisions
of the Act; and

All the movable assets of the Domestic Business Undertaking and the assets which are otherwise capable of transfer by
physical delivery or endorsement and delivery, including cash in hand, shall be so transferred to the Resulting Company
and deemed to have been physically handed over by physical delivery or by endorsement and delivery, as the case
may be, to the Resulting Company to the end and intent that the property and benefit therein passes to the Resulting
Company with effect from the Appointed Date. Such delivery and transfer shall be made on a date mutually agreed upon
between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company. However such date of delivery shall be such date as may
be mutually agreed upon by the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

Pursuant to the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, all immovable property (including as per
Schedule I to this scheme), whether freehold or leasehold, (including but not limited to land, buildings, offices, factories,
sites and any other immovable property, including accretions and appurtenances) relating to the Domestic Business
Undertaking of the Demerged Company, and any document of title, rights, interest and easements in relation thereto
shall stand transferred to and be vested in the Resulting Company, without any act or deed to be done by the Demerged
Company and/ or the Resulting Company and/or any other Appropriate Authority. The Resulting Company shall be
entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all obligations, in relation
to or applicable to such immovable properties. The mutation and/ or substitution of the title to the immovable properties
shall be made and duly recorded in the name of the Resulting Company by the appropriate governmental authorities
and third parties pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the Tribunal and upon the Effective Date in accordance with
the terms hereof without any further act or deed on part of the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company. It is
clarified that the Resulting Company shall be entitled to engage in such correspondence and make such representations
as may be necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid mutation and/or substitution.

5.2. Contracts

5.2.1.

5.2.2.

All contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever nature in
relation to the Domestic Business Undertaking to which the Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which
the Demerged Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect immediately before the Effective date,
shall continue in full force and effect against or in favour of, as the case may be, the Resulting Company in which the
Domestic Business Undertaking vests by way of demerger hereunder and may be enforced as fully and effectually
as if, instead of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto or
thereunder; and

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the Domestic
Business Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, the Resulting Company may, at any time after the Effective
date in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise, take such actions and execute
such deeds (including deeds of adherence), confirmations or other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party
to any contract or arrangement to which the Demerged Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary in
order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme. The Resulting Company shall, under the provisions of this
Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the Demerged Company in relation to the
Domestic Business Undertaking and to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the
part of the Demerged Company to be carried out or performed.

5.3. Liabilities

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

All debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of every kind, nature and description of the Domestic
Business Undertaking shall also, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Act, without any further act or deed, be transferred to or be deemed to be transferred to the Resulting
Company, so as to become from the Appointed Date the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations
of the Resulting Company and it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other person who
is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and
obligations have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this sub-clause;

Where any of the loans raised and used, liabilities and obligations incurred, duties and obligations of the Demerged
Company as on the Appointed Date deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company, have been discharged by the
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5.4.

Demerged Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to have
been for and on account of the Resulting Company; and

5.3.3. All loans raised and used and all liabilities and obligations incurred by the Demerged Company for the operations of
the Domestic Business Undertaking with prior approval of the Resulting Company after the Appointed Date and prior
to the Effective Date, shall, subject to the terms of this Scheme, be deemed to have been raised, used or incurred for and
on behalf of the Resulting Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also without any
further act or deed be and stand transferred to and be deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company and shall
become the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Resulting Company which shall meet, discharge and satisfy
the same.

Licenses and Permissions

Any statutory licenses, permissions or approvals or consents held by the Demerged Company required to carry on operations
of the Domestic Business Undertaking shall stand vested in or transferred to the Resulting Company without any further
act or deed, and shall be appropriately mutated by the statutory authorities concerned therewith in favour of the Resulting
Company and the benefit of all statutory and regulatory permissions, environmental approvals and consents, registration or
other licenses, and consents shall vest in and become available to the Resulting Company as if they were originally obtained by
the Resulting Company. In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other benefits
or privileges enjoyed, granted by any Governmental Authority or by any other person, or availed of by the Demerged Company
relating to the Domestic Business Undertaking, are concerned, the same shall vest with and be available to the Resulting
Company on the same terms and conditions as applicable to the Demerged Company, as if the same had been allotted and/or
granted and/or sanctioned and/or allowed to the Resulting Company.

PART -1V

REMAINING BUSINESS

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

REMAINING BUSINESS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY

The Remaining Business of the Demerged Company and all other assets, liabilities, incentives, rights and obligations pertaining
thereto shall continue to be vested in and managed by the Demerged Company in the manner as provided below.

Alllegal and other proceedings including any insurance claims by or against the Demerged Company under any statute, whether
pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted in future, whether or not in respect of any matter arising before
the Effective date and relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company (including those relating to any property,
right, power, liability, obligation or duty, of the Demerged Company in respect of the Remaining Business of the Demerged
Company) shall be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date:

6.3.1. The Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on and to be carrying on all business and activities
relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company for and on its own behalf;

6.3.2. The Demerged Company may enter into such contracts as the Demerged Company may deem necessary in respect of
the Remaining Business;

6.3.3. All profits accruing to the Demerged Company thereon or losses arising or incurred by it relating to the Remaining
Business of the Demerged Company shall, for all purposes, be treated as the profits, or losses, as the case may be, of the
Demerged Company;

6.3.4. All assets and properties acquired by the Demerged Company in relation to the Remaining Business on and after the
Appointed Date shall belong to and continue to remain vested in the Demerged Company; and

6.3.5. All liabilities (including contingent liabilities) loans, debts (whether secured or unsecured) raised or incurred, duties
and obligations of every kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever arising or accruing in relation to the
Remaining Business shall belong to and continue to remain vested in the Demerged Company.
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PARTV

CONSIDERATION AND ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

CONSIDERATION

In consideration of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme, the
paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company shall be increased in the manner set out in this Clause.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2
(two) fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose
name appears in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors,
administrators or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, subject to the provisions of Clause 7.4 below, 1 (one) fully paid-up
equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New Equity Shares’).

In case of any member’s shareholding in the Demerged Company is such that such member becomes entitled to a fraction of 1
(one) equity share of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall not issue fractional share certificate to such member
and shall consolidate such fractions and issue the consolidated shares to a trustee nominated by the Board of Directors of the
Demerged Company in that behalf, who shall sell such shares and distribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction of expenses
incurred) to such members in proportion to their respective fractional entitlements. During consolidation of fractional shares,
if the sum of fractional shares is not a whole integer, the Resulting Company shall issue such additional fractional share to
the trustee, such that the total shares so issued shall be rounded off to the next whole integer. The issue of fractional share by
the Resulting Company to the Trustee, shall form an integral part of the consideration to be paid under the Scheme and that
no separate process as may be applicable under the Applicable Law, to that extent, shall be required to be followed by the
Resulting Company.

The New Equity Shares issued in terms of clause 7.2 above, shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock
exchange/s in India where the equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed and / or admitted to trading.

Upon the Scheme coming to effect, the shares to be allotted to the members of the Demerged Company by the Resulting
Company shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange/s in India where the equity shares of
the Arshiya are listed and / or admitted to trading as on effective date. Accordingly, the Resulting Company shall take steps
for listing simultaneously on all such stock exchange(s) within a reasonable period of the receipt of the final NCLT order
sanctioning the Scheme. The Resulting Company shall make necessary applications with the provisions of Applicable Laws,
including, as applicable, the provisions of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, SEBI Circular
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/105 dated September 21, 2017,
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 03,2018 and as amended from time to time. The equity shares allotted
pursuant to this Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositaries system till relevant directions in relation to listing / trading are
provided by the stock exchanges. The Resulting Company shall apply to Securities and Exchange Board of India through Stock
Exchange for seeking relaxation under Section 19(2)(b) of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

The New Equity Shares of the Resulting Company to be issued to the members of the Demerged Company pursuant to Clause
7.2 above shall be subject to the memorandum and articles of association of the Resulting Company and shall rank pari-passu
in all respects, including dividend, with the existing equity shares of the Resulting Company.

The issue and allotment of New Equity Shares by the Resulting Company, to the shareholders of Demerged Company as provided
in Clause 7.2 is an integral part of the Scheme and shall be deemed to have been carried out as if the procedure laid down under
Section 62(1)(c) of the Act and all other relevant Rules, Regulations and Laws for the time being in force were duly complied
with.

Upon the scheme becoming effective, the existing equity shares held by the Demerged Company or its nominee in the Resulting
Company shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled and from the Effective Date. The cancellation, as aforesaid, which
amounts to reduction of share capital of the Resulting Company, shall be effected as an integral part of this Scheme itself in
accordance with the provisions of Section 66 of the Act and the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the scheme shall be deemed
to be also the order under Section 66 of the Act for the purpose of confirming the reduction. The reduction would not involve
either a diminution of liability in respect of unpaid share capital or payment of paid-up share capital. Notwithstanding the
reduction as aforesaid, the Resulting Company shall not be required to add “and reduced” as suffix to its name and the Resulting
Company shall continue in its existing name.




8.1.

8.2.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall account for the Scheme in their respective books / financial
statements in accordance with applicable Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time including as provided herein below:

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF DEMERGED COMPANY

8.1.1.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the value of assets, liabilities, profits/losses or reserves pertaining to the
Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company as appearing in the books of accounts of the Demerged Company are
to be transferred to the Resulting Company in terms of clause 2 of this Scheme and shall be reduced from the respective
book value of assets and liabilities of the Demerged Company.

Inter-company balances and investments (including Demerged Company’s investment in Resulting Company), if any,
between Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall stand cancelled. Further, any receivables or payables,
which pertains to the Demerged Undertaking, arising thereon between the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company, inter-corporate loans or balances pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking as arising between the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company or vice-versa shall also stand nullified upon the Scheme becoming effective and
the Demerged Company shall pass necessary entries in its books of accounts;

The excess of assets over liabilities transferred under clause 8.1.1 and after giving effect to clause 8.1.2 above shall be
adjusted against Retained Earnings. In case of deficit, the same shall be credited to capital reserve.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company are authorized to account for any of these
balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit, in accordance with accounting principle generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Effective Date:

8.2.1.

8.2.2.

8.2.3.

8.2.4.

8.2.5.

8.2.6.

The Resulting Company shall record all assets and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking vested in it pursuant to this
Scheme, at the respective values thereof, as appearing in the books of account of the Demerged Company with effect
from the Effective Date.

Any receivables or payables, which pertains to the Demerged Undertaking, arising thereon between the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company, inter-corporate loans or balances pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking as
arising between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company or vice-versa shall also stand nullified upon the
Scheme becoming effective and the Resulting Company shall pass necessary entries in its books of accounts;

Upon cancellation of the shares held by the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company
shall debit to its equity share capital account, the aggregate face value of existing equity shares held by the Demerged
Company, which stands cancelled hereof. Further, the Resulting Company shall credit the aggregate face value of the
new equity shares issued by it to the members of the Demerged Company pursuant to this Scheme to the share capital
account in its books of accounts;

The surplus / deficit arising on recording of the assets and liabilities as per clause 8.2.1 and 8.2.2 over the shares
cancelled and consideration recorded as per clause 8.2.3 above shall be transferred to Capital Reserve / Goodwill in the
balance sheet of the Resulting Company;

In case of any differences in accounting policies between the Resulting Company and the Demerged Company, the
impact of such differences shall be quantified and adjusted in accordance with the applicable accounting principles;

To the extent there are any obligations of the Resulting Company towards the Demerged Undertaking, the obligations
in respect thereof shall come to an end and corresponding effect shall be given in the books of account of the Resulting
Company.
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8.2.7. All costs and expenses incurred by the Resulting Company in connection with the Scheme and to put it into operation
and any other expenses or charges attributable to the implementation of the Scheme shall be debited to the profit & loss
account of the Resulting Company. However, costs pertaining to issue of equity shares shall be directly debited to the
reserves of the Resulting Company.

8.2.8. Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company are authorized to account for any of these
balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit, in accordance with accounting principle generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016.

PART VI

GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

11.

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

RECLASSIFICATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

Upon the Scheme being effective, the Authorised Share Capital of the Resulting Company existing on the Effective Date, without
any further application, act, instrument or deed, shall be reclassified from equity shares of face value of Rs 10/- each into
corresponding number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/- each.

Consequent upon the reclassification of Authorised Share Capital under Clause 9.1 above and upon the Scheme being effective,
Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company (relating to the Authorised Share Capital) shall, without any
further act, instrument or deed, be and stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 13, 14, 61 and 230-232 and
other applicable provisions of the Act.

It is hereby clarified that for the purposes of clause 9.2 above, the consent of the shareholders to the Scheme shall be deemed
to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting the above reclassification in Authorised Share Capital of the Resulting Company,
and no further resolution would be required to be separately passed. Upon the Scheme being effective, the Company shall file
necessary form for the reclassification of the Authorised Share Capital with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Further, there
would be no requirement for any further payment of stamp duty and/or fee (including registration fee) by the Company for the
reclassification to the Authorised Share Capital.

TAXASPECTS

It is intended that this Scheme will be in compliance with the conditions relating to “Demerger” as specified under Section
2(19AA) and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 such that:

The transfer of the Domestic Business Undertaking will be on a going concern basis with effect from the Appointed Date.

Subject to clause 10.1 above, if any terms or provisions of the Scheme is/are inconsistent with the provisions of Section 2(19AA)
and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the provisions of Section 2(19AA) and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act,
1961 shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent necessary to comply with Section 2(19AA) and Section
72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as on the Appointed Date; such modification shall not affect other parts of the Scheme.
Upon the Effective Date, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly permitted to file / revise their
income-tax, service tax, GST, value added tax, withholding tax and other statutory returns, notwithstanding that the period
for filing / revising such returns may have lapsed. Each of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly
permitted to amend tax deduction at source and other statutory certificates and shall have the right to claim refunds, advance
tax credits, set offs and adjustments relating to their respective incomes / transactions from the Appointed Date.

LISTING AGREEMENT AND SEBI COMPLIANCE

Since the Demerged Company is listed company, this scheme is subject to the compliances by the Demerged Company of all
requirements under the Listing Regulations and all statutory directives of the Securities Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’)
through its circulars insofar as they relate to sanction and implementation of the scheme.

The Demerged Company in compliance with Listing Regulations shall apply for the “Observation Letter” to BSE and NSE where
its shares are listed.

The Demerged Company shall also comply with the directives of SEBI contained in circular no CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated
March 10,2017 (as amended from time to time) issued by SEBI in terms of Regulations 37 of the Listing Regulations.




12.

12.1.

13.

13.1.

13.2.

14.

14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

14.4.

15.

15.1.

15.2.

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES OF RESULTING COMPANY

Scheme of Demerger is in conformity with the requirements as laid down in sub-rule 19(7) of Securities Contract (Regulation)
Rules, 1957 and in terms of the said sub-rule after allotment of New Equity Shares in Resulting Company, Resulting Company
shall comply with relevant provisions under SEBI Regulations, as may be applicable in relation to listing of shares allotted,
simultaneously on all stock exchanges where the equity shares of Demerged Company are listed.

Resulting Company shall make application to the SEBI in terms of Rule 19(7) of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 for
listing of equity shares at all the stock exchanges where the equity shares of Demerged Company are listed on the Appointed
Date without complying with the requirements of Rule 19(2)(b) of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

ARIL shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and / or undertakings as may be necessary in accordance
with the applicable laws or regulations for complying with the formalities of the aforesaid stock exchanges. On such formalities
being fulfilled, the stock exchanges shall list and / or admit such New Equity Shares also for the purpose of trading. The New
Equity Shares allotted by ARIL, pursuant to this Scheme, shall remain frozen in the depositories system till the listing / trading
permission is given by the BSE.

APPROVAL OF SCHEME BY PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS

The Approval to this Scheme of Arrangement shall be obtained from the shareholders of the Demerged Company i.e. Arshiya
in accordance with SEBI circular no CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (as amended from time to time) issued by
SEBI in terms of Regulations 37 of the Listing Regulations.

The Scheme shall be acted upon only if the votes cast by the public shareholders in favor of the proposal are more than the
number of votes cast by the public shareholders against it.

SECURITY

The transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking as aforesaid shall be subject to the existing securities, charges, mortgage
and other encumbrances if any, subsisting over or in respect of the property and assets or any part thereof to the extent
that such securities, charges, mortgages, encumbrances are created to secure the liabilities forming part of the Demerged
Undertaking. It is agreed by and between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, that pursuant to the demerger,
necessary steps shall be taken in order to effect the change/ modification of charges, if any, in the records of the Registrar of
Companies.

It is clarified that unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company, in so far as the assets
comprising the Demerged Undertaking are concerned the security or charge relating to loans or borrowings of the Demerged
Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, shall without any further act or deed continue to relate to the said assets
only after the Appointed Date and the said assets shall not relate to or be available as security in relation to any other borrowings
of the Demerged Company;

14.2.1. Similarly, the security or charge relating to loans or borrowings of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking, shall continue to relate to the said assets only after the Appointed Date and shall not relate to or be
available as security in relation to any other borrowings of the Resulting Company and vice-versa;

The other assets of the Demerged Company shall not relate to or be available as security in relation to the said borrowings of
the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking; and

The Demerged Company may enter into such alternate arrangements with the lenders pursuant to the release of security as per
the provisions mentioned herein.

EMPLOYEES

On and from the Effective Date, all permanent employees relating to the Demerged Undertaking, as were employed by the
Demerged Company, immediately before such date, shall become the employees of the Resulting Company with the benefit
of continuity of service and without any break or interruption in service. It is clarified that the employees of the Demerged
Undertaking, who become employees of the Resulting Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall continue to be governed by the
same terms of employment as were applicable to them immediately before the demerger. The Resulting Company undertakes
to abide by any agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by the Demerged Company with any of its respective employees
thereof. The Resulting Company further agrees that for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, or any
other benefits and incentives, if any, such past services with the Demerged Company shall be taken into account.

It is expressly provided that, on the Effective Date, the provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund created or any other
special fund existing for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking
shall become the funds of the Resulting Company, for all purposes whatsoever in relation to the administration or operation
of such fund(s) or in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said fund(s) in accordance with the provisions
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15.3.

16.

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

16.4.

16.5.

16.6.

16.7.

17.

17.1.

18.

thereof as per the terms provided in the respective trust deeds, if any, to the end and intent that all rights, duties, powers and
obligations of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking in relation to such fund(s) shall become those
of the Resulting Company. These funds shall, subject to the necessary approvals and permissions and at the discretion of the
Resulting Company, either be continued as separate funds of the Resulting Company for the benefit of the employees of the
Demerged Undertaking or be transferred to and merged with other similar funds of the Resulting Company. It is clarified that
the services of the employees of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall be treated as having
been continuous for the purpose of the said fund(s); and

With effect from the date of filing of this Scheme with the NCLT and up to and including the Effective Date, the Demerged
Company shall not vary or modify the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees, except with the prior
written consent of the Resulting Company.

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY IN TRUST
During the period between the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

The Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on all the business and activities relating to the Demerged
Undertaking and shall be deemed to hold and stand possessed of the entire business and undertakings in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking for and on account of and in trust, on behalf of the Resulting Company.

All the income or profits accruing or arising to the Demerged Company and all costs, charges, expenses or losses incurred by
the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall for all purposes of this demerger be treated as the
income, profits, costs, charges, expenses and losses of the Resulting Company, as the case may be.

Any of the rights, powers, authorities, privileges, attached, related or pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking exercised by the
Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been exercised by the Demerged Company for and on behalf of, and in trust for
and as an agent of the Resulting Company; and

The Demerged Company shall carry on the business pertaining to the Domestic Business Undertaking with reasonable diligence
and business prudence and shall not alter or diversify business within the Domestic Business Undertaking nor venture into
any new business (except for Remaining Business), nor alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with the assets
or any part thereof except in the ordinary course of business without the prior written consent of the Resulting Company or
pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of this Scheme by the respective boards of
directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

The Demerged Company shall not utilize the profits or income in relation to the Demerged Undertaking for the purpose of
declaring or paying any dividend in respect of the period falling on and after the Appointed Date, without the prior written
consent of the Resulting Company.

The Resulting Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the Governmental Authorities or
other appropriate forums as may be required under any applicable law, for such consents, approvals and sanctions which the
Resulting Company may require.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All legal, administrative and other proceedings, of whatsoever nature pending in any court or before any authority, judicial,
quasi-judicial or administrative or any adjudicating authority and/or arising after the Appointed Date and relating to the
Demerged Undertaking, or its respective properties, assets, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations shall be continued and/
or enforced until the Effective date by or against the Demerged Company; and from the Effective Date, shall be continued
and enforced by or against the Resulting Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been
continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company, had the Scheme not been made. On and from the Effective
Date, the Resulting Company shall have the right to initiate, defend, compromise or otherwise deal with any legal proceedings
relating to the Demerged Undertaking, in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been initiated by the
Demerged Company as the case may be, had the Scheme not been made; and if any suit, appeal or other proceedings relating to
the Demerged Undertaking, of whatever nature by or against the Demerged Company be pending, the same shall not abate or
be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking or by anything
contained in this Scheme but the proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company
in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against
the Demerged Company as if this Scheme had not been made.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer of properties and liabilities and the continuance of proceedings by or against the Resulting Company, as envisaged
under this Scheme, shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already concluded by the Demerged Company, in relation
to the Demerged Undertaking on or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Resulting
Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Demerged Company, in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking, as done and executed on behalf of itself.




19.

20.

21.

21.1.

21.2.

22.

23.

23.1.

23.2.

24.

VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ADJUSTMENTS ETC.

All resolutions passed by the Demerged Company so far as they relate to or to be done or caused to be done in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking, shall be deemed to have authorized any Director of the Resulting Company or such other person(s)
as authorized by any two Directors of the Resulting Company to do all acts, deeds, things as may be necessary to give effect to
these Resolutions.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby declared that nothing in the Scheme shall prevent the Resulting Company from declaring
and paying dividends, whether interim or final, to its equity shareholders.

APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL

The Demerged Company shall and the Resulting Company, if required, shall make applications/ petitions to the NCLT for
sanction of this Scheme, under Sections 230 to 232 read with Sections 66 and 52 and other applicable provisions of the Act; and

Any dispute arising out of this Scheme shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the NCLT, Mumbai Bench.
MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company (acting through their Board of Directors, Committee thereof or any director
or any other person authorized by the Board of Directors, Committee thereof to this effect) may assent to any modifications
or amendments to this Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the Tribunal may deem fit to direct or impose or
which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by the respective Demerged Company and Resulting
Company, including pursuant to the orders of the NCLT and/or any other authorities as they may deem fit to direct or impose
or which may otherwise be considered necessary or desirable for settling any question or doubt or difficulty that may arise
for implementing and/or carrying out the Scheme. The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company (acting through their
Board of Directors, Committee thereof or any director or any other person authorized by the Board of Directors, Committee
thereof to this effect) shall be authorized to take such steps and do all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or
proper to give effect to this Scheme and to resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions whether by reason of any orders of the
Tribunal or of any directions given by any other appropriate authorities or for any reason otherwise arising out of this Scheme
and/or any matters concerning or connected herewith.

If any part of the Scheme is held invalid or is ruled illegal by the Tribunal or becomes unenforceable for any reason, whatsoever
whether under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the Companies that such part in the opinion of the board of any
companies, shall be severable from the remainder of the Scheme and the remaining part of this Scheme shall not be affected
thereby, unless the deletion of such part, in the opinion of Board of either of the companies, shall cause this Scheme to become
materially adverse to either of the companies in which case companies shall attempt to bring about a modification in this
Scheme, which will best preserve the benefits and obligations of this Scheme for companies, including but not limited to such
part.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

In case the Scheme is not approved by the Tribunal or any of the approvals or conditions enumerated in the Scheme have not
been obtained or complied with, or for any other reason, if this Scheme cannot be implemented, then the board of directors
of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall mutually waive such conditions as they consider appropriate
to give effect, as far as possible, to this Scheme and failing such mutual agreement, the Scheme shall become null and void
and in such event no rights or liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred by either the Resulting Company or the
Demerged Company and each party shall bear their respective costs, charges and expenses in connection with this Scheme
unless otherwise mutually agreed upon.

If any part of this Scheme hereof is invalid, held illegal by Tribunal, or unenforceable under any present or future laws, then it
is the intention of the parties that such part shall be severable from the remainder of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be
affected thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause this Scheme to become materially adverse to any party, in which
case the parties shall attempt to bring about a modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve for the parties the benefits and
obligations of the Scheme, including but not limited to such part.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

Save and except as provided otherwise, all costs, charges, expenses, taxes including duties, levies in connection with the Scheme
and its implementation thereof, and matters incidental thereto, shall be borne by the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company respectively.
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DCS/AMALIJR/RITMS30/2019.20 Juky 12, 2019

The Campany Secretary,

Arshiya Limited

202, Leveld, Cesiay House, SHv Sagar Eslate, F-Block,
Dx. Anrie Besant Road, Wors,

Mumbal, Maharashira, 400018

Dear Sir,

We are i raceipt of Draft Schame of Arrangamert by Arhiya Linvted Mled as raquired under SEBI
Circutar No. CFOMILACIRR01721 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letier dated July 12, 2019
has avter alis given the following comment(s) cn he araf schame of arrangemant:

«  "Campany shall snsure that adaional information, If any, submitied by the Company,
after fling the scheme with the stock exchange, from the date of receipt of s leiter &5
wsplaysd on the websites of e lsted company.”

«  “Company shall duly comply with varous provisions of the Clrourans,”

o “Company Is advised that e observations of SEBISIock Exchanges shall be
incorporated In the petition to be filkd before National Campany Law Tribunal (NCLT)
and e company is obliged to bring the obsoervations to the nolice of NCLT.®

« "R s o be noted Mat the petitions are Bled by the company before NCLT after
processing and commupication of commentsiobservations on draft scheme by
SEBIstock exchange, Hence, Ui company ia not mquired to send nctice for
representation as mandatad under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI
sgain for its comments { obswrvations / vpresentations.”

Accordingly, baned on xlorsonid cammenl offered by SEB), tha campiny s haraly advised:

« To provide addifonal information, If any, (4s stated above) wong with various documenis to
the Exchange for further dszeménation an Exchange webste,

o To arsura that additionsl infarmalion, If any, (As stated aforessd) along with various
documents are clsseminated on ther (company) websile

«  Tu dudy comply adh vanaus provigions of the dreuars

In Sght of (he abiowe, wa havalyy advisa that we have 0o adverse cbsarvalions with lrvted refecence o
those matters having a bearing an lisling'de-disfing'Continuons linling requiremants within  tha
proviions of Lisking Agreement, 82 as 1o arabla ha company o flle the scheme with Hon'ble NCLT
Further, where applcable in the explanstory statement of the notice to be senl by e company o the
shareholders, while seeking mopeoval of the scheme, (1 shal disclose Informaton aboud unlsted
sompanies involved i the formal prescribed for stvidged prospeclus as specifed in the circulas dated
Maren 10, 2017,

Howaver, tha lsting of equily shires of  Arshiva Rail Infrastructure Limided shall be subject to SEBI
granting refaxation undés Rule 1 of the Sacurlies Canlract (Reguistion) Rules, 1957 and
complisnce with ihe requirements of SEB! circular. No. CFO/IL3ACIRI2017/21 dated March 10, 2017,
Further. Arshiva Ral Infrastructure Linitsd shail comply with SEBI Act, Rulkes, Regulations, directons
of the SEBI and any other statutory authonty and Rules, Byelaws, and Reguiations of the Exchangs.

— — SEN SEX Ciapua i ey hmt:l .

SRP@ISE mecmsimEn.
e -,
m;fun'um% i 31 |




- 3GE

EXPERENCE THE NEW

The Company shall fulfil the Exchango’s criteriy for ISIng te securites of such company and aiso
comply with other applicatie statutory requirements Mowaves, the ksting of shares of Asshiya Rail
Infrastruciure Limited is at the dmuon of te Exchange, In addition 1o the above, the listing of
Arshiya Ruil Infrastructure Limited pursuant o the Schéme of Arangement shall be subjpd b SEBI
approval and the Company satistying the folfowing condtions:

1. Yo submit he informatioe Mamorendum contsning 3ll the information abowt Arstiya Rall
Infrastruchse Limited in lire with the dxcdoswse requrements applicatle for public issues with
BSE, for making the same avadable 10 the pubiic threugh (he webdile of Ihe Exchange.
Further, the company is also advised lo make lhe same available 0 e public through its
websie.

2. To publish an sdvartsement In the newspapers containing all the informaton Arshiya Rail
Infrastructiura Limized & ling wih the datafs required as par fe aforesaid SEBI ciraular no.
CFDVDILYCIRIZ017/2% dated March 10, 2017 The advettisemant shoidd draw 2 specfic
refmrance to the aforesaid Information Memorandum avalabie on (ke wabsite of 1ha company
a= well a1 BSE

3 Ta &sdase sl the matenad nformsticn sbout Arshiye Rall infrastructies Limied on =
continucus Basls 30 as to make the same pubic, in =ddibion tc the requremants if any,
specidied in Listing Agreement for disclosures about the subsidiaries.

4. The following provisicns shall ba ncorporatad in tha schama:

i Tha shares allotted pursuant o the Scheme shall remain frozen in the deposory systemn
il bsting/tracing permiszion iz given by the designated stock axchange

#  “Thers shall be no change i the abarsholding pattern of Arsheya Rad Infrastructute
Limited betwesn the record date and the fisting which may affect the status of this

RppIoval.”

Funher you are aise advised (0 being the contents of this letier to the notice of your sharsholders, s
relevant sulthonties a3 deamed A, and alse In your spplication for aporoval of the schame of
arrgngamant

Kindly note that as requied under Reguation 37(3) of SE8| (Listing Obligations and Disclcsure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter hall be Six Mordhs from
the date of this Letter, within which [he schame anhad be submited o #ie NCLT,

The Exchange reserves fis right to withcraw its ‘No adverse observaton’ al any stage  the
information submitted to the Exchange Is found to be Incomplede [ Incorrect / misleading / false or for
sny condravention of Rules, Byedaws and Regulalions of the Exchange, Lising Agreement,
Guidelines/Reguiations issusd by satutary authorties.

Plagge note hat the alresald obsarvatans dees not prachude the Company fom complyng with any
othar raqurements.

Further, it may be noted that with reference 1o Section 230 (5) of the Companies Ad, 2013 (Act), read
with Rule 8§ of Comparses (Compromises, Arancements and Amakiamalions) Rules 2096 (Company
Rules) snd Section 66 of the Ad read wilh Rule 3 of he Company Rules whensin pursuant 10 an
Order passed by (he Hon'bie National Campeny Law Trbunal, & Notice of the proposed schame of
compromise or arangement filed undar sactions 230-232 or Sachon 65 of the Companies Act 2013

== lhe case may be ls nequired to bs served upan the Exchange secoking representations or
abjections If any,

In this regard, wilh a view o have & Belter Iransparency n processing (he aloresaid notces served
wen the Examngo. the Exeung. has JM Moduudmonnm !:!M of nrvtg-uch
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Any service of nolice wnder Secsan 230 (8 or Saction 85 of the Campanies A<t 2013 seeking |
Exchangs's representations or objections i any, would be accepted and proceased through the

na cal fiin ace Yaou may please mfee 1 cictular
daded February 25, 2012 msued to the campany.
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National Stock Exchange Of Indla Limited
Ref: NSE/L1ST/18881 | July 15, 2019

The Company Secretary
Arshiya Limited
302, Level-3, Cegjay House,
Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400018
Kind Attn.: Ms. Savita Dalal
Dear Madam,

Sub: Observation Letter for Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited and Arshiya
Rail Infrastructure Limited

We are in receipt of Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company” or
“Arshiya”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company” or “ARIL”). The
Scheme of Arrangement provides for Demerger of Domestic Business Undertaking which includes
Domestic Warehousing activities (Demerged Undertaking) from Arshiya Limited (“Demerged
Company” or “Arshiya”) into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company” or
“ARIL”).

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/18881submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (‘Circular’), SEBI vide letter dated
July 12, 2019, has given following comments:

a. The Company shall ensure that additional information, if any submitted by the Company, after
filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchange and from the date of the receipt of this letter is
displayed on the website of the listed company.

b. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.

c. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated
in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company is
obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

d. It isto be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence,
the company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section
230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/observations/ representations.

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Rajendra P Bhosale
Date: Mon, Jul 15, 2019 19:00:11 IST

.3 NSE Location: NSE

Mational Stock Exchangs of India Limited | Exchange Plaza, C-1, Elock G, Bandra Kura Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbsai — 200051,
India +91 22 26598100 | www.nesindia.com | CIN UST120MH199 2PLC0GOTES
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Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to
the shareholders, while seeking approval of the Scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular
dated March 10, 2017.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking
given in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No-
objection” in terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the
Company to file the draft scheme with NCLT.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations,
Guidelines/ Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this“Observation Letter” shall be six months from July 15, 2019, within which the
scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

Y ours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Rajendra Bhosale
Manager

P.S. Checklist for al the Further Issuesis available on website of the exchange at the following
URL http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Rajendra P Bhosale
Date: Mon, Jul 15, 2019 19:00:11 IST

O NSE Location: NSE
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Annexure C

Arshiya

Date: 17" Noevember, 2018

To,

The General Manager,
Department of Corporate Senvices,
BSE Limited,

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbal — 400 001

Scrip Code: 506074

Ref: Case No. 85922

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the proposed scheme of
Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Demerged
Company" or “Arshiya”), and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Resulting Company” or “ARIL").

This s in continuation to our application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements), Regulationa, 2015 read with SEBI (Cwcular No.
CFDOILI/CIR/2017/121 dated 10th March, 2017 (eadier SEBI! Circular No.
CIR/CFDICMD/16/2015 dated 30th November, 2015) ("Circular) and subsaquent
information/documents sought by you from time 1o time

In terms of the prowvision of the above said circular and as mentioned in our application dated
10" October, 2018 we hereby submit the Complaints Report for the period commencing from
26" COctober, 2018 1o 18" November, 2018 stating detads of complaints/comments on the
Scheme of Arrangement (Annexed hereto as an Annexure —1)

The Complaints Report will also be uploaded on the website of the Company ie

Request you to kindly take the same on your record.

T,
For A Limited Ay "”"og
<
(
Savitd Dalal -

Secretary & Compliance Officer

Arshiya Limited

Regd. Off.: 302 Lovel-3, Ceeysy House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-8lock, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Work, Mumbal - 400018, Insia.
IW122Q30MOF:Q1ZHNMIEM:% med com | www.arshiyaimited com
CIN : LE3000MH 1981 PL! 47




Arshiya

ANNEXURE -1
Complaints Report
Part A
Sr. No. | Particulars Number
; @ Number of complaints received directly Q
T2 | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange 0
3 | Total Number of complaints/comments receved (1+2) 0
~ 4 | Number of compiaints resolved Not Applicable
5 | Number of complaints pending Not Applicable
PartB
Name of complainant ' Date of complaint Status
{Resolved/Pending)
" Not Applicable j Not Applicable Not Applicable |

: 17" November, 2018

Eree Trade Warshousing Zore | R & Rad Infrastructuee | Inland Cenlainer Depot | Transport And Handling




Arshiya

Date: 14" May, 2019

To,

Manager - Listing Compliance

National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
‘Exchange Plaza’. C-1, Block G,

Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (E), Mumbal - 400 051

Scrip Code: ARSHIYA

Ref: Application No. 18881

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed scheme of
Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Demerged Company” or “Arshiya”), and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Resulting Company” or “ARIL").

This Is In continuation to our application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI
(Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10™ March, 2017 {earlier SEBI Circular
No. CIR/CFDJCMD/ 162015 dated 30" November, 2015) (“Circular) and subsequent
information/documents scught by you from time to time.

In terms of the provision of the above said circular and as mentioned In our
application dated 10" October, 2018 we hereby submit the Complaints Report for
the period commencing from 22™ April, 2019 to 14™ May, 2019 stating details of

complaints/comments on the Scheme of Arrangement (Annexed hereto as an
Annexure — 1),

The Complaints Report will also be uploaded on the website of the Company e,
hitp://wwew.arshiyalimited.com/shareholding-infermation. hitml.

Request you to kindly take the same on your record.

For Arghiya Limited

A
S

Savita Dalal
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Arshiya Limited

Regd. Off.; 302, Lavel-5, Cesisy House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besart Road. ‘Worl, Mumbei - 400018 India,
T: +91 22 4230 S800/502 | F: +91 22 4230 5558 | Emall; |nf:gnhi¥mmnod.com | www.arshiyalimited.com
O : LOZ0COMM!1




Arshiya

End, as above

ANNEXURE -]
Complaints Report
Part- A
Sr. No. | Particulars ' Number
— = -——L - — - — - -
L. | Number of complaints received directly | 0
2. | Number of complaints forwarded by Stack Exchange { 0
I
3 | Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) 0
[ 4 | Number of complaints resolved Not Applicable
5, | Number of complaints pending | Nat Applicable
‘ !
L — \
Part-B
'Sr.No.| Name of complainant Date of Status |
‘ l Complaint (Resolved/Pending)
l— 1. | Not Applicable | Not Appilcable | NotApplicable
For W Limited
AN
Savita Dalal

Company Secretary & Compilance Officer

Date: 14" May, 2019

Arshiya Limited

Regd, Off: 302, Level-3, Cesjay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Elock, Dr. Annie Besarmt Road, Worll, Mumbal - 400078 Indlia.
T: 49122 4230 5500/502 | F: +8122 422&5555 | Emailt: lr#o@o's;l‘ix;alimi!.edm I www.arshiyalimited.com
: LO3000OMHISTIPLCOR4
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Annexure D

Arshiya

Date: 08" October, 2018

To,

The General NManager,
Deapartment of Corporate Services,
BSE Limited,

P J Towars, Dalal Street,

Mumbai — 400 001.

COMPLIANCE REPORT

It 18 heraby cerified that the draft scheme of arangement involving Arshiya Limited and
Asshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited doas not, in any way violate override or imit the provisions
of securities laws or raquirements of the Stock Exchange(s) and the same is in compliance with
the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and this circular, including the following:

£ . Reference Particulars
K Regulations 17 to Corporale governance requirements
27 of LODR
Regulations
2 Regulation 11 of Compliance with securities laws
3 LODR Regulaticns
Requirements of this circular
(a) Para (1MA)(2) Submission of documents to Stock Excha
{b} Para (INA)(2) Conditions for schemes of arrangement invaolving unhsted
entiies
c) Para (I)(A)4) (a) Submiggion of Valuation Report*
{d) Para (HAIS) Auditors certificate ragarding compliance with
Accounting Standards
(e) Para (A1) Provision of approval of public shareholders through
| ewvelting

4;'\' L
Alay S Mittal
Managing Director

Dalal
ny Secretary

N N

tified that the transactions ( accounting treatmert provided in the draft scheme of
arrangement Iinvolving Arshiys Umited and Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited are in
compliance with all the Accounting Standards applicable to a listed entity.

. Maheshwari Ajay S Mittal
Chiel Financial Officer Arshiya Limited Managing Director

Off.: 302, Level-3, Cesjay House, Shiv ar Eatale, F-Block, Or. Annie Bosant Rapd, Work, Mymbai - 400018 Indis,
T +91 22 4230 5500502 | F: +81 22 4 5555 | Email: arshiyalimited com | waw.arshiyalinited. com
CIN : LEG00OMH1851PLCO24747
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Arshiya

ANNEXURE IV

Date: 23 April, 2019

To,
Manager - Listing Compliance
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
'Exchange Plaza’. C-1, Block G,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Maumbai - 400 051
COMPLIANCE REPORT

It i5 hereby certfied that the draft scheme of arrangement nvolving Arshiya Limted and
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited does not, in any way violate. overnde or kmit the provisions
of securites jaws or requiremenis of the Stock Exchange(s) and the eame is In compliance with
Ihe apphcaola provisions of SEB! (Listng Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and this circuar, including the followng:

St _ Reference Particulars
1 Regulations 17 10 Corporate govemance requirements
27 of LODR
Regulations
2 Regulation 11 of Compliance with secunties laws
LCOR Regulations
_Requeements of this circular e
a) | Paa (1)(A)2) Submisswon of documents (o Stock Exchanges ‘
(b) Para {1)(A)(2) Conditions for schemes of arrangement involving unisted
antities
c) Para (11(A)4) (a) Submission of Valustion Repart*
(d) Para ([I(ANS5) Auditors cortificate regarding compliance with
Accounting Standards
(e) Para (1)(ANE) Provision of approval of public shareholders through
[ e-voting

*Valuation Report is not required smce there 3 no change in the shareholding pattem of the

Demerged Company / resultant oompany
Al
S O G

Ajay S Mittal

Dalal
¥ ny Secrotary Managing Director

fied Inal the wransaclions / accounting treatment provided in Uwe drafl scheme of
arrangement invclving Arshiye Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited are in
comaliance with al the Acceunting Standards applicable 10 a listed entity.

/! Maheshwarl Ajay S Mittal
Chief Financial Officer Arshiya Limited Managing Director

302, Lavel-3, Conjoy House, Sty Sagar Estale, F-Block, Dr. Annn Besant Road, Worl, Mumbas - 400018 Incia.
ogvotamommw 4912202‘108““5“ infoflees Nyalmisad com | waw arshiyaimsed. com
CIN : LOXCOMIM M1 SE81PLCO2474T
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ANNEXURE- EI

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ARSHIYA LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY THE 24th DAY
OF MAY, 2018 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF SCHEME ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS
AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDER

Background:

1.

The proposed Scheme of arrangement is between Arshiya Limited (“Demerged company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (“Resulting company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) had been approved by the board of
directors of the Demerged Company (“Board”) vide the resolution passed at its meeting on May 24, 2018.

The provision of Section 230(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Board to adopt a report explaining effect of the
Scheme on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders, laying out in
particular share exchange ratio and specifying and special valuation difficulties. The said report adopted by the Board is required
to be circulated to the shareholders and creditors along with the notice convening the meeting of members/creditors.

This report of the Board is accordingly prepared in accordance with the requirements specified under Section 230(3) (c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The following documents were considered by the Board for the purpose of issuing this report:

a.  Thedraft of the Scheme
Report by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants in respect of share entitlement ratio.

c.  Fairness opinion dated May 28, 2018 provided by the Marchant Banker in respect of the fairness of the share entitlement
ratio.

. Report of the Audit Committee of the Demerged Company, recommending the draft scheme to the Board for approval.

e. Certificate dated 24" day of May, 2018 issued by Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants the statutory auditors of the
company as required under section 232(3) of the companies Act, 2013 certifying that the accounting treatment in the draft
scheme is in accordance with the accounting standards and applicable law.

Report:

1.

The Scheme provides for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the scheme) to the Resulting Company. There
will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two)
fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name
appears in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators
or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New
Equity Shares”).

Effect of the Scheme on the Equity Shareholders (the only class of Shareholders) and promoters, and Non-Promoter
Shareholders of the Demerged Company:

1.

Basis the share exchange ration mentioned above, the Resulting Company shall issue shares to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company in the ratio of 2:1 and the shares held by the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company shall be extinguished.

Upon the Scheme coming to effect, the shares to be allotted to the members of the Demerged Company by the Resulting Company
shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange/s in India where the equity shares of the Arshiya
are listed and / or admitted to trading as on effective date. Accordingly, the Resulting Company shall take steps for listing
simultaneously on all such stock exchange(s) within a reasonable period of the receipt of the final NCLT order sanctioning the
Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, all shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the scheme) will receive
equity shares in the Resulting Company and subsequently, such shareholders of the Demerged Company will hold equity shares
in both, the Demerged Company and Resulting Company, it will give such shareholders of the Demerged Company the ability to
continue to remain invested in both or either of the Companies, giving them greater flexibility in managing and/or dealing with
their investments.
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The Scheme is beneficial to the respective shareholders, creditors, employees and all stakeholders of the Demerged Company and
Resulting Company. The Scheme is expected to contribute in furthering and fulfilling the objectives of both the companies and in
the growth and development of their respective businesses.

Basis the aforesaid, we understand that there will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the equity shareholders, directors,
promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company.

Effect of the Scheme on the Directors and Key Managerial personnel of the Demerged Company:

5.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Demerged Company and their respective relatives have any interestin
the scheme except to the extent the (i) equity shares held by them in the Demerged Company and the resulting Company directly
or as nominee; and /or (ii) Director(s) are common director(s)in the two companies; and/or (iii) the Director(s), key managerial
personnel and their respective relatives are the director(s), partner(s), members(s) and/or beneficiary(ies) of the companies,
firms, association of persons, body corporates and/or trust, as the case may be, that hold shares into the Demerged Company/
Resulting Company. There will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the directors and key managerial personnel of the Demerged
Company

For Arshiya Limited.
Sd/-

Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Date: 26t February, 2021
Place: Mumbai

41



ANNEXURE- EII

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON
THURSDAY THE 24th DAY OF MAY, 2018 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF SCHEME ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDER

Background:

1.

The proposed Scheme of arrangement is between Arshiya Limited (“Demerged company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (“Resulting company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) had been approved by the board of
directors of the Demerged Company (“Board”) vide the resolution passed at its meeting on May 24, 2018.

The provision of Section 230(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Board to adopt a report explaining effect of the
Scheme on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders, laying out in
particular share exchange ratio and specifying and special valuation difficulties. The said report adopted by the Board is required
to be circulated to the shareholders and creditors along with the notice convening the meeting of members/creditors.

This report of the Board is accordingly prepared in accordance with the requirements specified under Section 230(3) (c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The following documents were considered by the Board for the purpose of issuing this report:

a.  Thedraft of the Scheme
Report by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants in respect of share entitlement ratio.

c.  Fairness opinion dated May 28, 2018 provided by the Marchant Banker in respect of the fairness of the share entitlement
ratio.

. Report of the Audit Committee of the Resulting Company, recommending the draft scheme to the Board for approval.

e. Certificate dated 24th day of May, 2018 issued by Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants the statutory auditors of the
company as required under section 232(3) of the companies Act, 2013 certifying that the accounting treatment in the draft
scheme is in accordance with the accounting standards and applicable law.

Report:

1.

The Scheme provides for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the scheme) to the Resulting Company. There
will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two)
fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name
appears in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators
or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New
Equity Shares’).

Effect of the Scheme on the Equity Shareholders (the only class of Shareholders) and promoters, and Non-Promoter
Shareholders of the Resulting Company:

1.

Basis the share exchange ration mentioned above, the Resulting Company shall issue shares to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company in the ratio of 2:1 and the shares held by the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company shall be extinguished.

Upon the Scheme coming to effect, the shares to be allotted to the members of the Demerged Company by the Resulting Company
shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange/s in India where the equity shares of the Arshiya
are listed and / or admitted to trading as on effective date. Accordingly, the Resulting Company shall take steps for listing
simultaneously on all such stock exchange(s) within a reasonable period of the receipt of the final NCLT order sanctioning the
Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, all shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the scheme) will receive
equity shares in the Resulting Company and subsequently, such shareholders of the Demerged Company will hold equity shares
in both, the Demerged Company and Resulting Company, it will give such shareholders of the Demerged Company the ability to
continue to remain invested in both or either of the Companies, giving them greater flexibility in managing and/or dealing with
their investments.
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4.  The Scheme is beneficial to the respective shareholders, creditors, employees and all stakeholders of the Demerged Company and
Resulting Company. The Scheme is expected to contribute in furthering and fulfilling the objectives of both the companies and in
the growth and development of their respective businesses.

Basis the aforesaid, we understand that there will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the equity shareholders, directors, promoters
and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company.

Effect of the Scheme on the Directors and Key Managerial personnel of the Resulting Company:

5. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Resulting Company and their respective relatives have any interestin
the scheme except to the extent the (i) equity shares held by them in the Demerged Company and the resulting Company directly
or as nominee; and /or (ii) Director(s) are common director(s)in the two companies; and/or (iii) the Director(s), key managerial
personnel and their respective relatives are the director(s), partner(s), members(s) and/or beneficiary(ies) of the companies,
firms, association of persons, body corporates and/or trust, as the case may be, that hold shares into the Demerged Company/
Resulting Company. There will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the directors and key managerial personnel of the Resulting
Company.

For Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited.

Sd/-
Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Date: 26th February, 2021
Place: Mumbai




ZADN & Associates

May 24, 2018

To,

The Board of Directors
Arshiya Limited

(Demerged Company)

302, Ceejay House, Level -3
Shiv Sagar Estate, F- Block
Dr. Annie Besant Road

Annexure F

4" Floor, Shreeniwas House
Hazarmal Somani Marg

Next to MTNL Exchange Building
Fort, Mumbai 400 001, Inda

Tel: +91 22 4973 5451 /52 /53

To,

The Board of Directors

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
(Resulting Company)

302, Ceejay House, Level- 3
Shiv Sagar Estate, F- Block

Dr. Annie Besant Road

Worli, Mumbai — 400018, India. Worli, Mumbai - 400018, India

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Report on share entitlement ratio for the proposed cemerger of Domestic Business
Underlaking (‘Demerged Undertaking') of Arshiya Limited (‘Demerged Company') into
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (‘Resulting Company').

We, ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants (We' or ‘ZADN' or ‘Our’ or ‘Us’). refer to the
Engagement Letter dated May 8, 2018 and related discussions we had with you, wherein the
management of Arshiya Limited (‘Demerged Company' or ‘Arshiya’) and Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited (‘Resulting Company’ or ‘ARIL') (collectively hereinafter referred to as
the ‘Companies’) requasted our report on the share entitiement ratio of equity shares of the
Resulting Company o be issued to the equity sharehoiders of the Demerged Company in
connection with the proposed demerger of Domestic Business Undertaking (‘Demerged
Undertaking') of Arshiya Limited on the Record Date as more elaborately defined in the
proposed Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited, under sections 230 10 232 read with section 66 and section 52 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 hereinafter referred to as ‘the Proposed Scheme’ or
‘the Scheme' or 'the Scheme of Arrangement.
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ZADN & Associates

1. Background:
11 Arshiya Limited (‘Arshiya’ or the ‘Demerged Company’)

111 Arshiya Limited is 2 listed public lmited company incorporated on July 3, 1881
under the Compames Act, 1956 bearing CIN - LY3000MHIE8TPLCO24747 and
its registered office i3 situated at 302, Leval 3, Cesjay House, F - Block, Shiv
Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worki, Mumbai — 400 018. Equity shares
of Arshiya are listed on BSE Limited ('BSE’) and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited ('NSE') in India.

1.1.2 Arshiys, is a flagship company of Arshiya Group having interests in the business
of developing Free Trade Warehousing Zones (FTWZs) and Domeslic
Warehousing Areas ('DWAS') 1o improve logeshics infrastructure in India.

1.1.3 Board of Directors of the Company as on May 12, 2018 are as under:

Mr Ashishkumar Bairagra August 7, 2008
Mr. Ajay Shankaral Mittal October 1, 2011
Mr. Shah Pankaj Rishabh December 31, 2005
M= Arctana Ajay Mittal Octobar 25, 2005
M. Mukesh Kacker Octobar 28, 2009
Mr. Savta Kodain July 10, 2m8
Mr. Santosh Monankal Maheshwall February 8, 2017

1.14 The Authorized, lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of Arshiya as on
May 12, 2018 is as under.

Particulars Amountin INR
Authorised Share Capital:

247,500,000 Equety Shares of Rs, 2/- each 485,000,000
11.000.000 Preference Shares of Rs, 10/ each 110,000,000
Total 605,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital:

229 716 776 Equty Shares of R 2/- each 455,433,562
5,764,619 Preference Shares of Rs. 10V, each 57,646,190
Towal 517,079,742

We are wformed that there are no subsequent changes in the capital structure
and directors on board

115 As stated in the audited financial statements of Arshiya for the year ended
March 31, 2017, Arshiya is in financial stress and had exiled its corporate detit
resiruciurng during FY16 pursuant to which the lending banks have assigned
their financial assets periaining to Arshiya and its other wholly owned
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ZADN & Associates

subsidiaries companies including ARIL 1o Edelwelss Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited (EARC’).

1.1.6 Accordingly, EARC has become the secured lender and all the rights, fitle and
interest of lending banks have wested in EARC. Arshiya has enlered into
Restructuring Agreement with EARC on March 31, 2017 for restruciuring its
bank dues wherein the debt is segregated between Restructured Rupee Loan
which will carry interest of 10% p.a and the restructured loans are payable over
7 yaars tenure and batance loan is to be converted by issuance of equity shares
and Optionally Converlible Redeemable Preference Shares ('OCRPS’) which
may be converted into equity shares al the option of the holder at any time within
18 months from the date of issue of OCRPS.,

1.1.7 As represented by the management, below table descnbes the numbsar of
OCRPS Issued by Arshiya to EARC and their as on date conversion status:

Maximum No of Allotnant of equity
Equity shares 1o D | shares pursuant 10

No. of OCRPS Bakance
srisln ncling allotment of

#Boed upon conve riosn of -
25 on date | equity shares

cormverson of OCRPS OCRFS

506 |- OCRPS 84233 15,485 554 1588 10 5764015 13837 518
Sqmes ¥ - OCRPE 1,310,000 2382302 2,502 %52 -

Senes W - QCRPS an.poo A 764 785 4764 725 . Y
Sarien V - DCRPS 2180000 4764785 4.75%.788 -
Toml 10.76332% 27,397 546 13,500,000 576808 13.897.51€

As per clause 143 of the Proposed Scheme, it is clanified that the OCRPS issued
by Arshiva dees not relate fo Domestic Business and accordingly, no additional /
proportionate considaration shall be payable to s holders upon the Propesed
Scheme becoming effective However. any Corporate Action relaling 1o the
outsianding Serles 1 — OCRPS shall be kepl i absyance 8 last date uplo which
the oplion for conversion is exercisable. Further, in case if there is change in any
parameters of facls or any assumptions stated in this report, the report will undergo
a change to the axtent required.

In reference o above, management mformed that if the said Senes 1 - OCRPS &
converted into equity shares on or before the Record Date, they will receive the
equity shares of ARIL as per share entitement reporl, otherwise. said Series 1 -
OGCRPS shall continue to be in the books of Arshiya not affecting the identical equity
shareholding being created pursuant to Proposead Scheme. Further, we understand
from the management that thera are no on-going dscussions wah any other
londer(s) for issuance of equity shares / convertible instrument and conversion of
converiible instruments other than outstanding 5,764,619 Senes 1 - OCRPS held by
EARC

12 Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited ("ARIL’ or the ‘Resulting Company”’)

121 ARIL i$ @ unksted public company incorporated on April 7, 2008 under the
Companies Act, 1956 bearing CIN - US3000MH2008PLC180007 and iis
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ZADN & Associates

registered office is situated at 302, Lavel 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annke Besant Road, Worli, Murnbai — 400 018.

1.2.2 ARIL is currently engaged In the business of providing Private Freight Terminal
(PFT) and Rail Transportation Services (Rall). ARIL is alsc engaged in container
train business and holding Category — | Ecense which allows ARIL 10 operate on
Indian Rail network on pan india basis bath domestic and exim raffic.

1. 2.3 Board of Directors of the Company as on May 12, 2018 is as under:

Name of the Director Begin Date
Mr. Ashishkumar Baragra January 16, 2010
Mr. Nawnit Jugsl Kishore Choudhary January 18, 2013
Mr. Shah Pankal Rishabh March 27, 2015

1.2.4 The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of ARIL as on
May 12, 2018 is as unde.

Authorised Share Capital:

45,000 000 Equity Shares of Re 10/- sach 450,000,000
Total 450,000,000
\ssued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capits|:

42,384 417 Equity Shares of e 10V- each 423,844,170
Total 423,844,170

We are Informed that there are no subsaquent changes in the capial structure
and directors on board. As per ciause 9 of the Propesed Scheme, pursuant 10 and
upon the Proposed Scheme becoming effective, It is proposed that Authorised

Share Capital of ARIL, without any further application, act, instrument or deed,
shall be reclassfied to 22,50 00,000 Equty Shares of Rs, 2/ each

125 As on date, ARIL Is a wholly owned subsidiary of Arshiya Limited as the entire
paid up equity share capital is held by Arshiya and its nominees.

1.2.6 Managesment of ARIL informed that currently there are no OCRPS holders m ARIL

and there are no on-going discussions with any lenders for issuance of equity
ghares [ convertible mstruments.

1.2.7 The management of Arshiya Group has informed that a3 part of the averall group
reorganization, the management has filed a Scheme of Amalgamation of Arshiya
Industrial & Distnbution Hub Limited ('AIDHL') and Arshiya Transport and
Handling Limited ('ATHL') with Arshiya Rail Infrastructwre Limited (ARIL' or
‘Resulting Company') with National Company Law Tribunal a1 Mumbal and
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ZADN & Associates

128

128

1210

1211

12142

awaiting their approval. The apponted date for the proposed merger is Oclober 1,
2015 as stated In the Scheme of Amalgamation

AIDHL and ATHL are 100% subsidiaries of Arshiya and hence fellow subsidiaries
of ARIL.

Further, based an the earlier Scheme of Amalgamation as adopted by the board
of the companies, for every one equity share of AIDHL and ATHL, one equity
share of ARIL is 1o be issued. Accordingly. ARIL would issue 14,992 995 equity
shares 1o the shareholders of AIDHL (i.e. Arshiya) and 50,000 equity shares to
the shareholders of ATHL (L.e. Arshiya),

Further AIDHL has issued 1,220,000 Zero percent Optionally Converdible
Redeemabie Preference Shares to Bank of Baroda (80B) against conversion of
lcan amounting 1o INR 1,20,000.000 which was approved by Special Resolution
passed on January 17, 2018. The management has mformed us that as per the
terms of the kssuance of OCRPS, Bank of Baroda shall be entiled to equity
shares of AIDHL on conversion of the said OCRPS, if the Company fail to make
the redemption before the end of sbah year. However, management has
reprasanted that the said QCRPS shall be convened inlo equity shares before the
schame of merger becoming effective. Also as represented fo us, Arshiya
(Holding Company) has faken a decision in consensus with BOB that Arshiya
shanbuyweocRPSandemvmmosmimoequkyahmaAlDHLsmn
redeem the same before the scheme of merger becoming effective

As per the Preamble paragraph of the Proposed Scheme, the Proposed Scheme
is also conditicnal upon the aforesaid merger scheme being effective first and
ARIL to continua to be wholly owned subsidsary company of Arshiya as on the
Record Date.

Please note that if the sbove mpresentation by the management of Arshiya and
ARIL about purchase of OCRPS from BOB and conversion or redemption of the
same before the ENective Date of the merger and the Proposed Scheme is not
affected then in that scenario, cur recommendation of the share entitlement ratio
wilt need to be revisited and might undergo a change, which we are unable to
commen! upon and it is not part of our current engagement. Further, we
understand from the management that there are no an-going discussions with any
other lender{s) for issuance of equity or convertible instruments by AIDHL and
ATHL.

2. Objective of this Report:

21 As described hereinbefore in this report. the Board of Dwectors of Arshiya proposes fo
damerge its Domestic Business Undertaking and transfer into ARIL.
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ZADN & Associates

22

23
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211

Strctly Prvate and Confidential

As dgefined in the Proposed Scheme, ‘Domestic Business Undertaking' means
domestic business activities pertaining to devalopment of Domestic Warehousing Areas
('DWAs') inchuding investmenis held in the Resulting Company.

As informed by the management, the aforesaid proposed demerger is in line with
Arshiya Group's inlentions fo reorganize ifs corporate structure and businesses which is
spread across various group companies (wholly owned subsidiaries) in order to
integrale / consoidate its operations by housing similar businesses into respective
enfities a& stated below:

| FTW2s business in Arshiya or into an independent entity whally owned by
Arshiya.
i DWAs, RAIL, PFT and Inland Container Depot business in ARIL.

in reference to above, management has informed that the integration / reorganization of
cupomwmwumdthegroupislobeachievedbywayoflramluolDomesﬁc
Business Undertaking through the Proposed Scheme with April 1, 2019 as the
Appointed Date,

We underetand that pursuant to the Proposed Scheme. abl the equity shareholders of
Arshiya as on the Record Date will be iseuad equity shares of ARIL as per share
entitlenent ratio as consideration for the proposed transfer and vesting of Domestic
Business Undertaking into ARIL.

The equity shares of Arshiya are listed on BSE and NSE in india. Accordingly, upon the
Proposed Scheme coming to effect. the equity shares to be aliotted 1o all the equity
shareholders of Arshiya on the Record Date by ARIL vwif 2iso be listed and / or admitted
1o trading on BSE and NSE in India, subject to applicable complances.

Upen the Proposed Scheme becoming effective, afl the equily shares held by Arshlya
of its nominee in ARIL shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled.

In connection with the Proposed Scheme, we have been requesied 1o provide a repord
on the share entitement ratio of equity shares of ARIL lo the shareholders of Arshiya as
proposed by the management.

We understand that consequent 1o the Proposed Scheme and issuance of equily
shares Yo all the equity shareholders of Arshiya as contesmplated In he Proposed
Scheme, there will be no impact on the economic and beneficial interest of the equity
sharehokiers of Arshiya

We understand that this equity share entitlement ratio report will be used for the above-

mentioned purpose only and to the extent mandatorily required under appbcable laws of
India.

For the purpose of our report. we have relied on the Indormation, explanations and
representations provided to us by the management of Arshiya and ARIL We have not
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ZADN & Associates

carried out any Independent tests to establish the accuracy of such information,
explanations and representations In addiion, we have listed the scope of work in the
course of our agsignment, noling any Smitalions on our assignment, This repord is
subject to the attached kmiling conditions and terms foe thie assignment, as may be
described in this repon or In our engagement letier,

3. Sources of Information:

For the purpese of this share entiement ratio exercse, we have raliad on the following
information provided to us by the management of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company and information available in the public domain:

31 Draft Scheme of Arrangement betwaen Arahiya and ARIL proposed to be adopted at
the Board meatings of both the companies,

32 Scheme of Amaigamation of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited ('AIDHL)
and Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited {ATHL') with Arshiya Rall Infrastructura
Limated | ARIL )

23 Audited financial statements of the Demerged and Resuling Company for the year
ended March 31, 2017,

34 Current Shareholding pattern of the Demerged Companies and Resulting Company.

34 Dalredcapnalstrucmroandemnyshmo!mn.proposod!obeissuedtolhc
sharsholders of Arshiya on demerger of the Domestic Business Undertaking into
ARIL:

36 Representalion with regards 10 dealing with QOCRPS issued %o Bank of Baroda by
AIDHL as detailed in paragraph 1.2.10 of this report;

37 Other relevant data and information provided to us either in wrilten or oeal Tom of In
form of soft copy and discussions with the reprasentatives of management of Arshiya

Group;
48 Representation letter dated May 23, 2018, and -
. ,,- &:‘S-CF: < ¥
39 Relevant information in public domain. Fa7 N ah
] '!'l-é,"l".- |]
R}
Etrictly Private and Confidential 8
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4. Exclusions and Limitations:

41

42

43

4.4

45

46

47

46

49

Strictly Prvate and Confidential N o

1’Nsnponissubjedto!hel‘mw'sdwmmin.Asstmnnreponstohgmad
hmm.ammmm,mcmanmmdeocmmsam

Oxnwakwasnotdesmedmvmmawuracymteiabiﬂyofmenhnm
mmmwmﬁimmmmmmmonbmmmm

oonducwdptwem.atuﬁtsumvesﬁgﬂomhmmmwwmyawmmyof
the information suppled to us.

irformaton usadbyushoarmeatuufeondusbnaaselwthaenwmchmayoccu
wbeequedbmeoomomnofscopedwottandﬂmda!edthempm.

lnadm.mdonottakemyou'naﬁonuresponebmwbrmychamesmme

WefunwasmmummmmdManmcmmmuwno

waﬂanﬁmammdﬂfadushmhgmimpadonmodelennmﬁondmeshare
entitlement ratio.

\We have been given 10 understand by the managements of the Companies that they
mmmeaﬂmdmm.Ammly,wedomemany
Wammymdmmmmmmaﬁmm_we
assume no responsibifity for any erors In the above infoemation furnished by the
CUnpummerimadonmepreoen!emmise.

Whistﬂmasa\RDEmhasbmukenbmmmefaWalmmmm
Mmm.mm.wwdw%man.MDtEmm
smmmmmmmtsmmmmammfmmemmg
stated herein Accordingly, we maka no representalion or warranty, express o imphed
mrespedofﬂ\awmmess.auﬁ'\enmormracyofsuchfacmal statements. We
expressly disciaim all liabilites, which may anse based upon the information used In
m:epaLWomnotlhblemmhirdputyi\mtiontomoismoﬂmsropon.

We have aiso refied oo information available in public domain; however the accuracy
and&mlmsdﬂnsamhasnotbemindependenwvmﬁedbyus.

Any parson / party, intending 10 provide finance / invest in the shares / business of the
oompmyuhrwmrmnwhatsoeve.shaoosoanusemmewm
professicnal advice and afier cairying out their own due diigence procadures 1o ensure
that they are making an informed decision.

Moxemlaeofmnmgonmeshamenﬁﬂammmbforthepmposed demerger
isnotandmualnotbelrﬂerpmbdasouropinionota&h\meofmeabsouemrka
valueorindepenmmrvalueonneequkysha-esoranyciassmmmbefofoqmy
gharas pee or past demernger.

P
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5.

410

4.1

412

wmdmsmmmdmrvhwmmepmmmm
emmmmmmmmummmwmwmmmmm
Canpmbs.mepoﬂisnoLmdeibemas.omoﬁnmdoetﬂyhgihe
cornpianoeofthepmposoddemergerofmoemugedumanakhg with the
pcovhbnsdanyuwormylegalmmmismmingtmmhpfw
Scheme.

mrmcmumwmnmubecMBdbbohhenmmnm-bhangadm

Thiamponhasbeenpmpatodemmivdyfaumolmiyamdmmmdmw
wmmmdmmmashmwﬁumnlwﬁoformmdsma
Hance.this:epoﬂshoutdmtbepuwidedorusedfotwpurpoee.wt!tmwrnwmlao;
in part without o mmmmm.bwwmwmdwwmmm,m
exoeptmaasismmwculerhﬂisrepon However, we understand thal you mary
shnhismpmmhmadvmmmmopmedmacmnaswwas
5qumom.mmmnntwadonaacoemwmmumymmr
advimoranvmirdpammragardbmismpon.

Wammmlommnmmmmtwpmbylm management as
detailed in paragraph 1.1.7 and paragraph 1.2.10 of this report. The share entiiement
mbumﬁonedhuﬁmhmmba‘sdihmeremmaﬁons.wmewehkem
resmmwwmwmﬁmmmmammmmmembym
mmmmmmmmm,mmmwmwmbwmmumnom
Mhmudmemmnmmcmﬂdhsvemmwmmesmmmememmm
We are unable to comment on the quantum {whether substantial or not) of impact due
to non-fulfillment of the actions commitied in those representations.

BASIS OF DETERMINATION OF SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO:

Our evaluation towards the share entitlement ratio considers the following aspecis:

51

52

53

54

The estimate of net assats, working capital requirements and capital basa required
for the Domestic Business Undertaking / ARIL as independently assessed by the
management of Arshiya and ARIL,

Based on the above assessment the management has proposed the number of
equity shares to be issued such that ARIL is appropriately capitaized:

As on date, ARIL is a wholly owned subsidiary ('WOS') of Arshiya and shall
continue to be WOS of Arshiya till the effective date | Record Cate of the Proposed
Scheme.

As getailed eadier, the management (s also in the process of merging AIDHL and
ATHL with ARIL. all WOS's of Arshiya.

EFTRT
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55

56

5.7

58

59

510

511

Strictly Private and Configential

Pursuamtoctwsasinmproposodsmemwihmgafdsmdealmm Series 1 -
OCRPS as delailed in paragraph 1.1.7 of this report and representations by the
management m paragraph 1.2 10 of this report would be implemented prior to the
Record Date, the equity shares issued in ARIL fo the shareholders of Arshiya would
be in the same proportion in which they hold equity shares in Arshiya on the Record
Date and such allotment would be value neutral fo the equity shareholders of
Arshiya,

As per Part V clause 7.8 of the Proposed Scheme, upon the scheme becoming
offective, all the equity shares held by the Demerged Company of its nominee in the
Resulting Company shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulied. As such, the
aquity shareholding pattarn of ARIL post implementation of the representations and
the Proposed Scheme, would be identical to the equity shareholding pattermn of
Arshiya.

Accordingly as stated in clause 1.5 of the Proposed Scheme, all the equity
shareholders of Arshiva as on the Record Date would be entitled to equity shares of
ARIL In the same proportion in which they currently own directly in Arshiya resulting
into identical sharsholders 1o Arshiya and ARIL, Accordingly, even after the
Proposed Scheme coming into effect, the economic and beneficial interast will
remain within the existing shareholders of Arshiya in the same proportion as they
hotd in Arshiya as on the Record Date.

Thus, share entitiement ratio would not have any impact on the ultimate value of the
equity sharenoldars of Arshiya and the proposed demerger of Domestic Business
Undertaking of Arshiya into ARIL will be value-neutral fo Arshiya’s equity
shareholders. The background and rationsle for the scheme has been provided in
the Proposed Scheme.

Accordingly, the determination of share entitlerment ratio of the companies is at best
an internal arrangement between the Demergad Company and Resulting Company
and its sharehokiers and a detarled valuation of the Companies to determing the
share entitiement rabo would not be relevant in the present case.

The share entitiement ratio and the number of equity shares 1o be aliotted pursuant
to demarger, is of no material relevance since there will be no lass af economic
interest in the hands of equity shareholders of Arshiya. Accordingly, for the purpose
of recommending a share entittement ratio we are not attempting to aurive at the
ahsolute values of equity shares of each company.

Accordingly, in our opinion based on the reprasentations and information provided
by the managemeni, as there will be no change in the shareholding pattern of
Arshiva pursuant 1o the Scheme, no valuation report is required as per Circular
CFD/DILACIRI2017/21 dated Mareh 10, 2017 issued by SEBI, as may be amended
from time to time.
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ZADN & Associates

542 Further, we have been informed by the management of ARIL that upon the effective
date, the Authonzed Equity Share Capital of Arshiya would be increased by the
requisite amount, if required, so that issued paid up share capital post the allotment
pursuant fo the Scheme is lower than the authorized capial.

513 Considering the above, the share entitement ratio for demerger of Domestic
Business Undertaking of Arshiya into ARIL, as suggested by the managements of
both the Companies and as stated under we believe that the share cnfitiement ratio
s fair and equitable considering that all the shareholders of Arshiya upon demerger
will become the shareholders of ARIL and ultimate beneficial owners of Arshiya and
ARIL will be held by the same sharchoklers in same proportion. Accordingly,

“{ (One) fully paid equity share of Face Vaiue INR 2 (Rupees Two) each of ARIL

is to be issued for every 2 (Two) fully paid equity shares of Face Value INR 2
(Rupees Two) each heid in Arshiya.”

For ZADN & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Zulfigar Sh‘vn ".j-.:‘ s L, ,)'/
Partner s 2

\ \
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M. No.100666
Place: Mumbai
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To,

CHATURVEDI

Annexure G

SHAH

Chartered Accountonts

The Board of Directors,
Arshiya Limited

302, Level 3, Ceejay House,
F-Block, Shiv Sagar Estate,
Dr. Annie Besant Read, Worll,
Mumbal - 400 018

Independent Auditor's Certificate in respect of proposed accounting treatment as
mentionad in Scheme of Amalgamation Between Arshiya Limited (‘Demerged
Company’ or ‘Arshiya’) AND Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited ('Resulting Company'
or 'ARILYAND their respective shareholders (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Scheme').

M

This Certificate Is Issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement with
Arshiya Limited (‘the Company’).

The accounting treatment proposed by the Company is specified in Clause 8 of
the Scheme. For easa of reference. the said Clause 8 of the Scheme, duly
authenticated on behalf of the Company, are reproduced in Annexure to this
Certificate ('the Statement’) and Initialled by us only for the purposes of
identification.

Management’s Responsibility

3

The responsibility for preparation of the Scheme and its compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, including the applicable Indian Accounting Standards read
with the rules made thereunder and other Generally Accepted Accounting
principles, is that of the Board of Directors of the Companies involved, This
responsibility includes the design, Implementation and maintenance of internal
conirol relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Scheme and applying
an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonabie in
the circumstances

Auditor's Responsibllity
4

Our responsibility is only fo examine and report whether the accounting
treatment proposed by the Company as specified in Clause 8 of the Scheme as
reproduced in the Statement is in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified in Section 133 or any other provisions of the Companies
Act 2013 and in line with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.
Nothing contained in this Certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of,
or In connection with the services that are subject to this Certificate, will extend
any duty of care that we may have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any
financial statements of the Company.

L

Heod Othiee: 713715 Tusaani Cranbars 212, Naiman Fonl, Mamba - 400 02¢, Indés. Tel. =91 22 5021 B500 « Fax +01 22 3021 3595

Oar Ottices: 44 - 46, 4th Flaot “C” Wing. Mitz Caw!. Nanman Foim Mumb - 400001 Inda Tel: +91 224510 9700 = Fex «9122 £5108722.
WAL wwweasind s
Branch : Banaglom
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CHATURVEDI

SHAH

Chortated Accountants

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) (the ‘Guidance
Note‘) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAJ) and
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
20132 in so far as applicable for the purpose of this Certificate, The Guidances
Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the |CAl

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on
Quality Contral (SQC) 1, Quality Contro! for Firms that Perform Audits and
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related
Services Engagements. Further cur examination did not extend to any other
parts and aspects of a legal and proprietary nature in the afcresaid Scheme.

Opinion
7.

Based on our examinaton and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management of the Company, we are of the opinion that
the accounting treatment propased by the Company as specified in Clause 8 of
the Scheme and reproduced in the Statemert, IS In compliance with SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 and
circulars issued there under and all the applicable Indlan Accounting Standards
notified by the Ceniral Government under the Companies Act 2013 and other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

Restriction on Use

8.

The Certificate is provided to the Board of Directors of the Company in
connection with the scheme and for the purpose of onward submission to the
National Company Law Tribunal and other regulatory authorities including
Securities and Exchange Board of India and Stock Exchange(s) and should not
be used by any other person/ authority or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we
do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or
to any other persan to whom this Certificate is shown or into whose hands it may
come without our prior consent in writing.

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101720W

|

[ 4

Vij;y Napawaliya
Pariner
Membership No.: 108859

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2018
Encl : as above
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Annexure H

Chartered Capital And Investment Ltd.

5.0, 215 ATRIUM', Andhon Kuna Road, Andhen (East), Mumba-400 093
Tol B1-22-5602 4111 / 6222 = Websile | waw.chaneredcapital.net

Date: May 24, 2018

To, To,

The Board of Directors The Board of Directors

Arshiya Limited Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited
302, Cetjay House, Level - 3 302, Ceejay House, Level -3
Shiv Sagar Estate, F Block Shiv Sagar Estate, F- Biock

Dr. Annie Besant Road Or. Annie Besant Road

Worll, Mumbal - 400018, India Worll, Mumbal - 400018, Indla
Dear Sirs, ‘

We M/s, Chartered Capital and Investment Limited {'Chartered Capital’ or
"CCIL'), SEBI registered Merchant Banker, having SEBI Permanent
Registration No, INMOOC0O0401LS have been appointed by the Arshiva Limited
(‘Arshiya’ or ‘Demerged Company’) and Arshiya Ral Infrastructure
Limited ("ARIL' or 'Resulting Company’) to provide a fairness opinion on
the Share Entitiement Ratio Raport by M/s. ZADN K& Associates, Chartered
Accountants having their office at 4% Floor, Shreeniwas House, MHazarimal
Somani Marg, Next to MTNL Exchange Byilding, Fart, Mumbai-400001, who
were the appointed for Issuing repoct on the Sharé Entitiement Ratio of 2quity
shares of the Resulting Company te be issued Lo the shareholders of the
Demerged Company in connéction with the propeosed demerger of Domestic
Business Undertoking ("Demerged Undertaking’) of Arshiya Limited in the
prmposed Schome of Arrangement betwean Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rall
Infrastructure Limited, under sections 230 to 232 read with section 66 and
section 52 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
hereinafter referred to as ‘the Proposed Scheme’ or ‘the Scheme’ or 'the
Scheme of Arrangement’.

Rega Office 777 Manakant, Opp vV S Hospita!, Elllsingge, Anmadabad - 360 006
CIN NO: La5201GI1988PLCOORS T/




2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

4.6

The fairness opinion has been issued for the propoesed demearger of Domestic
Busingss Undertaking of Arshlya Limited into Arshiya Rall Infrastructure
LUmited pursuant to the requirement and In complience with SEBI (Listing
Oblgations and Disclosure Raguirement) Regulation, 2015 read with SEBI
Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, SEBI Groular
No. CFD/DILI/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI Cugular No,
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/26 dated March 23, 2017, SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR2017/105 doted September 21, 2017 and SEBI Greular No,
CFD/DIL3/CIR 2018/2 dated January 03, 2018

COMPANIES THAT ARE PARTY TO THE PROPOSED SCHEME

Arshiya Limited 15 a listed public limited company Incorporated on July 3,
1081 uynder the Companies Act, 1956  bearing CIN -
LS3000MH1981PLCD24747 and its registered office is situated at 302, Level 3,
Ceejay House, F - Block, Shiv Sagar £state, Dr. Annie Basant Road, Worll,
Mumbal - 400 018, Equity anares of Arshiya are listed on BSE Limitad {"BSE’)
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (*NSE’) In [ndia,

Arshiva, is 2 flagship company of Arshiya Group having Interests in the
business of devoloping Free Trade Warehousing Zones [‘FTWZs') and
Domaestic Warshousing Ar2as ('DWAS'} to improve logistics Infrastructure in
Indis.

Arghiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“ARIL™) m & unlisted public company
incorparated on April 7, 2008 under the Companies Act, 1956 bearing CIN -
VO3000MHZ008PLCIBOS0T and Its registerad office 16 situated at 302, Level
3, Cesjay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worll,
Mumbai - 400 018,

ARIL = currently engagad In the business of providing Private Fraight
Terminal (PFT) and Rail Transportation Services (Rall). ARIL is also engaged
in container train business and halding Category - 1 license which allows ARIL
to operate on Indian Rall network on pan India basis both domestic and exim
traffic.

As pn date, ARIL Is-a wholly owned subsidiary of Arshiya Limited os the entice
paid up equity share capital is held by Arshiya and Its nominees.

The management of Arshiya Group has Infarmed that as part of the oversll
group reorgatizetion, the management has filed o Scheme of Amalgamation
of Arshiys [ndustnal & Distribution Hub Limited ("AIDHL') and Arshiya
Transport and Handling Umited ('ATHL') with Arshiya Rail Infrestructure
Limited ("ARIL' or 'Resulting Company’) with Naticnal Company Law
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2.7

2.8

341

3.2

Tribunal at Mumbatl and is awaiting their approval. The appointed date for the
propased merger s October 1, 2015 as stated in the Scheme of
Amalgamation

AIDHL and ATHL are 100% subsidiares of Arshlya and hence fellow
subsidiaries of ARIL

As per the Presmble paragraph of the Proposed Scheme, the Proposed
Schame is alse conditional upon the aforesaid merger scheme as mentioned
in point 2.6 above being effective first. In case the scheme as mentioned in
point 2.6 abova Is withdrawn or ARIL ceases to be a wholly owned subsidiary
of Arshiya as on the Record date, the proposed scheme will alse be
withdrawn,

INFORMATION RECEIVED AND RELIED UPON BY US FOR THE
FAIRNESS OPINION

We, CCIL, mave prepared the Fairness Opinlon on the basis of the following
Infarmation received from the management of the Companies:

a) Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya and ARIL propesed to be
adopted at the Board meetings of both the companies;

b)Perused the Report on Share Entitiement Ratio given by M/s. ZADN &
Associates, Chartered Accountants dated May 24, 2018,

¢) Scheme of Amaigamation of Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
("AIDML’) and Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited ['ATHL') with
Arghiya Ra ' Infrastructure Limited ("ARIL');

d) Audited financial statements of the Demerged and Resulting Company for
the year ended March 31, 2017;

@) Current Shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company,

f) Desired capial structure and equity shares of ARIL proposed to be issued
te the shareholders of Arshiya on demerger of the Domestic Business
Undertaking into ARIL;

g)Such other information and explanations that have been provided to us by
the management of Arshiya and ARIL;

h) Releyant Informaticn in public domain.

This Report Is issuad on the understanding that Arshiya Limited and Arshiya
Rall Infrastructure Limited has drawn our attention to all the relevant
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a1

4.2

43

4.4

4.5

46

4.7

matters, of which they were aware of, concerning the respective company’s
financial position and businesses, which may have an impact on this Report,

Qur work does not constitute an audit or certification of the historicai financial
ctatements of Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited,
Including thelr working results referred to in this Report. Accordingly, we are
unable to and do not express any opinion on the accuracy of any financal
infarmation referred to in this Report. We assume no responsibliity for any
errors in the information submitted by the Managements and their impact on
the present exerciss.

RISCLAIMER

We have not considered any finding made by other external agencies In
carrying out this work,

This report’is intended solely for the limited purpese mentioned earlier and
should not be regarded a@s & recommendation to the investors to Invest In
Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited or deal in any form in
the securities of the Companies and should also not be considered as a final
equity value of the Companies.

Our report coes. net, In any way, guarantee that the equity shares of
Companies will continue to remain at the price on which the valuation of the
shares takes place.

Qur report Is for the benefit of and confidential use by the Companies. This
repert Is not meant for save and except as specified above, under any Indian
or foreign law, statute, act guideiing or similar instruction, The Companies are
prohibited from using this report other than for its sole limited purpose and
not to make & copy of this report available to any party other than those
required by statute for carrying out the limited purpose of this report.

We have not made an appraisal or independent valuation of any of the assets
or liabilities of any of the Companies and have not conducted an audit or due
diligence or reviewed/ validated the financisl data except what is provided for
in the Valuation Report and financial data provided to us by the Company or
Valuer.

This Certificate may be executsd In one or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemad an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and
the same.

During the course of our work, we have relled upon assumptions made by
management of the companies, These assumptions require the exercise of
judgemnent ard are subject to uncertainties,
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4.8 1In no circumstances whatsoever, will Chartered Capital and Investment
Limited, its Directors and employees, accept any responsibliity of fiability
towards any third party for consequences arising out of the use of this repont

V.  OPINION ON SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO REPORT

The proposed demerger of Domestic Business Undertaking of Arshiya into
ARIL will be valug neutral to the equity shareholders of Arshiya, there will be
no Impact on the economic and beneficial Interest of the equity sharehokiers
of Arshiya and It would not have any impact on the ultimate value of the
equity shareholders of Arshiya. Based on the information, material, data
made avallable to us, including the Share Entitiement Ratio Report, to best of
our knowledge and belief, Share Entitiement Ratio suggested by M/s. ZADN &
Associates, Chartered Accountants under the Scheme, |.e.

"1 (One) fully paid equity share of Face Value INR 2 (Rupees Two)

each of ARIL is to be issued for every 2 (Two) fully paid equity shares

of Face Value INR 2 (Rupees Two) each held in Arshiya is Fair.”
Thanking you,

Yours falthfully,

For and on behalf of,
For Chartered Capital and Investment Limited

A [y st
’%
Amitkumar Gattani
Assistant Vice President N\
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ANNEXURE-I-1

Arshiya Limited
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Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3151 March, 2019

(Fea, in Lakh)
Yoar Endod Yoar Endod
TR Mol | yyst March, 2019 318 March, 2018
INCOME
Rénanoe from oparstions i 1513608 Bi420Q
Other nocme 25 219248 102005
Total ncome (1) 15332.4¢ 956214
UXPENSES
Cost of Iventones (Lease Lang) 20 258354 .
Materlal handing and off'er charges 3 a7as 32061
Employes tenafls sopermes 32 17208 145608
Finance costs N 112305 1370154
Depreciation and amarization expenses 34 140222 208167
Othes expenses 6 1.038.20 1.33248
Total Exparsss (1) 1814820 1636333
Profitiloss) befors sxcaptional Beens and tax (1) mwu)J {9,401.13)
Excepsonad Borrs (met) pl 70075 (12,250 84|
Profitijloss) bafore tax (2.516.49) 339566
Tax wxpanss: £
Cutmant tax :
Detorrad tax "
Profit]loss) for the your _——MP 3.896.68 |
OTHER COMPREHENSVE INCOME
Item mol 1o be rechssifiod to peofl and loss n
|sssaquent porioos:
Remegauemact of gainallossss) on defined bane/il At 289
pans
Othor Comprohansive incomai(ioss) for the year 3.1 (269
Total Comprahansive (LossIncome for the yaar (3.592.30 3.892.97
Eamng par ahure deca wike of R9. 2 sach) 58
Basie st D (1.48) 213
Nooes o the Tnandal statemonts 1108?
Aa per cur repert of even date
For Chaturveds & Shah LLP For and on bahalf of the 8oard of Diroctors of
Chartered ACOoumants Arshiya Limited
Fiom RegR¥atoo Number 101 720WNANV100355
Ao A 'L v -
IJ 3 = e 7 -
W ':L\"‘"\\N——Mk
Viay Napawaliys Ajay 8 Manal Archana A Mittal
Parret Chaeman and Managing Dyvecior Joint Managing Dracier
Membership Number: 108858 DN 00228355 OIN: 00703208
= ’ .‘/- ;
Ashishumar Baragra S, Mahesvwari
. Indapandent Drecker . Chief Fnancial Offcer
DIN: 00040551
? " /‘A
! —~
L of L Amedow’
Place: Mumbal Savith Dalad Dineah Kumar Sodani
Date: 2Tth May, 2018 Company Secretary VP Accounds & Firance
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Arshiya Limited
Cash Flow Statemant for the yoar ended 31st March, 2019

¥ Lokn
Cash fow from cperating activities
ProftLoss) before tax [2.516.4%) 3285550
Adjustmants for
Sundry Cances wirkien tack (net) (266.27) {178.88)
Descand npMwten off of Property, 2ant snd equipent and neangbie assels 166 34 ¢
Gan on moretzaiion of Propacty. Pant ans Bqupmaent (ftaler Note No. 52) - (1548321 29)
Proft on deposal of Propecty. plant snd sguipmiert (nel) 1033 ‘
Bod getis 318 -
Nowance for doutul dette L) Y33
Seenet of came eas 12001 7¢)
Loy oo snbe of invesioan] in sckaciary (Reflar Note No. 24.2) . 433818
Oeg and amoet < 1,68222 206167
Flrance cosls 126 8 12,701 54
Urwisding 1 L o lan 16 subadiares (420.02) {10881
Imarestinzome o faed deposits 0% -
Latelty Covporan of Comgound Fnansal instrunans (OCRPS) 1853 17) -
Firsrow! gasrarine mcome B89 56) (538 31)
Fomign exchenge dferencs [ned) 12 81 (1%
Opeeating profit bafere working capitsl chaapes TB1588 5443087
Adpsimants for
Changs n ivpeiodes 2,300 4 - J
(ncresss) in Neancio! snd oher sssats (2,358 47) 12,183 10)
(Decrasse) in fnonoal ord other labitice (B44 £8) {44 £30.30)
Cach generated from operations 29725 (8,268 61
Deect e paved (nat of refundy) Jiian oLk u;l
Net cash: flow from opersting sctivites A 17358 1807478
Canh flow from investing activities
Puschase of progeity, plart ead equpments 278! (49 78}
Furchase of intorgisie peeats . (1,120 co)
Puschase of Capeal work i progress 4nd ntang i 55013 wnoder dovelopment 14537 .
Procesds Yon sak of propary, pant and ogupment 238 &0 00
Froceeds Pom moned2aion of propecly. pEnt and sgopmests - 41,000
Capie advance {10204 #324)
Ihwasimen! nade b eguly shares 12300) (165 50)
Saw ol v " uksidan . 350 84
Loans given 10 subsidisries (net) 189210 133.278.20)
Indisesd rcome on feed deposia 019
Net cash llow from investing actvities B) 75611 08917
Cuah flow from financing sctivities
Is800 of Sgquity shares {rdusing Secursyy Premium)| . 1520838
Noney recanved agnnst share wivissis 1520 86525
Proconss franm Nan-Curent Barcwngs 2461142 320000
Ropagmarnt of 20n.2umort Domowings (4,248 29} nenTie)
Short-jorm bomuw ngs (Nel) (122765, 564364
Ungad Dederd dResdarn 10 |EFF Ajc 1204} .
Imerast paxt (1.200.8%) {6727 70)
Net cash Now from linascing activites ©) (1,048.7% Y416
Net IncreassDocrusne) in cash and cash eguivalents (A+B+C) 11479 SB53
Cash and cash equhadwets il ha Eaginring of the pear 135.73 17
Cash and cash equivalents at the sod of the year (Redes Note No. 13 and 14) 21,0 13673
T~
4’7{1‘ 4 So% \§
/«,\‘» 7N
< Yo \
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Arshlya Limited
Cash Flow Statemant for the year ended 31st March, 2019

CRANgs N SaBIRGE anses Yo Manong St es RS i Lakk)
Loag term Short term

et tragmrs Borowings Borowin

AS at 181 Apal 2048 82007 14 10433 8¢

Acd. Transachion cost 30577 -

Less: Corveruon of Labdiy Component of Conpounc Fnancial Instruments (OCRPS) inte Equity 110.34261) .

Agd Nan cash ilers a5 -

AgdiLess. Caah Tow (net) 1363579 (1.227.09;
| As ot 31t March, 3019 j817008 020108

Notes:

1. Brackal wxicsdns cadh outfiow,

2. Tha above tash fiaw statemant Nas een prepesd undar tha Indract Mated™ 23 sat out i IND AS 7 on Stsemest of Cash Fow
3 Classfication of Lund Yom Propesty, phit and egulprment 1o (ivelories has teen considered as noan cash tems (Reder note no 44}

Notes 1o e rancal Salmmanis 1to &7

AS PRl oW epon of evan gite

For Chaturvadi & Shah LLP Far and on Sehall of the Board of Directors of
Chadered Accountants Arshiya Limited

Fim Regsxaten Namber 101720WAWW1 003

Q‘\w\,\\,.d.: o (Tt

Ajay B Mittal Auchana A Mittel
Crsimman and Managng Dirseter Joed Mansgng Deector
N 00228355 DN 00703208
l hishkumar Bairagra / S. Maheshwar
Indspendent Diector /  Chef Finsnos Officar
DlNJ?(D!SGRA
f \
' / M;_
Place: Mumbai ﬂ-ﬁl Dinosh Kumar Sodaon
Date: 2THh May, 2019 Company Secoetary ‘WP Accounts & Foance

(
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the ial sata ! randed 315t 9

Corporate lsformation

Arshya Limitos (e Comparty) iz b mdos supply choin and iregested fog stics inksstructure sohnon provdor ona i eagoged n the
busness of Free Trade and Warehousng Zone (FTAZ), Domesic Worehowsng Zone and valie adaed senices along wil
Gavel ORI, CORIONS wnd eaaitien anoe of FTWZ.

These sujenerts compnses of fimancial slalenuss of Arshipa Sovied (CIN | LS3000MH198 1PLCC24747) e 10 yoar aded 318t
Mawrch, 2019 The Company iy a public company domicied i inda and i3 incorparsied on 3d July, 1981 under e prosisions of the
Compankes A applicable n India The segisiered ofice of the cormpary (s boated ot 302, Level 3, Cesfay Mowse Shiv Sagar Estale,
Faod, Or Avnne Besart Road, '‘Work, Musshs- 400 018,

FIVZ's ae devvloped under the provsions of Specal ECoramie Zome Act 2008 and Ihe Specind Econnsue Zone Rukes, 2006.
The Campany’s eguty shares am hisiod on (he Bombiay Stock Exchange (35S) and Malanal Stock Exchiange INSE) of i@,

Thm Frsncal ststicrarts of the Compaey for the yee srated 31a! March, 20719 were spproend and sdopieg by the Bowd of Orecons
n ther meetng held on 27 My, 2018

Basis of proparation of firanclal statemonts

The franos! statemests s prepweec N accondance wih ndan Accouning Stanclards (s AST) nobfsd by the Mustty of Coponste
AMfars "MCA") pursaant (o the Secticn 133 of the Companes Azt 20135 {The Acr') read with of the Companes {indian Accounting
Stardads) Rules 2015 (a5 amerdad) and oindr [Sevart proviaions of the Azt

The financial Staterants 20 Papaod 0N & MSIOC0! Cost Conventon bass, excepl for cortaln fnanc d assols ard 1atiBes measwed
" e vihe

The fnoncip shalements e preseniad In Indion Rupees [Rs ) which s fe Company's functiord and prezentation cummency and all
vakes e reunded to hie noorsset lakh as per he egukement of schoaduls |IL unfess when cthersise ndicated.

Sgaiticant Accounting Polickes
Proparty, Plant and Equipment

Progaity, plant end squiomen! Mo camied 3t CoMl s accamuanod doprecaion and accurulaied Impament kases, | ooy Cost
Ooudes purchisas prog. Dirowig Cosl and @y CO81 dvectly MIIAAtis 10 the DIMGNG NG Aesdis (0 2% woikng cocnotion for is
Irtenghed e,

Dwpr nciation Gt U property, pant sed aouizavnt @ prowdied g aiat e method cet! the useful Ife of #4025 specited in
schaduie || o the Companes Act, 2003 Lassntnld mrprowemeits dre sootosd ower T perod of Base Depuscislion on eopaty,
plant a0d equipment wnich are pdded | dispossd o 0uning the yeor, |5 providad on cro-ratn Sasis with referonce o the dte of adoton
J deteson Frachokd ang & 0! deprecated and under the previous OAAP land was revaued

The assets’ resdsd ypluea, useful Ives and method of depfecion are reviowed 31 cach rancell yosr end il o shusNdg
prospeciieady, £ apcropraie.

Coapatin] oS -n£eog (a8 inctales cond Of Secpdsty, pMnt and eoupmint uwider nstaliation / under devsioomeant a5 at ihe balance shest
daw,

Propesty, plant and equpmest oee edmnmed ¥om fnancil statemort, sitor on daposal o wron retieed Yom acove use. Profis
e arging 1 tha casd of /ol emont ¢ Asansal of prapary. plant and Gaapment a'e recogrised n he stxemen of profit and loss 1
the yerr ol pecsmonce

Tne Sompany nas opled 10 continue with the carrydeg valies of ol of £ property. Plant snd Caupmant ae recgressd n INS Rrevnsus
CAAR Ninancel R1A00Mares 45 0ol O B Ihe Ianadion daie 1o 151.6p10, 2016

Insangible Assets
Imanghie ssscts are camed of coM ns pooumuisied peodasticn and sccumdsieg meairace esea, i any. Cosl dudis
Grpendiute hat is drecty ANBUEL IS 10 the acguisison ol the angitls assats

identfable imang bie sxsels are ecogresed when § s pobesle Ml lubes 200N Denalts FrDued 10 e 538 Wi ow 0 the
Company and e cost of the assst can be by messume

Cont of Enterposs Rexturcs Pismnng (ERP) saftwaie nzhadng exzendiuie on implememation < % be amaniead over o penod of on
YRI5 DOIAT 0N Maragements estimme of uzetil e over which econom G sl vl be decved o s uee

SOWTPDS 370 CHPAN SO S1Te ITIRTls fod (0 SEaurE 1D MEROeOiie W Mol e 200 e norteed over the peood of
0 SEVON WS Tho assets’ wselul luss a1e revswed o each financal ywar sod r

S e

4 Row-

67



Arshiya Limited
Tirencial for s ¢ 1

Trdemark are praoised over the padod of tan {10) years

(Gae or lasses ansng from desacognaion of an inanpbie assc¢ are mepsiend & the cifiererce debwoen the net aisposal proceeds
AN T Caeryeig reourt Of T S&501 A0 M8 1GUOg g I Iha S3amam OF proft sed K6 winn T S2001 s SN0CgNwg

Imargble ascels under dewstopmet ncludes cost of computar software under rtdation / under developrmen a5 al e baonce
! e

Tre Compary hos opied 1o condirue wih the coenying values of af of Is niangdlo aszols an recognised n v prvvous GAAP
francel dakments a5 deemed cost at the ransacson date Le. 151 Apd, 2046

33 Leases
Abewni iy Slusnibud al the ocepticn datn sk Erunce wise of an opanding bk A dease Ihat lansfers substandialy all ihe cais and
rewarnds ncdental to ownershin 1o the Company s dozeded 25 3 france =ase

Tho Company as 2 ssoe

{1l Finance lsaso \
Asseis scquired urder fnance knse s capitalized and the comeapondng loasn (nbity & recogrisad ot kover of the far ek of the
kased agssets und the present vaue of mnkoum lesse cayments 3t ihe inception of the kease. D! costs drectly atkbulatls to lease
e recognised wih B sl irdet s

181 Operating lease
Lmasw of iaseds undher wiveh all (ks and fewinds of Sanenhes A etechvely etaned Dy e Basor ane cassitied as cpeming lease.
Loaso powments under opersing lease are recognsed a8 MPoness on JouiuM bows in sccidce wil (e Epediie lease
AgIMEris

The Company as a lassor

o) Feance kase
Vihan assets ore icosed ot under o fnance epss, the present vakae of the mirimum Baen papments s recogrised 56 @ moslin
Trw MTparce batagen ha gross eoshvialia and the preser vae of Iha receivable & recogrised as uneamsd finanoe hoomes,

Lease moome 15 recogmssd over the b ol Ihe leass Lesing e net imesbmsnl method Beloce Sax, which refiscty & comlant peradic
(it of ratum

The lesoor curecgreens Tw ased J0sEs 300 re0gnees Yo difamencs hetween My Carmyng amount of 110 leased assems and the
Snmnee lease recoivable in the statement of Pro¥l and Lass when mcognising the fnance Imase rocovebie Thes gan o s &
promentod 0 the sistenont of Prof and Loss v e sama Sne 2am 24 1hal in which tha kssor presents gabes of lossas hom salke of
i asusts

=) Oporating haswe
Rerle noome om operiting il & recognast o e statemet of proft and 1023 on & sYagnt Ine bosis cver the torm of the
relevant Jease urless anoier Syelerolic basts i mock e el e of this B panen i wrich Soonome banelis from ne lesses
arsels is dminished

Initial doed costs mcuned N negoeming and Arargng &5 opernng saee e ackind 1o canyag vabe of the ledstd asset and
mesgriced oo o straght ina Basis ovar IN 1eass tam

1.4 Investores
Imeemenes are measured ot lower 0f cozt and not resbzabie vakm. rventony Compnses of cowl of Mngd 0 INGIaNa Cosl IS,

3.3 Cash andd cash equiventy
Cash and cash squuaent 1 the talance sheel compess cash ot banks, cash on hang and shod-lern depdads with an Drigingl
matonty of e morths or lesa, which e 3utipe! 10 an mugnAcan sk of changss \n vaua

For ihe purpose of the sIosment of cash Bows, Casn and cash eouvakenis consist of cish on hand and srotlann deposts =
dalned above net of utetand ng bank overdmis s which oro corsslersd o0 Fmegi pan of the Company's Sah managament.

38 bdeguiement of moots
An assol s consdered as mpaked when al e date of Batance Shast thare are ndostiors of arpeiman] aod 1% caming amourne of
10 nsoet. o where oppkceble the Sish Seianiing wnil (0 wich 18 25564 06 l0ngs, exceeds s recoverable amount (e the fagher of
t pol agse seling pice and value o wso] The canying amcurd 1y meduced to the recaserabde amount and the rduckon is
wrogiiced A3 s Irpemont ka3 in the salerent of orofc and loss. The inparment lo2s sommgrized i e pote SEEuUNEng poniod i
mihmnumamnnomoolwmmmn Post mgarment, depracianon 1s prowvided on e reesesd
'4“%&.-1 et inpwired] 25501 000F (15 Eemainng uzehil He
‘ >

el / (/ a4 : A




Arshiya Limited

3.7 Financial mestruments - intial recognition, subsequent measuromont and impeerment
A fnancisl natrument 18 By contract Tisl ghves rive 10 8 fnenc sssat of e ently wd & Enwcal Bstily of oguey reyuren ol
arcther emity.

Financial mssuts dnaal recogmition and messwrnment

Al Brancisl assels ame inhisly vcogieoed Al far eniue Transadion costs Nal s debcdly aTrtpiabe 10 1he acgasiion o sssue of
firanzial ascels. which aee not at far value ivough orof! of lose. are adjusted (0 the Sl value on B recogntion. Firanod assees
e chisatied. W sl ecagnibon, s Foarncial assets sansuied 3l T vake o 38 Fnancial assets measuned al amonsed sk

Foancisl assels - Suaequent measuraiment:

For the purpose of subsegean measuomert. nancil assels are cassNad N two Broad categores: -
) Firancisl scowis ot fair vwhin

B) Firancisl aszets i amaszed oot

Yihews esnls are memsured ot far wsfue. gams s kosses sew edher recognaes enirely 9 e stdammn) of proft and bss 0.0t
walkoe Twough profil o loss). of recognised it el Compeehars v income {i 2 far value thiough cther compreherswe Pcome),

A fnancisl aamet I Moets The RIWNg WO condtions i3 Maswad ot amartizod cost (nat of ary weite dowe for imcanment) unloss
ihe wezel = desonaied o Sar vake drough proft or loss under the Eir valoe option,

(8} Business model test: The njective of the Compary’s busmess modsl 1s 10 hold the fnanonl seeet Io coect I conkenciual cinh
New,

() Cash flow charactorstics tost: The contrachsadl terms of the Inancal asset grs fise on spoched doies 1o tash flow that seo soiely
copment of pivcpd 00d rUstest o the poncps st ouslding,

& Ensccu! aswet lhat meets the folowing o condtions & meascred 2 fair value through other comprehonsive income uniess He
asset s deaignaind at tar vinkue theough profit or lost under the far value opson

(2) Musiness mockel test: The firancisl suset ix hetd welthn o busesas meded whine otfecive i achisssd by tolh collecting conkaclus
cash 10w and seling fnancial assets

(0] Cash Bow charachristics st Tha camvaciual Koms of P financal asset gve rse on spealed dates fo cash Sow Tat ane solely
paymerts of pencipal and iierest an he principal amount cutstandng

Finuncial assets - Equity levasxtment in sebsidianes
Irwostranks n subsidRnes are cecopnsod af cost as per Ind AS 27 separate fnanoel siatements

Trassiton to Ind AS
Ugon fisthme adopbon of lnd AS, the Company has slectnd (o conb e sth P carying yikie of 31 of (15 Pyesivents n susdanes

RS ar Agri 1, 2016 measwres &5 oer ine previcus CAAP and use thal carmdng waue a5 the deemed cost of Hveseam in
suldie et

I rospect of iderest Niim ans gree 1 subsidianes, e difemnce beivaren the ‘0o amoun! and €5 for vaue 1 reaied o3 furthe
westrart by ihe Campany in Pe rospoctve subsdanes. Whaes franasd gusrsniees i #lon 10 leans of subisidiases 3o provded
For nio compensation, the G vaues A added 10 imvestment by e Sompany in respecive subsicdinnes

The Company hasy sccnrted for #s eaudy veslment n sutaidicnes at cost,

Feancisd asaets - Derocognition
A Snarcial assets {or, wheee appiicatie, o part of 3 farsncal sssal or gart of 0 grop of smdar Tl Essets] o prmany
domcogresad (6 nmoves fonm Ba Coampiny's stakmant of 1nan0a| peskon) when.

(3)  Trw rights 10 rece v cash Nows Som Be assel havwe apred, o
(8] Tre Compeny hes trnsiermnd e nghts to soceme cash flow fram the ssssl

Floancinl Rabiisies - Initial recognition asd seasuement:
The foancial lahities are recognesd nanly of for volos and i the case of loane and bomowngs ad payabkia, net of drocty
attritatabbt traneo (Hon 5683,

EMective Interest method

ren inees! methiod W on methad of caauMing the amonsed cost of 3 Snancll instrument ang of alocaing imerest Bcoers
the relevard pened Tre ffective mtersst rade & the rate thal nosctly dsoaures MLYe cash fE0ePts OF DIynents
0d (e of Snandial Peyumencs or where appecpnate. b sherter pencd.
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Arshiya Limited

Financial liabiitios - Subsoquent measuremeat
Finandal tatddes are subsoquently camed ot amorkzed ool usihg the effective nterest method. For trade and obar paysties

maunng wehe one year from fhe balonce sheel date, 0o comying amourks o'e approxmode al thee far value die o fe shan
anstity of hese Instiumants,

Francial Liabilities - Financial guarastee contracis

Finanod guarsnies conlracts ssusd by e Company et hase cooliacts Pl ngune @ 2aymedt 1o Be frade 0 readurse i hokdel
for 8 bous Nincurs becsusa tho speciied debior fisls 1o rmake o payrent when cue in scoerdonce wih the tonms of & debl Feument
Foandal guaranies contracts ae moogrsed wdaly as a Saily at far value adpsied ke transaction costs (het e deecty
alirivctobia to the issmnce of e guarmrtee. Suezquently, the hatitty s measeed af the fegher of the amount of ey alresncs
delenmined and fw amount recogrised ess cumulathee amorsation

Finanzial Liabilities - Dorecogmition

A francial abiry 1 derecoprised when the cbigation under e RsDitly = Seonamged of canceiag or mpres Wheh a0 eesing
Fnancal Sabiny & replaced by ansther, from the same lerder eon scatantaly diterent lomve, of the terms of an exsting fabity ae
subslactislly modfied. such on exchange or modficanon In resies as B derecagnition of P trigiea) Sabity s the recogntion of »
new Tobiily. The MRieroo (0 e sespecive GINYINg Mmouwnis Is lepognised 1 the siatement of profit and loss.

Compouns Irnstrumwnts
Mmmummnlmmclmmhmmsmanﬂamumw
reyunerts. The fur valye of 320 babiny cormponen! 5 ssparated o the compound rstument and e resdusl vsbm & o
as equty comgonent of otner fnaroal instrument tuwmmmnasummmnemsmmmum
cqaly compenesd is nit remessured afes irtal mecegritan The Mirsscion coaks relited 10 compeund NSYumeds ac afocand 1o
the labdlty and equity componenis in the peogorfion 3o the aliocation of gross procesds Tracsacion costs reliaied 1o eqily component
Ip rectgnnes divpctly 0 equity 006 he c261 selmied 1o katily camporant & ncuad i the cameng amourt of the Yabdty companan!
and amansed usng effectve imterest method.

Provisions. Contingent Liadiites. Contingert Assets and Commitments:

Provisions ane moogisesd whe Pe Compiry 55 & presert 0bA000 (Mgl 0f CONUIIUCIm) s & MUl of § fasT Gusnl &1k probabie
that a0 oufiow of resources ambadyng aconomic benefits will be requied tn sefie the obigmon and a refabie estimale can be made
of the nmcurt of the otégatan ¥ % uliec! of fhe e value of mongy & malonsl, provsunm W gscowted Wng egivaon! parjod
govemment senstes wlerest e Unwinging of the cisoount is recognised it the stxdement of proft and koss as 3 fnscos oost
Provinors are mvowed o anch Saanes thast dele aod e adpetod 12 milec! the Surint Det &atmano

Ceontogort hifics are disdosed whan there & a possitie cbigaton angng Yore gt ovorts, the sasimcs of Wt Wil be
conbrmed onlf oy e or e of one o mem uncuitin Fdue awnis nol woly witsn B control of the
Comrpany ar 2 presert obligaton that anses from past evarts where it & aither not srobatie that an ouflow of resow'cis wil be
1RGuined 0 segke O @ (Rhabie sstmace of the amount carnal be made Womation an cookngant 1oty is dsciased in e Noles to
the Finmnan! Stsmmente Condingant assots are not recognmnd Hommer, whnn the maksalen ol incoma is vinaly conain then tha
TCRU? Qe is N0 looger & contingent assol. bt | 1 rocogrised 5 an assel

Dividerd Dixirkration

Aeoutd disoend dalribtion o the srarshoiders (8 recognised 05 2 Aol In e penod In which e dhasends e sppioved by e
srereholters. Aoy TG Shacund pad 8 recoM St o0 approve by Board of Dweciors, Dvidend payable and Coesponding Sax an
dradend davbunon i recognssd doectly in other eguty.

310 Roverue recogribon

Rvenud & Mcognizd e trandfar of cortrel of goods or rendenng of Genyicts 1o cusiomens i an amount that relects Be
corsiderat oo which the Company expecss 10 mmosnsy in exchisrge for thoss goody o servizes

Geramly, cantrol is transier upon stepment of Goods 0 the CUBMM of WisN T GOO0E 1§ MG SvalAtha 10 1 Csamey. prowded
warafic of e 10 the custtme! occiurs and ha Cospary has not tetaired any sigocdoant nsks of ownessiip or fiture shigations weh
reapect b e goods shipoed

Fevenus |5 mesaursd of the amoust of consdembion which the company sapects 1o Ba endtied o 4 exchane for tansiamng Ssina
G008 v MENOSE 10 5 OXAME & specifod in the conbact, echudng amourts colecied on behall of $wd parbes (for example toms
and duties colectsd on behalf of the govemmenl|, Corsderston = penersdy thae upon siladion of pedormance obigations and o
shsievstiie 5 10000208 whow Ihe 1 bacomes uncondtional,
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Arshiva Lirited
Notss 1o the financial statements fer the year ended 3158 March, 2018

Revnrnss sen rocogeitind & 19 /laed Secvicid A0 perkatiad Snd finenud Fom e end of 1 16al Keadetng 10 I8 eenrg 0000 8
ecognized 35 unbilied revenue.

Revenses in cxcess of imvoong re ciyesfied 20 contract oszels (whon we reler as urbiod revenoe) wWia imocng in oxcens of
tevert s Are cliasi P s cordract Rabd Bies [aticts we rafir Lo o Lo revmmoes)

Tiado Roceivains
A recevable iepresents the Company's nght 1o an amount of corsdeeaton thet i rcordhioral

Cowtract Hadilities

A contract hatiity & the cbbgation 1o transher of services 10 3 custumes fir which the Campany his reciwd Comsinmdon (O 4n
wmount of cordderaion @ dus) frem the customer. If 3 customer pays conskeration before the Campoany transie's senvces to the
customer, 3 contract Iabevy i recogresod whan the pryrent o mece Commct MONNS o0 MCgNGed & v wisg tha
Company performs under the cootract

Income Yom wiotment of warehousng spoces and open yard aves for use se secogrmed for the penod the mistens & ng i dmes &S
Dot Agtoed fereg

Teapprnm Yo vk SEoVces A0 0P 2CEdes B 0097 ER0 when Blal 20 0A0ss A perfanmed s 20 e conliaciud s

Income hom Bumnoss Conducting Foes shal O 1scogisgd i por contruiui s
Fyvernn fom wose of Wl B FecOg 0 65 T DRIV KM agreed Demean the panis,

Imerest income Yom & fnincal asse! is recognised when £ 13 prodable that the economio benafits Wil fow to the Company and the
ameunt of Poome can be measured relably. (mensst incomes iy AcCTusS 9 & e Deris, by eleancs ¥ the pancigal sulstanding and
Al e e¥ective bieiest male appioatie, which 13 the rate Mol cxoctly Tsccunts eatimaled fure cash rocesiris Mepugh the aepecind o
Glirs fnarcal aRse 10 P9l seiat's W Camyng amount o nisal reccgritan

Export tenedts under Foregn Trce Poloy aro recignoed stun uikzed,

Dyvizend income 5 rocogrisad when the Compars/s nght to mensws o payosant m sitabinhad, whch (& geramly when shaichoken
pprie e paym et of dvicend

Forsign curmncy reinstetemant and teansiation:

Transochons in forsgn cumences are wioly recorded by the Cormpony 3t rales povakng at the das of he Yansacian Sutesquently
MOOEATY (eTih A0 AR BT COEND Gxchange rales 25 00 bakinze shoat dade and the resuling exchange diference recognissd o
sntemect of profit and loss. Dferoncas arising on setiement of monetary bems o 6 recogrised 0 Slalemend of prof and icas.

Norvmonetary Hems at ae measuwed i terms of hsonzal cost i a foregn curmency s Farsdadec wena the sactuunge e ul e
detes ol e transacoon Nom<sumiary fems camed ol 1 value Mat 2 danominated in doregn cumencies ore iransisted of the
eechange res prevaing at he dale when the fer vabe wes dessrtiond Tha gaib or [odg Srsing on Ians@tion of non-monetary
goms weasured at i valse is treited 0 Noe with Ine secognbion of the gan o lozs on e changa in fair woue of P tem 6 6
tranaistion diferescss on ders Wies TRY vakie B of 1058 16 recognsed in DC! o prodt or hes are sso recoynisad 11 OCE or prolh
OF boms, CRSpacIvely)

Forergn escrange ditterences regerded as an sdustment (o Borowing conls &6 prosenied i the Salement of orcint ard 1oss. wilnin
finance costs. A1 athat inunce gains | ksases e prosentnd in the statement of profit and ks an & née hasiz

Employes tansfity
Short S @egioyeae banells are reosgnized as an axgense o the sistement of pofil sog oxs al the ywar m wiich (b rolatod
L N T = T |

Defiered Contribution Plan
Contricution 52 Provident Fund efc. o defrmd compitndon plan. & mede i aceooounce win o satue, e & (otognised as an
SEPINSR N Iy ) whech empioyees huve rendered servioss.

Defined Bonefit Man

Leave Arcastnont hong 3 dafined bereft pan s accounisd for useg the projecied tnd cred| method, o the Dass ol acuins
wvakatons cormed oul by thed party acundes # asch Balince Shist data Achana cana ans 0ses amsing fom experence
PHURETOMNS 303 Chandes in aduana) assumplons e charged o credied 1o othe! comprahenswve intome in Fw et in which ey
wese Ofher oosts are scoounied o slaterzan of profl s Gas

URYEAS \
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Tho cosd of praading gratuty, 4 Safvod Benafi| plank, I8 063 mEnGd using tha Progcid Unk Credt Mamad, on i Bakia of achulris
vahustens carnd ouf By hied porty schiarks W et Batecce Shea! date. Adusiod gane and bases arang (e espanenoy
adustiments ang chamges 1 ACtuany assumptuns o charged of oedied % UPer DomErehens ve Noome i the pesiod In which Bey
arse. O cosls are Aocounied o stiemant of profl and as.

Femeasurements of defioed benefit plam in Jespect of post simployment and oiher lang tenm berelts are claiged © the ohe
compahermse ingame £ e gear i which Pay ocor Rumsiuenents sw rol reclisalied 1o sliteren| of jroft sad ks o
subsequean| porods

Taxes eo Income

oome tox esponse represents the sum of curment tax Iscuding MAT mnd income tox lor eorser years) ang deferrad tax | Tax 13
recognead n the stdamant of profl and bes, aecax 10 o adant that £ relates o ems rooogrised directy (n equity or oiter
COMQIEhSEG M, I S0 CISAs he Sex B @S eoogrised Svactly in aguly of n othar cameehen sive Niome. Ay subloguent
charge n dred tax on dems eialy recogriesd n sguly or othir comemhenaing BOSMe i§ 380 IBcognked i quly o olhwe
oomgrehensive income,

Gurront tax prosszin = computed for income calcubying her considanng slowancos ond exnmpdons unchr the prosions of the
agolcatio moome Tax Laws Curent 12X 3ssais and ourvent fax latidies o off set. and preseniod as nel

Deferred tax s mecognsed on SHaences hatwesn 02 Garyng amounis of asses and labites in the Halaroe sheel ans tho
COTEAZONANG lax Dases used n e compuation of fade proft Deferred sax kahiltes are gensrally recoprised for ol saable
lorporary dferoncus, and defered Bix arsats e genelly recignsad for ol dedudble empenary diferences, sy forwoed lae
loseas and dlowarces 1 the axtord vl £ i protatie thet Aihee tasstie poofits Wil Be svsibbio sgunit which those Seducibe
lomporary fiweoces, cary fooward fax losses and alowanoss can be ubilzed. Deferned tax assets a0d labiltes are messured al e
Rpolicablo 1ax rates. The carmng ameurt of delamed tix aasets & reviewed ot cach babnce sheel dane and roduced o the extert ot
1115 10 lorger probable thet suticient tacebi profts Wil ke svaritie ag et which lhe lerpocary ditieninces can be cliaed

Cradt of MAT 15 recogmised as an ssset only when wod fo fa exient theee is comvncng wodence il B Conpaecy wil ey nonmad
Incone tax dunng the spacfisd perad, L, the pencd for which MAT cmdit 5 olowed t0 ba camed formand. In 1ne yoar v whach the
AT crad i Bicteris abghin 10 8o recogrised a6 an asses the sad assal & oeaied by way of a oedt to the sutement of proft ana
Toss and shown o3 MAT cred anttiement. The Company reviews tha same o1 aach btarcs a'ee1 dale AN wiika down tha caming
omoun! of MAT oredt entifiement 55 the exien! Tem 5 1o longer convineng awdence 1o fe otect that the Company will pay noisa
e Y Surng 1 spacbad suncd

Borowing oosts

Borrowng conts specricaly tiaing fo W scogutation o conarucion of quatlyng assets that pecessaily fales a subsinrtial penod of
1Mz 15 get mody for ns intonded Use ses capitsiized (et of ncame on egoreely dagloyment of funds) an pait ef e cosl of suzh
dssats. Bomramng costs consat af interest and other coetn that he Cormrpnny moun In conteddion Wi B Bonowing of Leds For
Renond DUMIWNG LSad B 1he purpase of oaining 2 Qulityip Jsset the anoun! of beoowyy costs sigible for capineaticn
detnnmenid by agpdyvg & captaizadon e 10 Te experd tures o0 that assetl,

The captakzaton ke o the weighing meerage of e hortowing codls spplcabin (0 the bierowege of he Company dal an
ouTtanding dunrg the poviod. cther Fan Dorowings made spscfcaty lor Ba pergomn of titnng & qualfying asae Tha avourt of
DoctoMng Costs caplaized during a parfod doos not exceed he Imoure of bomrowing cond mcurmed during sl perie. & cthee
DO o 1 CO6LS G0 R ed I Ihe pdriod I whon fey ocur

Exenings pac Sham
Haoc paecirgs per share & computed woing e nel prof\oss | for the year afrotabie fo the sharshddens sl wae gt aveige
rutehor of Ry Shams OSSNy During 1he yeur

CHUNg eTIngs per stans 5 computed usang e nal proSisoss) for the year alitbutabe m e shamholders and woyined avenmge
rumier of eqully and potengadl oquity shoess oustanang during D year inchadng shaw ppiions. Comwertile crefwiece shioss and
deberiures, scopt whire 9 rasul would be anfidindve. Folental equly shares thal are converiad durng fhe year ane nciuded 1
o caoudabion of déuted sarricgs e aliars, from U begnmeng of 17¢ yoir oF 80lo of Bswnos of %o poserios eoury shares, 9 o
date of comeersion

Curront and nce2werent classification

The Compary frosonts aesets and habies 1 wiasmin) of Eneicia pieton Lased on cunesbinai-ourent casshication,

Tha Company Pac presanied nen-oument asonts and current assets, non-taltent BDEN6S and carvant Bailis 1N 3ccordance 'Win
Sernckda Nl Divisan Il of Compareas Ad, 2013 nodfed by WCA.

An asset o clasaifiod as cuerent winn itis: %

Expected tn te reaised or imendiad ¥ be tokf or Sorsamid 0 AGNTE (oM aIng ek I

Hadd grimanty for g purpos of vadng, &
) te (Mo wihin edve Mo aller e repocing pecod. ar
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Arshiya Limited
Motes 1o the finansal statements for the year ended Jist March, 2019

Cash or tash equavalent unless resincind from being excharged or zed o metfe o abiey for at lsas) welve monthe pter the
reporing penod

AR cthier amsets arw chassbind wa non-Zumed.

A lishdity ty classifing 3 carrent whe it is,
Expeciod 1o be setthed in normsal operating cydle,
Makd prmanly for the pupose of trading,

D 10 bo saftied Wi Make maeins 2ter fo reparting pened, o
There & na encondisonal righ! 15 dafiar the satfiment of $re labdty for at feast tweve months afes the teporing pesod.

Nlomer fabities are clagafied &5 non-current.
Thw opsrakng cysie o the tme between Be soguceinn of sssnts 21 rocsasing nd Her reakiaon v cash of cash equrients

Deferred tax 265005 and fabi bies are cinssfing 38 nonrclrrond masets ard badittes. e Company has dentfes lweivn monrs as ds
noemal aperatng oy

34T Fair vateo measurement

(n
16}

Tre Comgany mussares francil rsrumnents 815 vidoa at aach Bulince sheal dine.

Fawr valoe is the price al woukd bae received 1o sel an assel or padd W ransfer o labdly in e oedetly ransacion between maces
partigaels Al the meascreimund dele. The ey vifue measurement 5 based on the presumghion Bat ine ransacton %0 s=8 the aso!
o ansier he labity tahes place ether

In the principal market for fe asset or dokiwy, or

In tha atsance of a panapal market, in Fe mast advamagecus markst for e asced of ity

AT SR m e O & NON-TNRNCE SSME TRkES M0 RCCOUN & Manel pard opare's ALy 10 ganere sconomic denstits ty

wsing the asset in s highest and best uss o try sedng (1 12 anciher markst particpart Ful woold e B el o &8 hghest and ket
[

The GCompany Ures valiston #OENgUes Hal wre aferoptite in e Srouralinces and for which swificent dow oo avelabie %
mensure Sk yalue, MaXTizng e use of relevont chrarvabie npots snd rersmizing T wee of unotsevalls inpus

M assets and labiMes for which far value i meneured o daciosed in e Seanciil Al an ciregcrized withia ha far value
haararchy.

312 Off.getting finaeciad Instramant

Finandal assets and latii es are offsel and the ned smount & recoried 11 B Salanc sheat where e is a legaly esforoeatie ngnes
QMMWMNMMMWUWNWDGlecN“h“d“Mlm
amutinecusly. The legaly enforceatie rghes aust not te comngert on Sdure evenis and must bo enforcaatiin 1 the mormal cowae
of Suenecs kel o D event of defadt watloiney O Danknuptcy of the Company o coumemarty.

315 Segment Raporting - Identification of Segmonts

An operiig segrwit is & Gimeonan of the Company Pal &ngiges 1 buaness acthbies rom which i muy sam revenues and incur
papenses, Wiose eparalng reodls are repdmly d by the % ctuid apecalng deciten makes 10 Make deciuons for
which dscrete Snancial iformation Is avadable Bazed on the macsgemwn! spomosch s delnes n ind AS 103 the chief opevating
decason ek svidusles Pe Comgary’s periamancs and afocoles resouroes based on on omlysin of vimcus perkaimaccs
niGalon by tusress segments s Geographic eguems.

320 Contributod Equity

Fouty Sharis am cusslied sy equily, ntramernial Losts dbecty atnbitahe % the issus of new sbaimy o opticns sw shown o eguly
25 deduchion, net of tax rom Ihe procesds.

Cush flew slatement

Cash lows are tepariesd Usng the indisect method, wherezy ot bafom lax s adjusted for e efiscs of rassacions of norrcash
nae ad wy deferals or acorals of pasl of fukee cash mosglx of paymeote The cish Sows Jood operring iovesing and
froners acivises of e Camgany are segpegated Bazad on the avaliatie infarmation

122 Ueninens combinutions

Susiness combinyions Lmvolving enties Mol are conbioked by the Company wm sccoudtad i wsng e pockng of Insrests melhod
a5 folows.
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The assets and lobdlies of the combinng eniites s refleciod al har crmang amearis,

No adusimects ans e (o relect far Yatues, o recocnmym smy e asseds or lababtes

Adpstnerts ane ondy made 10 karmonse sccourtng pol ces

The Snanan rformation in the inancesl stments in reipect of 200 Perodd B maElad as il P DU es Combination hid 02esTod
frem the begiening of the preceding peniad in the heancil statements, arespecive of the sctua date of the combawian. However,
whedes the busness combiration fed ocoumed sfier that dite, the pror perad nfomation i restaed anty tom thae daks

The bakince of 9 Relaned Lamings app=arrg n e insos siatsmarty of e barsderor 18 sggmpsed Wit Pe comessondng
DARNS AROSANDG I tha Mean ol stalemants of the ransfaroe of ik adusted aganst General Recerve.

Tre dtectites of tha feseves a0 presored wnd he reserses of e ransferoe become the reserves of be Fimsioee
Tha difarancy, ¥ arry, belwiin T amounts fRconded s sharo captal issued plus any addtional consideration in the foan of cath or

other assels and e amours of shave capiial ol the Faredercr s ransheired %o Capte Ressrve and o prasenied sapaately bom Cihee
Capdal Ros s,

Significant azcounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparaton of the firancial statements requres management o rrake udgemants, stimalés asd asumptions that affect o
PN SYSUNS O 10WINAS, RIPENscs, Jsacts and Iebities, and the accompaning decheres. 3nd e discosize of contngert
Labines Uncedmry sboul thess assumplions and eslmaes could resull in outoomes Ny requare @ mateny adustiment to the
canmying amount of 29sets of labilies aecied i fukre periods. The key assumplicns conceming the kdum sed oiher key sousoss of
vrlmabon Urcertairdy ol the reporbng dak Sul haww 4 sgnifcant nsk of cassng & malenal adjaatment 1o the camyng amounis of
nsocts and labities Witin the nest feancial yoar, ane descrioed below.

The Comgany bised on 15 ASWMEBONS ONd SSIMaEs DN Darameters ovarobie when tho firanasd SINGTNNE were prepared.
Hirassyer, #csiing CRaumslances and sssumplions about S developrants may change die 1o markst changss or croumstanoss
ansirg tnat ace beyond the conlrol of e Compnoy. Such changes sro toflnctid i he sssumplions whin Pay coow

Praperty, plant snd equipment and Inlangible Assets

Managerert eviews e eshimalnd usaful ieas and resdund velues of ihe seset snruly | cedir fo O@simia the amownt of
G peaciation 1o be recotied duiryg ey thponing Sanod. Tha usehs ves and resious vaboes a5 per schedule || of 1he Cormparies Ac,
2013 o are based on e Campany's histonoal eapenence wdh sy sstals and g Plo soooun! anbonatod omaogoea
chargem, whichivl & monm seqagrsite

inzome Tax

The Comgary reviews 2t aach batance sheo! doe the camyng amowrt O oefumed ax assens T2 faciors used In esmaies may
A er fom Aot sutcome which coudd lasd 10 an adistme it (0 Be amourts reponied i the Snano i stalerw s

Contingencios
Maraginment fias esimated the possdie cutfiow of escurces al e end of each aorudl repordng financasl ywar, o wery, o et of
contngerces oy mMigations agmns e Compewy as 4 & nol possd e 10 preaic! e oLtooms of pendng maram wih sccuracy.

Impwinsent of Sinancial aasets

The Impaiment provisions for Snanc s assets ave Somsd oo ssvirrplons sbeul ek of delinclt a0d expicied cosh loss Tre Compary
Laes pdgemirdt 1 making these Assunglons and saecting Ihe inputs 10 fie mpnimmest calcilshion, Based oo Comeanys past
Fisiory, sesting macka! conattonm s vl 55 forewd lookng e matis al e ond of gach epoing peviad

Imainment of nan-feeancial assets

The Compary assesses al mach ropartng date whather these i 01 indicalon 2al 4 asset may to rmpared [f any ndcabon ensts. of
when aneul ImpEerent WeSng for a0 asadt is regued. the Compaw estaston e sxeals ecowesle ameunt A4 assets
recoveratie amount (5 the bighet of an sssels o Cesh Geerating Usits [COL) four vaioe leay oozts of dispooyl ond B35 suue in e L
i dnlermenad Yor an indrdual asect. unfess the 5ol does nut ganseits cish nfows that Ge SIgely independent o those from et
Ssenls of grouss of sessts Where the cleryeng amount of o 055t o CEU exooeds ds racourabio tmount. this skt e coosdinos
Impaved and is wrkien down & 5 recoveratie amaurtt,

In orHeseng kst i s, the estimaied fudure cach Taws are discounied Lo Fer present walie Lsang A gredax discournt raje thot
refects cumem market aaseesments of the Sme value of monty and e ks Spechc 10 !e asset In dotermmning far vike Bes 0061
0l gispoaal, racan manket larsactions are laken Into acccum H no such rsnsachorm zun be dleréified, 20 appropsate valuakan
model s vsed These candotons se corabomied by vabuation mutipes or omer mvalatis Pk voue indoators.
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Defined benefs plans

Tno Cowt of the defned banelt clon and 1ha resen! vike OF sudt) LIQEON G CelRIMRg wang schis il wiuutgns An pousng
vaLahon nvokes making vanous assumpiions hat may dffer from octudl dovalopmants o Ine futue These noude e
Aatarmination of #9e discount rate, Uture sy ary creases, montaiy rades and atrmon rase. Due to the comploakes involved in he

wAkstion Bnd 18 0ngem natum, @ delned beneft obigabon i Paghty sensiive (o changes In theos Jssumgbons. AN assumztions
0 iewad at each eponing data

Rocoverability of trade recoivablo

Judgements ane requisd | assesIng the ecowatilly Of ouwercks NG00 Meoabig @ Galemining wheaer & Provson wgsEimst
ihose recevabies s required. Fadors consdered indude the credit rating of the counterparty. the amowd and trmng of asdcpised
futues paywrents and ary passible achons hat can be taken o misgate $e nsk of noopeyprent.

Provisionm

Provisions and ligbiktion are recognized i the penod when it besomes probatie $at there will ba o future cutfiow of Lrds resubing
freen post sparslions or events and the amount of cieh culfiaw can be relably sstmated. The Lming of recignbon od ouantficstion
af ihe by require tha apphcation of pdgement 1o fashng 3¢ts and crcumstances. wWhich can be ljed lo changa. Sinca the cash
putfiows can fake place many yoars In the future. the carmying amounis of provisions and 1RbIReS are rovewed rogularty and adjuesiod
10 tid pceaut of Chang ey s and craumstances.

Fair valoe measuroment of financial indtemants

Winen the feir value of franciad aesets and fesndial FRbites rdooded n the buleece shaet cannol be messurod based on quoled
proes in actve markets, er far value s measured using valuation fechniques noudrg the Dvscourded Cash Flow (OCF) mods.
Trw x5 % hase models e tsken kom obssrvable markels whwnd possie, byt whem (s i oot feasibve & degree of utgemanl &
raquimd in pelatishing Gar vakoss . Judgements Tickde comsidesigans of infuts such as bguidity sk, cradt sk and wieatlity.
Changes in assumplions about Tese lacion could alfect the reparted tr value of fioancial instnamaents

Recont accounting pronouncements:
Standards ssued But Not EHoctive

On 30th March, 2010 e Mnstry of Corporate Affars (MCA) Fas notfied IND AS 116 ~ Lesste and certon smand=gnl 1 aesing
INDAS Thess amandmanta shall 5o apgiicabie 1o e Compary from 158 Apef, 2019

issue of IND AS 116 - Lease

Ind AS $18 wil supersede the care standird on Dases Le IND AS 17 Leases. As ger IND AE 1€, the feasor will have 1o bnng %
books all the non-cancellsbis partion of lessing arangemenl

Amendeent to axisting standards
The MCA has aleo carniad cut ameraments of 1he followinyg accountng standinds

IND AS 101+ First ims sdopion of indan Accountirg Stedands
IND AS 103 - Busireess Combiralicos

IND AS 108 - Fmancadl Instruments

IND AS 111 - Jan! Amangesents

IND AS 12 - ncome Toxes

IND AS 1% - Employee Borefts

IND AS 20 - Borrowing Cesls

Ing AS 28 - invwemment = Ascouaes and Jon! Venures

Appiiabee of ove standieds are nol sapucied Lo Fevi sy siasficant mpedd on e Compacy's fnancal Siacnants.
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Arshlya Limited

[6. Intangible Assets ]
{Rs. in Lakh
Particulars Trade Mark Soltware Total
Gross Carrying Value (at deemed cost)
As ot 318t March, 2017 0.49 583 14 588.63
Ardditions/othar adiustments - 1.120.00 1.320.00
As at 31st March, 2018 45 1.708.14 1.708.63
Addihons - <
Disposals/Discarded - {116.84) (116.84)
As at 318t March, 2018 0.49 1,591.20 1,581.69
Accumulated Amortisation
As at 31st March, 2017 0,20 158 41 156.61
Amartisation Tor ihe year 017 31589 316.06
Deductions o & .
As at J1st March, 2018 037 472.30 472.67
Amartisation for the year . 33273 33273
Daductions - {59.57) (59.57|
As at 315t March, 2019 0.37 745.46 745.83
Not Carrying value as at 31st March, 2019 012 845.74 B45.B6
Nat Carrying value as at 315t March, 2018 0.12 1,235.84 1,235.96 |
f\ H 3
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Arshiya Limited
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Arshiya Limited
Comolidatsd Balarce Sheet ax 31 105t March, 2018
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Asahiya Limited
Conscligatod Stulement of Profit and Loss for the yoer anded 315t March, 2019
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Arshlya Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statamant for the year onded 315t March, 2019
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Arshiya Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 318t March, 2019
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Corporato Information

Arshiya Limited [Mecsingter referad 1o e Parent Company™ or *Pe Compary™) logether wih ks subsidianes (colectively seferred 1o s&
"Group'} 8 0 Megehp Corpany of Arshiya Group, & is pienesring Unifed Supply Chisin and integrated logistios L Taslnichag SOuKn
provider Geoup Peadquanered n india. Tha group tusnesses comprises of Free Trade sod Warebousing Zooe (FTWE), Ral & Rail
Infesstnchre. Industnal and Digtrbution Futs, Ingian Cortsing Dupat {ICD), Domestc Warehausing, Forwaearg, Traespo:l 3 Handing.
Supply Chain sachnaicgy ang Maragement solubons.

These sistements comprises of Consclidated Financial Siserments ("CFS") of Arshiya Rmited (CIN, LS30D0MH 1991 CO2a747) and ks
subsdiarias b the year ended 31st March, 2013, The Company is 8 pubiic compary domiched In Inda and is incérporeted o 3ed Ady,
1581 under e provsions of (he Companes Aot agplosble in Inda. Tha registernd ofice of the compery & located af 302, Lavel 3,
Crejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Biock, Or, Arvie Basart Rosd. Werll, Mumbah 400 018

The Parem Comgany' s acuty staces are Isted on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) end Naticesd Sk Exchange (NSE) of Inda.

Tre Consoldated Financia Ssatemonts for s pea’ snded 15t March, 2019 were approvad and adopied by board of dkesicns in thek
meeing hekt on 27 My, 2013

Dasls of prepasation of consolidated financiul statement

The cormoidated financal siaiemenis have DeCn epared i accordance with iadian Accounting Stanctards [ind AS') notfiea by the
Miristry of Comporale Afsrs ("WCA) pursuani 0 the Secton 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Te Acr) mad wih of the Companes
(Ingian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, (68 amendec) snd olber rekeverst provisiors of the Act

Toe oesovdsind nancal sterents Pave Dien prapared o6 A NRCNCH cosl tass, sesept for certan fnancal assels and lakifes,
which am messured al fer vale / enortized cost

The corsolidated Snancia SIeMeNts & presertsd n kecian Rupess (s which Is the Group's functional and prasentation drmncy
And sl valss ars rounded 10 the neares! lakkh 25 par Iha reguremant of SCwWae ||, urisss when otheraso Indicaied

Basis for Consohdation

The comoldatad Anancial statements cormpcse of P nancial statemonts of the Parant Company and its subsidarnes s al 31t March,
2013 Control 1s azhieved when s Group is aspesed, o DRs rights, 1 varabie rtume Som ity imvalvernert wiith $e imvectee and has the
alifty 0 Gffect Ihoss returma thicugh 1S powes ower the nvastes.

Gaoeraly. Ihae is 3 presumpion hat 3 majonty of voung ngnes resull is ssotred. Ta sappert this presumplon and when the Group has
W56 an 8 majecty of the wolng or simiar rights of an nvestoa. N8 Geowp CoNSORMs Ak VAN AL And CHCUMSIMORR I ASSAssing
ahether i1 NRs pOWR OV AN INwsiee, INCudng the conkadual arargement wifh the other vooe hoiders of the rwrstea, rghts ansing
from other contraclua amangements, tha Group's waling rights and potental varing dghts and T size of the Group's holdng of voing
gty reletive (o the siee and depersion of the holdings of the aher voting rights haicers.

The Group reassesses whother o not & COnYols &) ivesias If facis and croumstances nalcate thal there are changes (0 one of more of
the theoe slements of control. Consolcation of a subsidiany beging when e GICup CLHaNS Conlidl over (he Subsiaary and cexses when
he Group s cortrdd of the subsidisry, Assols, lablies, hoome and expenses of 2 subsidary acoured duing e 87 18 INCAOET N
the cansoidated frandial statements fror v Cule the Sroup obiteins conbrol and assels. falilties, Nncome and expanses of @ subsiiany
duposed off dunny the yaar are noluded n the consolidated foancisl satements Ul 1w dule e Group ceasss 1o conirol e suesclary.

The CFS incudes the Frnancial Statements of e Pamnt COMBany ang ¥ subskianas (88 15199 in e e below)  Sutaciares ae
oosiciated frum the cate on which eflectvs conbiol s acquired and are exciudad from the dace of translTengspossl
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Coodt of NAT & recognssd 38 50 maset only When Bnd 10 the aent ese i Comisarg eidance Pal the Group wil ooy normal inccma

Lex dunng e spactied paricd. (e, 1B pen0d for which MAT credt s sfowns 15 be canted forward. 10 the year in which the MAT cred)

DRConis $igoi to bo recogneed 53 AN 3s2e (he 3341 autel S Lrodted Ly way of & crecH tn the toreckdaied stademert of sroft and losa

Nd ShoWn 36 MAT crodd ertimant. The Group roviens e 3ame of 3 Dalnce et e wod witles down the camying amount of

:rmmmnmmm.mmwmmwmmmummmmmmm
e ted parca

Bocrowing costs

Borrowng cosls specticaly relating 20 the GogAstion of Cconvucon of Gualihing assess 1t necessarty takes a subatantly| cerod of
110 10 0it “Gadly for I ideeded uan are GapHakaed (et of Noome on semporarly desiopment of Linds) as part of e cost of wuch maswiy
Bomowing C0st% CoNS KL of INderasl and rhur coats that the Gooup Nars N contecion Wit 1he bormowing of funds. For general bowowing
wed kv B purpoes of otaning 3 QUaRNYING asset, 1he aMount of BOMowing Cows eh) b My optulaaton t awtarmined by saphang
coplalzason nale 15 B drpenciuses on i st

The caplaisatos e s the weghte: sverge of Bra bormowing coste apadcatle 0 the bomowngs of De Group that Mo wislanang
Sring Mo pecos, other 1han bomowings mace specitoally for the pUIPoss of otlanng & cusklyng mset The enount of bormowg cosix
COPIAZDa JuiNg 0 PENDS S0 Nt wesens! ' amount ¢f bomoeeng cont curad curng that perda Al ofer BOTOWINg costl e
wapenged in the patod 1 which they ocow.

Earnings por Shaw
Bans swrrengs par aham is compated Laing the net protiices for the year stirbutatle 1o Pe starsholders’ and wegtied average rumber
of aguity shares custanding Jurng the oo,

Chued sarmings per shitie is computed Laing the nel profdioes e the pear atirbutabln 5 e shasbicidun’ and asghisd 3owage
rumte: of aguty 070 potntal AUy SRANES CUAIMONG JUNNg e your NoLdng e oplors tomertiie prefeence sharas and
COROMLTOS, Ex0e0t wherd [N st woudd be nrd-dlitve Nobmbsd ngurly sraves a1 870 Coaveriad duAng the year ors inchided in he
caldaton of d Liked eanings par sharo, fom the beginning of e yeor or dale of Bsuance of Such ponantial equly shared. Lo the dale of
COTPerson.

Cursnt sed non-curmedt clessllication

The Group presents assos and G0 iSes 0 S1alament of FNendie Coaton DAses on Sumemen-<ument deafcaton.

This Growg haes presentsd non-cament sssets wd Comort sssels, non-cument Satilties and curent labdties N 2000103000 win Schodule
N1 Drvison & of Companies Azt 2013 natied by MCA

An asset Is chasailind as curment whes it &

Expocied 10 be realsad or iMtanded 1o be ackd o d in | oparat ng cyche,

Held pamarty for the purpese of Yadng,

Expoeciad 10 be resd so3 WNKN Meve MonPs aer the /anoting perod o

Caah or cash mgu valent urfess msticted from beng sechanged or vsad 1o settie 2 SoDAty 1or 3t keast twalve months Aty he repong

A oher 3sses 200 tlasal fo2 35 non-curent.

A bability is ciassfind us cormont whan = is:

Expacted tn be sathed In normal opersting oycin,

Hud primarly for the purposs of fadng,

Cun 10 e oatiad within twelve Monihs aNer tha fepaning pancd, o

There 13 no uNoNdIoNal AN 10 defet e seriemant of e [atity 107 at least eelve Montts afer the rapiring penod

Al Ghir hatsdt s aiw Sassfind ue nos-cumost

The operaing cycle i [he Smw Sedween the acquistion of assets for proceszing and el reaisation b cash o cash eguivalonts. Delerred
Bie soouts el labites we ceafed s ponecunmeol ssesty ard BatsMes  The Gooup has identied theho months as s normmal
cpenting oydle.

Falr v 0 moassremont
The Group measwes francal insyramens ot fair value 9l oach tofance shee! date.

Far vilue & P prce Purl would b recabvet 1o aell 1 sssel o pec 10 Farmaler & bedly in an ooty Fameion betwenn kst
S CpAN o the mestresed dite The far vifus MaRsresenl & Based on the presumpson thal he Yansechon o sefl he asse! of
vansier e fabity tanes place elrer

e princi pal et for the caset o babsily, o

1 he absence of 8 candipal mankel n he mos! ad«amagoous maket 10r 1o asset or ladity.

Ar Wue messurermont of @ NON-TNanciel ascel MAES |00 200U & MMANeT PATODANTS abilly 10 generale economa benells by using
e wuaet 1 s Righest and teed Lee o by saling 190 200D o SOrUc et thart woud use the asset i iis nighest and bost uss.

Toe Groop wses vl LQLon fechriques that are apprapriate I the droumstances and for which suffcient ot 2o ovalabie 1o measure ar
b manimizing (he wes of relevant chssrvalie (nputs 300 minim g the yee of unobiseratie bputs.
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Al adens snd mabibtes e which far waUe I3 moasured O deckieed n e corachdaled fnendal sbtaments acs ategonaad mitin Be
T2k value hierorchy

Off-nstticg finmncisl Instrument

Francal asswts and Sabdties 510 ofaet 07d $18 el BmOUNT i3 1B20Ned i1 e Dalance shemt whers Bais (8 5 sy srfomsste fghs 10
Offset tho recoAised Gnours end Brerw (5 5 Inberton 1 setls Om 3 ret BOSIS OF reaise the assel end seftle P bty sersbemecousty
Tow lwgaly entorceatle AgHts MG NOT 0O CONNGRNL 04 AUkIE SVants 8nd Muit ta e~forceatin \n 1o namsl courss of busness and in
e eventof delaut, mcdvercy or banktrusicy o e Groun of counematy.

Segmoent Ropoening « Mentfication of

An opeewing segment Is @ comporent of the Groug tha! engages 1 bushiaas CEVitEs Yom which & may sam resenues a0d Inour
SHPENSES, whode Cosratng feslts amm regeiarty revisowed By the Group's chiel operafng decsion makor L make deckions for whicn
Coacren Srwried (rfETalion & yeadstie 2360 06 10 Management AppIoach 3o Safned I 10 AS 105, the thie tpwstng Secison
maker avaliptes ihe Group's performance and alocals escuscus besed an an snalpss of varkus perlormance indicaus by busiress
209Mers wd GUcQraeh segments

Govemment Grants

Granls Fom e government e (e0grised 3 ey Gl viILS w00 B0 IS 8 MRISCEtin sssueance Pt o grart will be recaived and
e Qraup wil coreply with sl miached corsiiors Govemiment grants relaing 10 iroome ave defarmed a2 recognised In the profk o ois
over 10 pOTOd NECcessany 10 Mmatch Mem with e ctsts thal hey e Flesded 1o compensats and presenied wihn other ncome

Goverrment grams relntng 1o the pLrchase of propenty, plant and Baupment e nshded in non-curmnk habitus s dwferrws hoome and
Qe CHeoRnd 10 Dol Of (068 05 & Mighe-ne taxs over the eapecied Ives of the refatnd asets and prasemiad wilvn otfef income

Contributed Equity
Equily Shares 0w Cassifes e squrly, incremental comts cdrectly al-butsies 10 the iS50 of 2eW 5RATDS Or CPSONS D06 ARCWN i equly as
Tosuckon, ret of tax FTM the proceeds

Canh flow stateen writ

Cih fows ww reporied using e indirect mebod, sty profi. before (e is ofusted 1 1o oo of NDNSACTONs of NON-Cash haIG
a3 any celoals of eocruls of past o Liture et rece g of peprrecta. The cash flows Som cperaing, imeestng and financing activles
of he Group are segragated Susnc on e svainhie informaton

Business combieations
Busiross comDinations inediving onoies M o contritind iy the Groug ans scoouning £ using the pocing of rierests methad as

The scasens are Sabibtes of B comtaring enhing 31w sedocing M her CHTYG HTOUNMS.

Na sdpaiments arm mechs 1o rwlect fur values. O recogres a0y New aseatls o fabi les

Adpatiments s cnly =808 10 harmonme sccauntng poiices

The Srancal infrrmaton 0 the fnorcsl saamen's i raspect of 2A0r Denods i restned as i 1o Dusness Somisnston fed cocumet

from the begneng of the precedng penud 1 T Sano siymmorts, ITespactve of the aciual Gate of e combisaion. However, whend

e Dusiness combination had ocaurmmd sher that dats, (e crior pancd irformaton i restinad onfy Fom has dale

The talance of the Resaned Exrmings speesnng n the france stetements of e Porefror @ apgregued wih ha corespondng

GCalance 3poearing in the Manckal SRseMEnis of e anafensd o s odiusted sgersl Cantrn Nesenw.

The dentiies of '8 seservis 41 ooaseved ord the resenes of the bassfor Become the reasrven of he tronsteree

The shurunce If a0y, Bodween T amousts moonsed e shae capital insced phs By aaftional consdoration v 1he %oom of Gasn of

?mmwumammdnmcamasumm-m-mmmm
o Reeanws.

Significant sccoersing judgements, tstimates and assumplinns

The preparation of e conecidaled frandal SINOMONS raqUes Managomert [0 mase dgements. astmales and pasumptions that
atfect e reporiad amounes of rEvenUss, expenses Dsscls and (obdses, and the accompanying disciosues, and the dscicaune of
camigent kabites. Uncartainty atout themo azsumpioss and ceamates could resutt n cuicomes ot reaure o malenal scustment 1
the carrying amoust of desats or luteiies aflocing it Lture perod The ky sevanztions concem ng the figum and ofer key scusce of
astmation uncetany 01 e reporting e, ot hove a Sgnifcant rak of causing & matedal atjustment Lo e Cary iy anowrts of assets
and BabEmes witin tha nest fnancial yesr. ome descrbod below

The Group besed on s assamnptions ond eSinaes on carameters ovalladle when he conscicuied Fnancial SIMEens Wit Srepaned.
However, axisiirg crovmstoncas. and oesumgltiors abolt Mture developments may charge due %o market charges or choumsisncas
W ng Mt ete Deyend 1he conbor of g Group Suth Crangis 8 AMMecied N the BRSUTEIINA shan they ootyt

Proporty. plant and equipment snd Intangtie Asscts
Mansgomen! revizes S osimated usefid hes and rosidual volves o e 2320t annualy 0 order o dolermine he pmount of
carmecaton 1 ba mcorded duting aoy repirting panad. The uastul ives and rselusl ssiues ax far schodule B of the Conmnies A
2013 or afg based on e Goup's Nsiaical Sapenienta with siniar Riscis God AN IO SCCoU SACIealod toshrelogioal changes,
WIEChewr s more Jppeopiale.

116



62

ay

LA

LE ]

€10

(o)

Arshiya Limited
Nolps 10 the Consoildated Ninancial tatements for the year snded 313t March, 2019

Income Tax
The Group reviews & ascs belance sheet cane 1ne COTYENG amount of dekermed Sie sssets Tha festons samd (n sstimatss sy cify fom
actial outcoes which could wad 10 an adjusimert 1o the amounts nepored i the FNancial Mitsrsos

Contingsncws
Maragemen: hac estmatos e posslie cutiow of resowces a the end of rach ancual reporting fisoncial year, It any, in respect of
comirgancies’tlam S patora againsl fie Group i it in rol posslls & predcd the outcome of Dending mattors With a0ouracy.

Impairnmuent of francial assets

T vt proveons r fnarcial D3sets 206 basad on assumations abeut 1k of deluull and wopected cush loss. The Group Lees
fdgmerant in makng B mssumEaons and seecting e Npuls 0 e mpakment caloulstion Bases on Groug' s cust ety ing
Markat Conditons a3 wel s forwiund Koking estmaing at the and of 80ch raporting panod.

Impairmort of nen-fnancial sssets

The Group essesses el euch sporting dale whwibe fecw s an IngiCation thal an asset may be Inpaired. If any HICSGON Gxsls, Of whien
wengd impakement 108309 for a0 9550115 requibed, e Croup eslimalod the Sssel's icoversbin SNoUM A0 BIasTS recoveratls amount
i3 150 higher of un asee(s or Cash Genersting Lnits (CGU] for vaiue loss ooty of dapossl 0nd 1S wirue i use 7t (5 delermnes for w
aividual psset. wrless e assel does not Qareree cash Fficws (hat wie Iagely independert 1 those fom Cther Bssets o grougs of
xaws Whein he caerping amount of an assel o COU 000003 I3 recoviriig Gmour, the dids! I cormoenss i=pared and Is Wit
Cow 10 15 Mcowiralin amount.

17 sasnezing vilue N U, tha ostmaled fLwe cash Fows are Sacounmnd o hell present vilue wsing o pre-tax daccurt rate tha reficts
curimsl ket aocsemsmants cf he time value of money and he risks SPOcic 10 e aasel. 10 detoominisg i webu il cost of Spoeal,
rozenl maket bensactions e Rhen Rio account If no ouch Jonsactons can be denmifed on aproprate valuaton model i used
These calcuaticn am comabornd by v on mutpies or oher avadable foir valus NScatons.

Dafinod bonefits plans

The Cost of the defines teneft plan and e present valoe of such cOIgaton are desenmined Usng Actuadial vilssons. As siwe
VEUREON ITvOhves Making vartus sssumations hat may Sher Fom actusl cevelopmants n the future. These Ingudo the determinatien of
he dscount rate, AAure salary increases, sodslty fites ard stirtion s Dus to To compiaetins voleed in the vouation and s long-
form mature, 3 defnec benefe oDkRITON B Nighy Serailve %0 thanges I Pese Assumplorn Al Raurrpions mw revissed af sach
oot dale

Recovinti ity of irade mecerable

Jusgements are required n assassing e recoverabilty of cverdue vade receaties und ditesritisg whether & peovaicn sgeiosd those
receivables Is required. Faciors considoned nckide he Crodk kg of e COUMRIpanty, (e Emoun wed dmieg of selcpated Alm
PRyTants and 3y possitie DCIONS that can De WEen 12 MISRIE ING rEX of nos-payment

Provisions

Provigons and labdles are recogneed I e porisd when & beoomes protedie thal tece wil Bo & funre cutfow of unos resutng from
pazt operions of evens and ne amount of Cash cutiom can be reketly stimamd Tha tmng of mcogniton d quantficason of the
abi fy reguice the appication of dgement 10 eosirg RS a0 CTOUTERnces, which can e sutiect i chungs. Snce the cash cufiows
SR TR plRce many ywars i e hure e camying amoents of provieons and b S are reviesed Uiy and s 1o ke
sisourt of changing facts and croumsiancos.

Falr valus measurwsn ent of finenclal ssirsmonts

When e far vakoe of fnancial assets a7 Snancol lotdtes recorded i ine balance shest carnot be measured based on quoted trices
1 actioe markoets, ther far value is massred usng vabanon jfechriques ind uding the Dsoountod Casn Flow (DCF) modal The inouks ©
s models s tkn from cbenrvatin markats where posetin, bt where ths 5 not Seosble, 0 degrea of judgameant is requred n
exatistang fir vums Judgeaects okde soteicioiaions of npots such a8 Iqudy sk credit sk ond volatity, Changes n
SRR e Aboul these factions could aMect fie reporied i value of fnancial Instuments.

Rscent sccowsing proncuncements:
Saandards Issued Bul Not EMective

On 35t Macch, 2098, the Mnistry of Corporatie AMain (MCA| has netiied IND AS 118 « Lodses and consn amandment 1 acstieg IND
AS Theee amenamems aral be apoicadie 10 the Groun fiom 151 Ao, 2018

Lisus of D AS 118 - Lasse
d AS 115 wil supersede the current sandard on keoses (e IND AS 17- Leases. As per IND AS 115, the fesade wil have 1o being 20
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Arshiya Limi

Amendment 1o existing standards
The MCA 1as a0 carmes sut amentments of =a filomng nocounting standasds

IND AS 101+ First ma acopton of inden Asouning Stondards
IND AS 103 - Busines Combsnations

ING AS 105 - Firancd mstrumens

IND AS 111 - Joit Amangemenrts

IND AS 92 « roome Taves

IND AS 19 - Employee Banafits

IND AS 23 - fioerowing Costs

Ind AS 28 - nvestmort n Azsccistos and Jont Ventures

Apchabon of ’OWe ST 378 NOT EXPEStDd 10 NOVE Ny SIpniicant impact on 1 Conackdaton finerssl salemenis
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Arshiya Limited

Notos to the Consolidated financial sutements for (be year ended J1st March, 2019

(gt Avseis = oIR |
Particws Competer Rl Licerse
i Teler | somane | fees ki
|Gress Carrying Vabiu jat deamed cost)
As 3t 31t March, 2017 048 1.030.34 370033 4,457
AISS0NE . 22390 . 222600
|Dedcbicrn . (235 80 <
As 3t 3181 March, 2018 049 3,040 44 33033 5,748 25
Ioum . 1106 34 . i1 u.m5
|Accumulsted Amartisation
A% 3t 31xt Marzh, 2017 020 &48 21 260 00 €05 59
Armortaaton for the pear 017 <71 48 24904 2169
' 1207 88) . le
st 39t March, 2018 oAy Y1230 aba.ta 7,312.80
. B4 Ay 249 8 25440
. - 57 96
[EL8 M 15 ZCET) !@
BN XY B Y1 ) S— )
oz} 3338t 2reese] 50375
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakh)

A / [ | As at As at
articulars | 34stMarch, 2019 31st March, 2018

Non- Current Financial Assets

9. Other Financial Assets

Security deposits 1.790.02 1.732.58
Total 1,790.02 1,732.68
Non-Current Assets = il

10. Other Non- Current Assets
Capital Advances

Considered good 1.964.05 965.29
Gonsidered doubtful 1,395.00 1.395.00
3,3569.06 2,360.29
Less: Provision for impairment (1,395.00) (1,395.00)
1,964.05 965.29
Security deposits 59.39 60.89
Prepaid expenses 1,054.33 1,190.39
TDS receivables/Taxes paid 3,128.68 2,601.82
Service tax paid under protest 514 3.87
Total 521259 452226
Current Assets
11. Inventories
(Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable value)
Stores and spares - 15.66
Land 16,505.97 -
Total 16,505.97 15.66 |

Current Financial Assets

12, Trade Receivables

Secured, Considered good 210.77 | 274267
Unsecured, Considered good 4,055.40 -

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 183.90 71.25

4,450.07 2,813.92

Less: Provision for expected creditlosses (183.90)| (71.25)

Total 4‘2_86.17 2,742.67

13. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with banks:

- in current accounts # 982.11 1,278.68
Cash on hand 8.45 7.18
Total 990.& 1,285.84

# Gash and cash equivalents as at 31st March, 2019 comy.rises of restricted bank balances held in escrow account with bank amounting to Rs. 803.81
Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs.744.85 Lakh). This account can only be operated with the specific permission / instruction in terms of the Escrow Agreement
entered into by the Parent Company, ALL and ALSL with Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limited (formery known as Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure
Limited (APFL).

(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars f £ Avat At
& J31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
14, Other Bank Balances
Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money 373.28 457 .68
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 28.09 40.82
Unpaid dividends . 0.04
Total 401.38 498.54
15. Loan
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Loan to other 325.12 -
Total 325.12 -
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Arshiys Limibed
Notss 10 the Consolicated financial statements for the year eeded S1at Masch, 2010

PRn. b Lan)
Parts was -~ R As wt An st
- It March 2619
4. Onher Finarcisl Assets
Secariy deponls A6 ARG
Urtdlied reperim fo 28y Wne A
WMangn meney Wit - 1raoa 1o
Intmrmat Ao e on Veed depas iy S48 -
Cever mioawaz s 2040 025
Totw
* 70 e aduniad ol deve of bl seBerren! S m
17 Cther Cwrrent Asssin
Acrarcea 10 supplets B Mo
Advarces 1 wrgicywes s 1ass
Cowr atvancas LR 3008
Fropasd oxporses 200 80
TDE recehvabesTaves pan) 107 .
Farcms wih Snany. GAenimect 0, tes (Jefer Note No 43 33807 8773
CTaah saged by ncome Tax (Aster Nots No 4B - 10000
Totw L030 438057
(Ms. i Lakh)
e - ! S [T At  Man
Lo _ : Jtat March, 2016 | 3Vet March, 3048
13 Share Cagieal
Auidaserd
15 24.75.00.000 | X182 Mavan, 2018 « 24,78 00,0007 Equty Zhares o N, 2 ech 455000 430m
(0 19080000 (3141 Mach, 2018« 1,10.00 030 ) 0% Opterely Converitie Sefennibie 110000 11000
Preference Shaves (DURPS)of B8 Y0 sach
Yo (U] (T3
Exalte Share Coatia] - mased, subscoibed and Ul Dald
0504252 (310 Mawch, 2018 - 22 82 16,779 Equity sha'es of Ry 2 sach ‘e 45048 34
o CYTED

() Yorwes aod sgbiy

(L Fyorve v ricivis stiached to sauty shares
The Parert Comoany Sae one Sans of sGuly anam Faviag b 007 wirveo of s 2 per shave. Each hoioer of ooy $5ar0 & ettled 12 0o vato pet share.
The stacstctms whic bald ahavse on e sncord date 0 s 5302 20 AW0ond 36 137 D8 2RE0M0] By T B0ar of Drecions 324 b subyect 1 aopvovs of

e Sharchoiders 3t Im ansuing Garers Meatag

1 ¥w weert ol Fguication af the Pawet Conpany. e toldecs of Eanity S0ares wit Do 03] 10 recehe (araining ossems of e Baiwd Compary, oy
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Arshiya Limited
Notes o the Corsoliduted financial statements 1or the year snded 2151 March, 2019

Archana A Abeal culio.m IR 525,20 3% 3187%

Ay 5 Ntte NS M AN 16.5r% 37020 07 1424

Imn—mmcn—wnw $555 00 28459 45002304 20w,
Vol uwa
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19, Other Equety
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& 04 41 e eparmg of e prwr - m®mean
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1) Noowey Nocetves sgainat share warrants
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Leas. On tius of E3uty Sharee JAT 561 67) 41 g6 67
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Besane a0d SimMs.
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Niutues aod pursose of Hewarve end Sumpios.
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Secartes pramiun Gooter! & Sredted B rOLOM PRt (000N 0 00 660 OF edps iy Shs. THO rewmee & sbioed
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Arshiys Limitod
Nodes 35 the Consoldated fleanciad statemarms for the yesrs snded 31at March, 3013

) Amral gamation Ressrve:
Araiganaice masrye b creamd o0 aseawt of o BOF Iad ) Priveem Lirsses with 0w Pasent O MO0
nmuwmumdmhmum iahie: 5

{41 Retabred Baming
Betared Eamngs ore the drofiines | of $e Oroep semod 1 dale ne of specprbsons

Ulalrinien
2. Borrowhige
Becured
(%) Twm Loasrs
From Barks (Reler Mok No 20 1) 357143 .
Fram Orher Partes [Aefer Now N 207 121080011 13500 A
(0) Vebicles Laan Yom bak 042 -

Lz oy & oG i Finascld b o=t ™24 19020 52

Total P KT T SR B

The databs of security. teems of repapmarnt and bk on sorrowiegs [which Incledes curmest matartibes| cirtsned By the Groug

) Dvtatis of seswrny

ahﬁﬂmwmﬁdwmh“mdnl‘mCmuﬁhﬁuﬁﬂ.ﬁuuﬁthﬂuwu
Fetrvary, 2078

O Secondd thongs o8 Dresert asd e reve s sbias HaUdng T ermount Sepos ied & e ZANC TIUA sccouni of the Parert Sompeny

08 The aboes loars pie secered by sersoned of tvo Dwe of the Parest Company.

1 Tarre of Misront raie
0) Nate of derust s @0 14.50% pa

() Tarma of Repaymant:-
Fuges o lown & repunwi e 1 Bulel peyret of e acd of the eroo of ows (o 38 rostu

() Tha smortesd coar deciossd abaws & net off iy { cout of ANGe oot g o Ry, BT Lakn (390 Mass, 2090 - Re 1021 Lawr)

2 Nugee term boen of B, 47420 Lakh:

) Detaits of secorty

() Second charpe an mavabie srd mooaatie Pamvel ascets of Be Pansct Company sscept Ao So snchded properies sncer Lesas Agresrmnt dated
3 Fatnary. 2098

04 Second chage o a~e LVare abian sideg he it = e EARD TRA sccoust of the Farentt Corcgany,
Mmmmnmmmbym'm:vmn-nmmanrmm

150 Terrm of interest sute
Rae of wierestis § 14 0% pa

1) Yarmws of Repagroent.
Aupoo 1oem 0an iy repagpatis 1 73 odesl monthy NMBENAS commarcng Ham e date of Bl Sabunenenti o J1st Avgt 2098

) The Pasart Company has baen in tefaust 50 e mpanrrent of prndioal smount of Re, 1347 Lein,

122,21 Bupee Tarm oaon Ssm Qe Partiey

LAl PanealCacann

(01 Ruge toom oae of B, £3530.28 Land L1162 Macch, 2000 Ao 5135320 Akl

) Securiy prodoes:

§1F sl change 0 ol e crenerr! and WUhre Mvalie 807 yrivibie propety. Fack M A5eTHTt NI ng ITtanglie saaaty, asugrrrent of g e
Berntth of O Pant Company Sut aeiidang promct 3seeis for Ky FTAZ proect, Mhuge Ditvipant Promct, Negowr projct and sl progect on pan
20555 Dasa.

{0 Second chage on comw assets of the Paent © ¢t aedeck: savets for kharm FINE progect. ¥hare Untopeck Fropeel Nagpwr
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Arshiya Uimited

Notes 2o the Comolizaned linancial sulemects for e yeer anded 31at Masch, 2079

(R st ot pastu Change Dy Wiy o hypodheotion On e Fares’ Macendlos ot ot ng and Tetuse of ANatscever raturs
041 The GO0 we 10070 00 3004108 39 pese sl pus of o P D o tw Parere. Comzany.

(V) Th okt s wre secared by phecgect 31 sharws hole by e ta0 Paomotse Dywctorns of the Fament Comaany

(8| Tarms of iotarsat caln
Fate of rencest s © 10% p s camposnded cusaiy

6] Taerw of Repaywant: -
n

=agr :
FY 2017-18 567100
FY 202122 14007 48

= - o

1 The Pavent Corvponry o Dear) 1) Ot 10 the Mpayant of SCoo0r o st of e 6679 U9 Lakh, (116! Nareh, 200§ - R G874 09 Lakn)

{#] The wrortaed soat dacicsss sbove i ast off coat of bo U aggregaing of Ny 5603 00 Labi (301 Manch, 2017 . Sa 717482 Lawny

41 Ruzes taom josn of fe, 240544 Lakh (el March, 2008 - Fa 2ET2.04 Laki

(2] Securties provided

) Second change By way of scuitaie margageipscthecaton on he evte | wiiw ared de property, thet! srd egqupreent of e Parew
Czmzany on patzesscbase

34 The atove ety srw secured by Sencndl gustartees of S Mromeser Direckns of 1he Pavest Cormpeny

16} Termm of Repapmernt.-
MLpee Mo St i odysie in 13 eTuctared QUi celIYIerts COMIMEory) et ST6 ey, 3004

124 The Porast Corvpmnry Nk Doy Iy Ot 101 00 spoy Teant of BErcis ano1 of Re 079 Laks. (X1t Narch, 2018 - T 428 Lach)
160 T aracribed Cot dAOTRed #cwe 8 el OF D00 PR COM OF OO §S agprepanny of [s 186 58 Labh (115 Narch, 209 - Rs 403 00 Lakh)

(3 Raoes teon loga o S LA IREE LS

|8} Bosarites providod

10 T alowa 1008 @9 S00u0] Uy Chpe 00 fesdudl ol iw of e Pacent Company,

4] Tha aidawe loers 308 300ueE By (5o ramcratie propacly Sok by cae Profreie: O iechy of B0 Pates! Company 00 DA Dasss Dass
(K] The szowm lomrm are ol by o D of e P O of e Pacery. Coregery

1) Thes sbaove Ioana ave sooued by Dhed gad O cranes P By fe ore Promoter Diecior of e Pamnt Comgarg

1) Toomss of Incorant sate
A0 of (rdeees1 & @ 16% p.o composnond hatt yearly

1€) Toerrm of Regayveet:.
Rupes terms Joan 13 resepatie 0 bubiet papmant af the g 2f 19 Srvuss OF laen Le. 15 Mo

(4) The anomisad cos! ciacioees 300V & net off Incerral coal of Donawngs sggregeteg of Ra. 5135 Likn

121 Nusee Lo doan of e, 33,842 31 Lab 13t Mergh, 2018 - Rp. 31126 Labhli

{31 Securties provided

(0ROl Char an B1 avabie 495515 LNG A0V DN COrBIrWS BoUE ) and 3 -3 of AWML Lot presery. 20 1000 o0 D PSY
tesa

10 Second chage by way of hyPoTecaion of Tw eTam Tumet sxuwi of ANL on pen peasc bess

(%) Placipe of 120% ecsity shaces of AFUL Seld by e Farert Compary.

{v The shone 0o ore S60uned by Senenal guarariees ot hea Framoter Doecon of the Parerrt Compeny.
V1 The 30ve lcam arm il by conpacala g o e Parere Corsary.

{t) Terrms of Inlerest rate: /‘
Pate of 2 10% p s corpoenced geariesy { ) 3’
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Arshiye Limited
Notes 1o the Consobdaied financial statemunts for the yoar ended 315t Marsh, 2018

Terwrs of -

1) The amartud com Jckoeed aDowe i 810N (RG00TIE CON 8 DOWTAVGE SQ5re0atng of s 457,10 Lakh (3tet March, 2010 - Bs §12 14 Law|

sl

{1 Bsgee Ja0m dsan fram Ceher Pacies of B, 1063709 Labh 19t Mareh, 2017 - Ry 90447 22 Labh):

18} Fos ity provizes:

P Fs chonge o Mead aasets of ANPL Soth presert ane A on po 2eess Sesl

10 First Pan Passu chagelassgnmentaecucty ndeest on e AN rights under N project docsmeans, conrecns fnche@ng puantiees) and ph
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st

FY 20292021
FY mao

S
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13} Secarity provided:
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l?%Em 1 L
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1) The wnortued coat daciosed atioes I net ot nocomsd cot af b Wt 2pg 1egEIng of Rx. B06 Lacs (31s! Npach, 2218 - Rle 10 44 Lai|.
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?
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Arshiya Limited
Notes 1o 2w Consolideied financial xtatements for e yesr endod 315t March, 2019
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ia] Sacurrien provised
- Expiusivs changes on cesh fows of O t hossing bulideg
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(a) Securites provides
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(24.3.1) Parert Company
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Copost bon Unincldan LLoE: 03 45
Francal geeravioes obigeb o s .
Pagatie for captial gocds 722008 T4
Dot 12 empioyoes (Nciuding 140 and fioal semeren ) ™M e
PFapatie lor enpenvas wen 119600
Cerer Pagatian . nn
Total ~LREN3S
—

128



Arshiya Limited
Notes 30 the Coraaiidated Nnancial statemunts Sor Uw ywar seded 313t March 2018

A1 Nusee Ternhoas fmm Raoke;
L1 Panet Sameanx
Uil fuzes Yern kpe - B 3 A72.08 Lakh 221t March 2018 - Be, 149067 Laws]
18] Securiies provided:
« Second change o7 moustil and ITRevRbie (ope Ty, Xert o) equpmerts of b Pererd Compeny, preserst ansd Atsie 09 pa-Feses

164 Toe ces b0 is d by peracrwd 7 of o B = of tte Parwr Company.
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WLIASL
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191 Setuctinn proviied
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o} Secend change by wey o appolwcaion of e entre Cuarent sseets of ARKL on perl passs Bave
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4] The aboarve ok Bin eeced by parsaeal QU avines o1 1as P1oovimer Drsttons of fve Parent Corperry.

) The sbove icere avw d Y Gonp P o 1 Farent Companyy,
2] Tarrm aof intsroet rals:
) Maske of indesmst s  10.45% pa. - 1639% pa
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FY 20122073 2%
Y1320 TH 0
FY 3162008 Pyl
FYansom 1@
Fraesaomw 25900
R Gy

* Fafur Nate No. 48
1) Dotads of colmst n repey of prrvaal o red Joas e o 1ot March, 2019 arw 2a folowa:

&huhl‘
_Yasr JAM.I%I_
FYamaaon (5]
Fraimsxsa ™S00
Franeaon =
FY201520% fBw
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77 iy
ThE H06ve 1nan as bawn recud od by Barks.
ALLIANT,
151 Rupes Term bopey - Sy, 12906 90 Lokl Ciien March 2018 - Ne, 1230438 Labh),
1) Sacurtlins provided:
$1 Pz ohaDe on Nend ncets of ANFL DO presend arrd e On Sari pass bana
M Pt Pt Panu > 13 on e ANFUs rghts under e progect ndetng o s ot

Keraes, perrat Mmum;mm
100 ASS0event of COMYBCHY DOdnariods, FRLidastd derrdpes, iel O O o0, CuNsriice & parfirriarce usder oy progect agetemes! or Soraet » Ao
o ANFL

%) Seoond chuwgs On Earrend Bueets of ANFL

1¥) Piadge of 40 52 178 equity shares of ANFL Seid by e Puret Corpany

[4] Tha abave laxts sre secs e by penceal guaavisas of e Fromater irecian of s Parcet Carngarry
(g The wtows loans ww oy coep ] of $m Maseyi Saepary
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Arshiya Limised
Notes to the Consofidated financial stasemants for the ywar endad 39st March, 2018

{8} The Rarka has Deon Mcales an of B8 12 104,98 Linh (31a1 Mioch, 2310 - Ra. 12,104 45 Lakh] s inderest of R, 16,967 59 Lubh (3351 March
018 R 11,530 50 Lawy)

Detalis of data st in repayment of Srindlaal 90 s020ted |obes 88 o= 315t March, 20493 are a3 follows |

—wRET ]

1Y 2013-20%

FY 214.20%

£Y amsxone
Votal_

(1) Loan of Ry, 6,200 00 Lakh (3161 March, 2018 « R, 6,600.00 Labh| (Rafer Note Mo, 44)
Secursd by st and enchis e Change o0 Snd $0uste 5 Viege Butlon s Nagout, WMatarsthyx The xakd ican samas mmes! 3 0% 5.3

(2) Loan of e, 2,800 00 Lakh (310¢ March, 2048 - Re., 1,551 52 Lakh] (Retar Hose N, £5)
() Becured by Arel and schis v charge or and shusied ot iherda. Buandsaaty, Usar Padesh

(3] The Pasert Compeny s Leas 0 Sefeid! ot e riguymand of of fx 2,000 Lakh {31t March. 2017 « Rm, 975 Lakn)
[+ Tre smorteed coat dacioand above Is ret of nckdeninl 0oet of LOMIWEs 0 egetng of Ra. NI (318l Nk, 2018 < Ha. 23 48 Laks)
SALLARM

(2 Muzes Term foans - Re 226002 Ladh

() Securties provides

10 Fost 20 poneu chirgs on i present a2 Ao cah fows of AR,

(¥) Forst part pasty charge on 28 movaths and mmasabee a5 of ARL

|} Chamge o0 zesh Sown aned mouabie seuris by deed of Pypothecation

) The ave (0013 one soousd Dy pevsantl puaterizes of two Peesster Decion of ¥ Parett Compary,
%) Tha 2awe ISerme e £ACLIWE Dy COROrAe JLETaRInet o 10e Parens Company.

(&) Terres of botwrast cale:
Ravolmanstis § N%pa
() Twrms of Repayrrwal: -  (Rs. b1 Lakh)
Yaer | Lown from Othars
FY 2062-202) 286000 |

[d) The atova losn raz tean recales during the year

Wiz Aurs

(1) Loan of Rapase NIl |18t Nacch, 2018 - R, 200 03 Lakh):

(80 Securifes provided

(1) The slove s is sosured by senona! jus of tam & Dirnciors of $w Parwnt Compony

(¥] Chumge oo movatle seopmry Sae Sea) (egaiens ond on Wamovabie roped; | o 1rg 30eass(ng T B8 0008 5 10 DO repiiieced

() Torms of Ielerost rale
Famot miamin 1% pn

[35.2) Detalie of defuu It o paryment of IIaraat 0n 402 ead leans o o0 3958 Mareh, 2019 are s fotlewa:

¥ 20132014 A« -

Fr 242015 2,706 & .
Fraoms-ame saner -
Fr 20627 3808 55 .
FY 3017-2014 4 sIas
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Pethular » 4 Anat Et
2 : FstMash 2009 | StetMareh, 2018
7. Cthwar Curreet Liatiition
ASvence recsned from Customens N80 -
Gawerrent G %50 a6
Trade advances recened . w25
Crrer Azvances 129 17
SWassry Owes (Refer nome bedow) 220w 138732
iy gy Tl by 3000 208 18 130085
L] 288581
Notes
(1) Shsiyy ducd Neucod Tax docuties i sources (TDS), Proddent Mund (P17, Ps Tax FT} and Emplopes Sae Car |5

127 Baser on seeert Supvamnd 0ut LAgOMER OF SMuLhe of Son ponosl e cultuliice of Provident Furd daled Feleuary 28, 2019 et are varous
FRerpoeve uss NGAKGNg 13 ARpiCabify has Drospecive Diovisian w o . March 81, 2019 Doee aoraidered of Ru 1.6 hhs.

=] . In
TN T - ar o C T e - As "
Peticulars : . ’ AT et g 19t Mach, 2019 2018
Operan) Dalarse 2% 202808
o me (8235naed U T yaas 286.45)]
Cloning twiance 139701 234338
Non-canent iabt bes e 105
e MO SR SES SEEAY -k
E.hgg
Lo SR :‘j - LATEE _1 o 2 5 - P " L'nd 4 &' ¥
M e L 'M;{isfw{‘)&#ﬁéf £§§L StatMareh, 2018
I8 Prevision -
Produon for ampioyes Dareix (Relar Nole No. 0]
Crutsty 7 212
Lesve encash mert 2208 AL S
Tol 2080 28 )
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(Re in Lok}
o v
Yoas Endpd Yoar Unded
I'."""‘ A2 3tt March, 3043 | 3tet March, 2018
In Revenue from Operations
Salo of services
Radl beight ircoms 1287457 1237423
Somge income 852307 842208
Cendtoral Laase ot 2,500 00 '
Read fregst ncome 250021 1z
Material Parding and oher sances 288448 21814
Tominal ncone 23583 18
Bemeatic warshouseg Irsame 121,00 2000
Frsics lease income 300 -
Ctrar cpevaling noomo 10.55 32,1924
Total 43733 2530809
30. Other Income
Irburusl incceme on
Bork fioed deposis »n 4.0
Loana 1o ohers 280 M8
Ofers 452 6113
Otedand mcome - .80
Govermment gmris 65 &3 16549
Firssrcisl gusraries come wrm 207
Fioanc s aseets corfed ot amotaed cov 19300
Formon wahange diferarcs (net) . 10550
Provdsion for doubihul debits wiite back . 108.61
Exzoss provison wien back . 462 14
Suniry balance wrizen back #9125 46263
Gan on derscogrised of LiabRy Componert sy 17 .
Gan on cisposa! of Progary. ot 30t equ pmsnt om
Masalanacus (noome wrs P
Towl 250000 186313
31 Fraight Expanees
Rovl fresght expensoy 440 85 1021550
Road Yeghs exporsss Loem 14524
Towt [XTE] ICTETR
32, Empicyee Denshits Cxponso
Solates, wages and borus lgegaz JA% N
Contieuton 1o povident sd clrar Surds 10207 9309
Staff wa fow szereds 12848 10612
Toa e hiBIRE LEIL5L
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Yoisl

(Rs. InLabny
) LAY S - ¢ A
!vnonu  ¥marEnded | Year Ended
e J1st March, 7019 | 318t March, 2018
). Fasance Cost
Erherwsl eapeciee on bomow ngs Fa R AR AT
Frierust eapanse on siiory deen 567 70704
Urrwindedd irtarest mepwme o0 secsrty deposits 78 15068
MRSt @epense on oNen Ay a5
Imierost 9xpenso o MSWMED wandors (Rakar Neta Ne. 30) A0 025
Cther barmowing costs Bao7
Toul XTI FIXIRCE
34. Doprecintion and Amorisation Exganse
Oepraciston oo propady. plare snd ogupment 8.56515 8.4¢2.87
AMIreaston oh infarg be asae iy L LEAR
Tou! (Y] TREFLE
35, CBar Expenses
Elecuichy charges sax 0 3Izde0
Rent 563 89 467 &
Ropsits sd mairtseancs:
Bubdeg 10077 03 40
Mant and Maseary TATS (2R~
Othars 13288 138,36
nswance sn W
Rates and lees 0 MW
COMMUNTAGoN SXpenses TL8% T84
Trovekng and Comnnoe eerses 4583 44032
Vahle exparoes 04 58 Vol S
Priming and statonery a3 64 £4.20
Legol and professional fezs 403 3 3480
Seovtty charges 491537 39209
Acvertigemare and Business Prosoion espenses TA35 19808
Audnos resuneretion:
« At Feos 2 e 10409
- Umiod Raview Feod 150 1225
» Corsfcaton hees 2165 17%
Frovsion for doubiv| debls 15268 e
Bad Dotts a5 At 101 564
Famgn scchacge diterencas (nel| a3 21 -
Mecaisnsous axpenses e 18408
Dvacier a1ng e 285 -
Dacandnpiwiiie of of Fragerty plael 302 Spufmenl and 165 34 78
niangitie assois
Toul FXZTFD) 2895
36 Excoptional Ibems
Tiszon it on of as 82000 (net) . 582 3%
Setaman of deing (5187.04) n’.t?a;xl
Loss un sale of subsidory (Reder Nole No. 57) . Ui
Gaie on monebzaton of proparty, shant and egupaent {Rar - (1383520,
Nete No. 58)
1086 on SR acsrg of Proparty. plant and squismaent . L5 64

el
v ¥ %}}uf'
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Notes to Consolidated financiad statomonts for the year ended 31t March, 2012

AT Comngent Labiitkes and Commnnents
371 Comngent LabMties 1o the extant mot provided 1or i respest of)
baducad L2y MR 4 T o statuecn 208 | usmarohasns_
() Insoma Tax Demands 14, 11.007 74
] ugﬂuau'rudum - 20.5%
] puied Service Tax demand 1423 1.6
23919 2239212
118.25 162 00
100.90 100,00
@501zt 33l
18,505 20 .

an
(o}  The Ashive Lifestyls Umted twhaly owned subadiony) haes ertesed 0o cpening lease armngenonts for coram winancons fecitis.
The laade I3 noncanceliahle ant s T 4 pariod of £ years and may be eoswed for a futher paricd of & peers Besed 0n Putund
narosmant of the partiee. The leass agmamenls provide 1o an Inooese in a Bt paymerts by § % owtry peor hom nese

(0 The Growp has fakon oNI0os On lasse UNder ROSCOTGOTODS COSANg lane SApITng of e ond of 3 pears

Extmisites sencurt of coniracts remanng 19 be escuns on cackn and othir 30CoUNs ana 1ot prowsad YT (eer of athvanoss paK| am

Rs. 6.345 50 Lok (3151 March, 2048 < Rs 448 80 Law)

Opacating leasa commitrea nis

conrrarct e ddde

g n As ot Asat
WeTn ofe e as1em 484237
Later 5an one year bot not D han fve yoars A LS
Later tnae fve yoars . 430887

toorrn, secaiaticon clauses and mopsal izhis. On renewad, the wrms of e woses e renegatialed

As ol At
Future Nom-Cancallable miniowam loase comnitmonts
Wihio one pe 51 2085
Later than one yike bul Aot Misr s Ty yaers 6519 186111
Liater then five yaers - 5
3 Deftails of duts 20 Micro, Smadt And Madiom Emarprises a8 por MEMED Act, 2006
(s, In Lawn)
™  Axat An wt
pALTS 9 1% March 2018
med us 1511
401 o,g
et FG by the GIoup b e of Saction 10 of the MONED Ad, 2015, akrg % e
I arun! of the sapment made 15 De 0PN Seyend Nie &ppanied &)
ha year
L] jeroat dee and payabie Yor ho penad of defay o making popment (whch have . -
pes byl Sopend e spronm? day duing e your] Bul wihou! adding U
e el Spociind utde e MSMED Ac( 2008
) | BI2Iuad B AN NG Jemd 401 021
I |Wierost renaining due and payatie even i the SUCoeeding paa's, Unil such 2ok . -

lwher e risreet dums 2n 3bovwe e sctusly ped 1o e mio eod smal srtepoees

Neto: Duas 10 Mo, Smal 10 Medur omierpeises e baen dolemmined 1o e eutent SUch (arles 2aso bean iderified oo (e toss

of mormaion oolected by the Gooup and reded upon Ty Pe Audion
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40 Empicyes Decetts

421 Disclosure pumsmat to Indin Ascounting Standerd OND AS) 19 < Ermployes Senefits

1 Dafined Contribusion Plan

Cartrinton 1o Defined C 1500 Plan. iecognised 45 evpossos 0 Lhe yO7s &0 a8 under
} - Yosr ancus
L b AR >
Fane 2118
Errgloyers Contetaton to Peraizn Schems LR
EALS

(0]  Bewl detcoiplions of the plans

vaﬁmmmluWFm d Ermplopees Stale insumnte whees the Group hus no further ob igaton

¢ e it T Geoup's Sefsed banol! plans nclide gesbeny. The ampiovees sro aso en¥ied 4o leave
Wuwﬁo@mﬂmu
e
e ¥ o N
G ol U AT k" )

‘mmwhnuumom
Qe Froveion s of 110 ard of 26 yoor
Non Curent Frovision a0 ot e 000 of the yoar
I sian secocniasd in e Sheet

Provd o o e Ryba~cn

(3}  Dafired benefit plan = Gratuky:

The amplcywa’s Geanty Sird s maraged Dy e L irsuance Coporsion of gia. The possent walue of obiigaton & delarmises
DOSed 0N ACAEF VORILON Lang 1N Propecied Uril Crodt Nothad, wiich 1000006ed 0adh 2onod of somnvicos 3¢ gwing rise o
wackizra) il of eeipioywe besa®™ sk ament and mearares sach Utk saparately %0 befd up o Sl oblpason

S4aE Narc, 30 ]
irden  Assured  bvos
|20%6458) Ut

6%

Tav%

800%

17008

58 Yoors|
200.0 WL
1“8 "oy
an s
1225 mas
2ste {1oe2)
:$24 36306

| CRaage in Fair valen of plan assets
wabuw of plan wesats ax ot e begmoang of the ywar 2108 11208
rlaIn on plan sssels &04 1Sar
Entenpoise's Contibution s (22.39) 132.4%)
ek pa b 2243
0% 35501 0U0 10 Int in Para Saf) - -
AChunrw geenvieas) o0 gl assets . (A5%)
Far vabie of plan ivets 3 o e et of e yeat .10 12378
. Acseal reten on glan assets
setum on plan sssels 604 1547
pan\jces) on pas sarty - a5%)
604 1108
. Peovinhen recoprisod in e Balance Shoet

Frovison 25 ot he ond of e year 2342 25068
Fak volue of plon azasts o3 ot the ard of the year 5720 12079
Prowsion secognised In fhe Balonce Sheet 152 13063
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V1, Percertagu of nach cxtegory of pian messts 10 %081 fair value of plan assots

18 1o mansged lands 100% 100%,
VIL Amount rezognised in the Statement of Profid and Loss
erACe 00t “az 65.0%
cont 1mes ne
0L ON PO D3NS 228 (\922)
acharul [gen)cex o be on obdgalon -
|Lxpanse meognised i Statament of Profi and Loss 5104 uu

mmumhummummmu

nn 2%

“ 0

045 18.38)

(€59

2061 1867)

11837 sa1r

S104 S

122.25) ms

28 58 {867
17E. 13888

(0] Sewy sscudion sspmetion hes Seen 36 0 SsusInss wih he erteTnse Sosed on Bar ostmates of oversl kngteme sarary

Srontl rales afer Wabung o cotsedandion eapacied saimings naton ax wel 43 perfarmencs snd Thy rebled §
Changes in moam
sssunptions colhgation

-0 30% |
2.50% 275 54
+0.50% 27863
3 9% W3 1!
0. 10% 27080
3. 10% PSP
0% VT
LQ.10% 27182

The scowe serativty anslyss is based o0 8 change o an asaumpoen whie hoidng ol other assumgtions conetont. In pracice, thes is
wnlinaly 10 oexur, and changss 1 some of the axsumphons sy be comeleied, o passsrting the ¥5ove sealiviy sralys s, e posssst
wile of defined benefil obigation hus been calcunined uang the proecied ud cwsd method s the snd cf reporieg swend, which ix the
mnun-mmuum.uawmmmmmunumm

Thees clans typlcaly 2xposn the Group 10 actuorel reks such a3 ‘Ongevity nak nnd salary risk

§0)  Irtwomal riwk < A decreans in the o 1 rate w b thw plan provesd

®)  Loogevty owk - Tho prewent v us of the defoed benef s proviesn s tafcuisded By iwlereson 1o the Sesd wrleaie of the meedally of
Fas paticpants both durng ond el Bar esgipnesl. An ncsaie in he e epecaney of the pun sRScols. Al Ut @0
Crehs e slr's provians

(€)  Salary dak - Tha presant vakue of the defined plan provesion /s ool cuaned by referance 1o the S4ue siiares of plan parstipanis. As such,
a5 rvease i e salary of the plam participants wi increase the pla's prosision

403  The meigited aversge duralon of e defrad benet chigaion ot !he erd of the mparing pencd @3 & pears (37 March, 3008 - 8
years).

Ly

g
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Natss 1o Cormoldated financial statements for the year anded 315t March, 2019

Preparation cf inasclal staloments on “ Gaing Consem” basks

One of the scbsickery Compeny viz Avshiya Ral InFastrucime Linled s accumubited Srsses ang megatve rol worth Somo of i
lencwre have recabd ther loans and tha suBcizlary CoMpanTy s I 18 2rocess of napstatng the revead paymont serma. The subsdary
Company s EMOTA posisve and sin the commencement of the two dedinied Suight w, e sk usedary company wil
Beca’t ey woku.mnmmwwmumm“mmmmmwmm.m-umwwmm
e ceohisbbty. Alpo, the propoIod monger 0f ancifor subadory conpany Wb this schsidary comsany, wosks mele ther cpwston
0 only Coerplarreriary, Sul anhence Hor proflabaty

In view of e focussnd empnasis of the Govemment on DHSICE INYASULOUTD SOM, INe PIOPosed NslLcaneg md corsdeng e
01 that (he Tactthes wie yet % sctieve N cperatoral patental besices 1o stroleg G kocatons of the facites, ha monagement & fubuss
Outo0s 01 3 Dasressas IS very promising. Accordegly the faancils fave been plepered On going toscam baaa neuding tased oo
francal sippart from e Pavent Comeany

Owarssed ocus fom orly Sisel noyetry 10 Camart, Agro a0 Tes aka 30 03 10 Rave 3 DODNOS of LrODLCE Mix.
Sabilong of PFT tusiess Wil Long senm convacts and cosstructing he second e,

Saardardization of Comangrs 10 0@ a0 1 SeRar LUhZo the sadets,

Covemmem fotus on NMubi-node' logatic and ranazod servces 1o inwass the thoughput of $im irdm o imacty d by the
company,

Caossmimant loces on Bie revanging of the Raday Baargs and horeasing denly 6N rgelaiory s5pects 1o sUppan resciuson of the
ToQUANCry caas,

Two Dedicaied Freight Comcors) (DFC) song the Wesiam and Eastem part of 1ndia 50 SUDPOM INCI0240 in the utiress solume,

Gomsmrant armowncannt of Jews Arpert ard Meorst Hghaay carnecing Jowar via Kruna and thevedy coanecing o Yamens
Exptesswayl i Dot 1o Ages

Cormain crodios have NiSuod legal procosdings sganst 1ha Group 80 ks Dwectars end Mie Group his celauied 0 sapmest of
Famiments of CoNsent terms 10 which the Qroup i 1 process of negosating an? frakang 1o fevised cossart simea Magcaly of the
Credions dave bean setfied over e pas! fow years and some of the credions Newe wso shoan Nierest and R I not ooly in the Baskcs
Irirasinchuce sacior bt 50 i Arshaa Group and are boing alotins oquly shaces of the Farent Company.

The Parest Company, ATHL, ANFL and AJDHL B scoursuimd oases sod cantmn owdions N BEsisd mgal poossdng sganst fis
oumganies 0nd hewr DRectors 126 1oy of the Bmouns Bue HIMewWer I Comal) Casds Nas acuted Sonsent WIves of 1a n e
process ol fraknng soreart lerme wih 1o cred ey,

The FPasent Compiny ks Gvan 15 wisehousus 90 ling Srm Mase snd receved s s paynests, Th macsgun el ha seo
INSEi0S VENouS OINAY SR0S SUCH 34 SoNSINUCSon Ad fuus devalennast wiin e FTWZ, eatactueng e Paant Conpany und 1
subsdotes busness cpeinom. The Parert Compiny, has given & suppc lotur lo edens, fur the Lreseeshe e ey fescal
seppor which may be requited by Moo subsisoros. Coraidenng e srongth of Iocational advartages. Atwe oulock 45 assessed by
mommmmmmﬂ #0530 3ubsdaes managamant 1S confdant 10 CoNInUE 85 A QoD concem Tro long semm

oapecis, h - t on factors wid commcianied fancial siatemacs of Base aalies Fows accondingly besn
mwnumnwomm

The management is 1 e process of restruciing 15 BUsSNess coerations and sieps 208 a8 urder:

Compattnn aovamags of ' FTIWE sih asily scopsubie 10 o S0 Ieossnt s mast is NCA- Gusgson ssd Dy 1o i0Steis
utizeion,

Algring wartause st Sptbution cenmier QIS 1 SLppeT Sompacins b Bigament with besiouss strudegy snd sevse & comgeiive
sogn o Muti-mode Logstcs

S0 operstianal fankty Ras now arbared 0 ong fame contract with gletal shipping mejor.

Tha planned ©AQ N CONYRC 20 PENEPSNaBen of Resfor Carpe 20 NSRBI Nwanue,

rorwaning fuoughpit thrcugh colssocatve Pooing of suaex’ with cther 150 and Private Cortsermr Trsin Operatons (PCTO),

lorsaaing menest fron vanous Clcbal cestomers for nograted solutions indeding rol trorspon ond FTWE

Loans %00 various enden Nave boen Basgned ty banks 10 Ecolweiss Aszots Recorsyuction Company Liming (EARC). EARC had
Iesvuciured the Gan and ewccutsd e Restruaaing Agroement (RA) dated J1st March, 2017, In acoordancs wih RA, EARC has
converied port datt IO reetructired dokt, Dalance psagras Kan is 19 be coaveriad talo 3,21,62,304 aqurly shetes and 54,232,330 sam
parcart cptonatly convertble redeematis prafersccs shams (OCRFS < Sarns O of on valee of Rs 10 esch o & pros of Ra 1,020
wach Jnduding premus of e 302) of the Campary, as 2o aslen! SEBI mies ong rgulstions. The EARC has avaiod e nghe of
eomvarsion of OCRPS ims aquly.

Durng the year ended 315t March. 2018«
In ngoregain ¢t 38 57 S14 acuty shares of I sach a0 comversen of OCRPE Sadas | hive baas olioned 10 EARC.

Pursuard 10 RA, the Company nas alstied 4600000 Equty Srares of faco vakee of Re2 sach (o the Promoier open conmersce of
equal number of warmants.

O A
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Thm Pavent| Company I8 engoged I (he tusness of devwopeent w3 * of Fres Trade ana Warenousng Zone
IFTWZ) and Dcrraste Wirnhowsing Zone Durng 126 year angea 345t Maen, 2019 camen pection of Land which wes ceasdied undm
Fropety, Flant and EQuipmen] (FPC) i now trenafenmed o ik tios o Iher camyng smeunis for Ao deselaprants

Dst of 1o 2bove N0 DOTels. JuIng e peir endled 119 Mareh, 2019 the Pucert: Compary Sae weieosd rmn 7 lewos agreserents
BOEragating 13 5,20 Aches of Ian2 wilh & whaly owned subsdery company for deveopment of sarehouses i FTWZ Parsel

The Parent Compdny ind i wubtsidianis fave defmuted in agreed repapment schacyls of Restsctnsg Agroemant (RAL Ax par gebt
comranl, he Parert Compony and 45 DSOS %0 roguied 8 0% 1 Me2ayTNrt Schedule @nd ary sher papnient gives
Edehttia Assel Recosatruction Company (EARC) fie righ! to camvet wncle of e oulsiand ng 3mourt of seeltuctune? npes an
Mor ot of e delault amount nto Lly 2o up equly Shaws of Be Panest Conpasy. No such notice of commxon 0 wilng hes
toon given by EARC and Pe Paen! Corgety md i absd ades cordrues o dcioan e anourt s non-curme . and cumest
Lefrowirgs a8 er fupayman scheciin. n the Sialarca Sheet

Cufng e peer ended 3131 March, 2010 i Peoart Conpary has defeu e 1 Sapmer Ss per conam! 8T sgned with cre of 1os
Kon-fianking Fnence Company (NOFC). Sebsequent to the year end. e taid NEFC hae ossigred iy 0ol¢ 1> Eouiwess Asset
Reconswusson Company (EARC) Pumsient i ha teid sssigenent, EARC become IMe ende: and entiio? 1o recover iolal duss
wengweh nlereat st cosbiactusl rales 3nd oher charges. The Pacsrt Company dosen| eupect any addtional Fabi¥ses / charges ard
fabi ias accounied in Ihe books of ascourt a1 edenuain

A Puttc Frarcal athton (PFT) ngrees to settie ek ouianding loon conatiusing princple ond nievest of R 16,700 Lok
SOOTHRIL s §nd CONdLons volvis payment of e 5 000 Labh which & sedured by ed 8! Nagsuwr ard %o belancs anount of s
11,700 Laks, scomart of Optonaly Comverdtis Redasratis Prafarence Shares - ¥ (CCRPS - V) comeentibie upto 1550000 aculy
ares 3% e opton of ho PR Corgitatng e Semd, rooossary 4Tect 1as Dasn Divsn 1 1 Dosks of Snuis Suirg Be Bewous
pene Aa cwe atarwhcider apprcenl i the EQGM dated 25th Janywry 2048, the Paoart Company Sas approved alioament of 11,70.000
OCRPS = ¥ and e same wim corvenad imo 1660000 Equity shares on 22n2 Fatauary, 2016 as ser sattianen! lerrms agieed
Subseguenty is e hosombie High Court of Uomtey, e Parent Crpany 2as made the representson that pest adrimart of the
rqeky ¥haras A somonnd by fe FEL (Mo total ouatandng folt romaire of Re. 5000 Lakd,

Dusng e paer arded 131 March, 2008, e PF) has ssegred s detl o Sie Edebawas Asset Becorsirucnsn Corrpany (SARC) Tre
Company mas proviced intwest in boe wis siaor fermes regotiated wiis BARC. 11 the Srafisaton of 1he resiuchirng agmement

A suteldary Company | @ Anbia Ral hiaainciune Limtsd rad entened mi ofeane seitemest (0TS mn o HBaw ourng e year'
nted 31 Narch, 2019 smd e effec! wes lhan s s sacepsonal Ben clring he pesr anded 31wt Macch, 2015 Homsvw, the
sussidary Company tan Setoulnd in paymorl as per the sams of the DTS As o resul, ihe subaadiary Company maeds 1 sverse the
euptonsl gain reconded during the year anded 37pt Nanch, 2019 a%d neecs 1o ecognee Isterast o the antr iabdly 35 cer the
oigind terms. Tho subsiziary COmpany is in 3C0teien o I e K 0a 201 GI0ECnal L % raday

Tro subsigiary Compary Nas N0t sevorsdd th gees, A0y PIovided 10f 203 Lone ntasesl Had the Subsdery Cotplny rivrsed e gan
wd provided for adilona mrlereat eecaplicral Bem wouks have Deen Ower by Ra 0604 55 Lakh and foance cosl woud hars been
Hiohat Dy A5 350076 Lakh Naving 0OrEoquorta’ mOact on 162! 0O Lron enine Inoome 526 110 y0r ended 316 Maren. 2018

Cash Seized by Incoma Tax
Tha amoure of Rs. 100 Laah caah se2ed By 1 1ecome Tax Sopamreast 4! e $no of Soarch o8 13M June, 2014 nas adusied U e

COR seized aganst demand of 1he Paronl Comaany and 10 be speciia ogainel Assossnent Yoo 2054.2016. Vivke these & 3 demand
it Ansenarract Year 2214-2015 Fm same bs coslesind and the s derrased s refecing in Contngued Labédy (Reder rate no 37)

Schame of prargemant ond arcaigamasan Wiy 230 1o 222 and cthor apzicabie prowsons of ina Companies Act, 2013 has basn St
before 1o Setiora! Company Law Trisunal {NCLTY) Setaen Anhrps Biadl Infrestrucics Lmited Asviys Industed & Dadetuton s
Laviod asd Arshpa Transpan & Hentheg Limited ang helr respocsys shareholgen The soheme 8 cosdienal on wanaus appeawel
sarctions and s o¥ecive haroaher, ascondegly no affect of he said Schame is gven In the comclcnied nencel semments. The
Ciadiots maetng of the reigectve comparies was held on ) May 2070 The Schimeld) shul e ghos et aler reccict of
NECOEIrY S0RTvals

The Rotrd of Drectoes of e Pacart Company i (her s1eakng held an 240 May, 2046 has azpnovod o schame 1o futhar ssonganze i
OOt SUTIING E0MDd. ATIDNS VOTOUR GITUR SmPInkes, B Grder to Imegratalccrmcidate K3 aoerafona by recigantong difeent
DU CEes 110 IS STUBES SLO/GCT 1D VICUs Q2provils
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consolidated Binanclal statoments for the year ended 318t March, 2019

Tris Schwens (s pesenled under Secrons 230 12 232 road win Secons 65 and 52 and St apebestle prvasses of s Companes
Azt 2013 for damogor of *Domestc worshousing Susness” of the Paredt Cormpeny inlo Amshiya Rl Infrasiuctucs Limiled. This
ropcend 3cheme of amangerernt (s condional upon approvil of B cogang ¥ me of roup companies | o merge! of Arshho Ral
Fierucions Limvied, Anshya Insustral and Dsirbuson Hub Limied and Ao Tramgort & Handing Umbsd, which § perding wih
NGLY No sccourting mpad sad disciosures & conuiierod a0 NEcIssary &l N S85e pandn g eui|e 1sguiatry spprovals

Cameat Cradit Recatentie:
Tro Geoup Nas baon ROaly DIVS0T AL Poat MErger & 2o AIDHL wih ARL, P unutioed cenvarl Sredit of 180 AIDHL can ba Ut ined
for sischargng f7a serace Sax Sabaty of ARIL

Wdirect Tax Refund Rozelvatie
A par 1he Notfcomon dated 16th May, 2013 Seuel by Covtenrmant o Maharmahira, MVAT asermzticn johnd & svalable 1o SE2
Dwdwwolhﬂsmoaunr 2041 {record colo| Vowaver, e Pacent Company has claimed nebind of Rs.1,884 55 Lakh » sespect of
por i rd datm ax the Pawct Company i of e view Bt Bin State Government has asompoed i fiom Local taves,
WNMMMMWWWMnmerMIzHMn 2001 pazwed by Indust-mus,
Enargy ond Latow Departmant, Govommen of Maharastina. The Pasent Company hes fled an appeel tokire High Court of Bambay
chaterging Pe Constittonal valcily of NVAT on varcus grounds and has diaimes rebung of Rs | 108 B Lakhs. Tha Appeal has been
adnined, Ewvas e Nened snd foml Peardog = pendieg Further MVAT fusd cam of 57575 Lashs m pndng Wit Salss Tac
Deportmont 26 the matior 13 of smilar Case. Accordingly, ™ise Transe stsanests miect o sum of Re 1534 55 Lakka &3 mfund
moavable on 3000utt of MVAT. In cate the refund & not granied 1he nedessary adusiment amses shisd Lo recseded in 1o yoar n
which &nabty o resched

aturs recetvable In ruapect of VAT, Service Tae Lot Triry Tax and Socvice Tax Sor witich sppen’s are sen0ng Wit rsepecie
Appeliie Aunortes. The Menegerurt i of s view Tt the sefunds clarmed as sbove spgregaing 1o . 35502 Lakh s con cened
F00d 101 MM0oVery 0N 00cUL o redund & BOING rECEived by 0N SEZ Soweioperns on s e grouns.

Tho Management i of the vew thal 1Hhe refnds Ciained 56 BDIY0 Ard CONBO0S QO03 27 reCuvery.

ARIL his protued cenen caple gocds inder EMCE schamia al conswes znal rats of duty. On non LRtment of cedan condibons, ANIL
may totomo Mbie 10 pay SPOENtol custom dity aong Wl Dlevest Ihereen SuSe Srocuement The managenard s hopeful of
compietng the 2xp.omed obiigation within the stipuiated tme

Corporstion Bunk taa Sad » surt weh Dete Becovery (riaunel, New Coby, owards moovery sganst Amties Bad Infrasinciuss Limded,
e Puwent Compury s & Coporate G far and twa P D of the Pacert Comgnny wn Guanertors, for fix R01280
WG The sane is pending Defose the DAT Duli The maner & subjudice

During the yoir anded 3158 March, 2018, 1w onders of & scbsidian L. Asaheyn Incuategl and Dastsotion Hub Linited ["AIDHL") 2ave
BS3PN0T Ter rights, (Be, and intereal 1 Har0sl 03aNCe grasisd By them 10 Edetwe s Assets Recorsyucson Company Linited
tmwmwum.mmm.mmamummm i ana niorest of the len ders have vesied
"me

Firswart to 0o assipnmant of such 0303, 3n2 in toms of Ho MeeTuciurng otkoge acprowved by EARC for D (0ans 50 assiined, he
Eskary has eseculed Restruckintg Agresment [RA) wih EARC, on behal! of EARC Trsts on t3h Jaruary, 2006 taking e
rggregate emou of assigned ioans ¥ Rs 20,558 Lath

A% 5 ek of s restruchinig and ssmgnnant of dosts of landers tra gan samed amousting 19 Rs 102584 52 Lakh ras been crodied
15 the Carachdeivd Statwmmrt of Mroft wad Loss for the pear ended on 31xt Meech, 2018 Tha haw been declosed as part of an
wede prioned lem.

During e poar 0nded 316t March, 2015 @ subadary e ADHL has complaiad ong time setiamant (OTS| with a kendor n resaoct of
e e koan token, OTS stpalalos gapment ond alotrrent of Oplonaly Conved bis Radeamatie Hrederence Stares ATHL mar made
» pyymars of Ry 3,000 Lakh on 130 Jsnary, 2018 and issued 1.20000 OCRPS Gun of By 7 780 74 Lakh on fus OTS has Seen
crmsrnd 1o the Consoldates Sttem et of Prof! & Loss a8 s wodepsonsd em

During the yoar ended 315t Maron, 2012 e Parert Comgany and 3 subsdan e Asolm Nodhem FTWE Lid CANFTEZ| bave dvesied
ey entve vestmen) n one of absdian namely Mes Supply Chain Morogesest Private Limited Jomerly known os Mira Supply
Crin Mensgamenl Private Limited] ("ASCM'} o 20d January 2018 by way of yansfer of equity shares 10 a sutidary (e AIDNL On
2in3 Narch 2018, ADKL ras chasted k3 antive shareroidng in ASCM. Pursuant to above, Rs.4.314.69 Lakh goin & pooourted n
corichdated frurc ol slalemen! which bas Been contidered as esceptionsl e duieg !he yoor ondod 593t Mecoh 2012

Ao per prinvion of sub section 1 of seclioe 200 of Campanes Act, 2013 dw.o . 180 Apsl 2004) ANFL is sequired £ appaint @ Campony
Secronary. Homuser, ANFL NGt Nt comabed win 1o 5352 roguiremant and is 1 the prooess of entding o sulabie conddale L this
ok
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Arshiya Umited
Notes to Consaliduted financi! siatomants for the yoar ended 315t March, 2048

Duang e your enoed 5138 Maech, 2018, on 23 November 2047, e Paeent Company. merala, (1's subaiSanss S0 promais had
exscutnd Share Puchuse Ageenest of Axcarias Panvel FTWE Limiled Jommedy bnown as Actiys Rai Seing mnd ndstnctin
Umied ("APFL', Lo @ slas-0own sutedant 8FV')| wih Ascansos Property Fund (nda) Pis LI {Asoensas) for sae of 100% of s
aquby holding, hardng Ra 6 Lish psd 1o squy capial to Ascancias. This S5V holds 1o states of 9 co-dovsloper

Duing the year ended 313 March, 2018, Lhe Parect Compary, inteealn (s scbsdares and prometers have essouiad o Loase Deod
on 3od Fotruary 2018, In Bvowr of @ SPV of Ascundus Property Fund (nda) P, Umided (Ascendss™ - part of he Ascendas.
Sngbroge Gesup, Smoepcre) for prant of leasenold nights of six waratowies # FTWZ Prowel siong wih undedying bang of tose
wecehouses. Kentfed assats and infrasinecture Qolties 00 M wiSa Naca 1o of 30 (i) pears. The ded Fanieson it ko sl
eofdideraion of Ry, 53,400 Lakh (or Rypees Five hundad and ity ur Crom), wih 00 upiront [03e¢ peymentiump sum ront of s
AB.850 Lak (or Ruzees Four husdrmed ard thety four craeel. The Seéence of fix 10,909 Lakh (or Rupees Ono hundmd o) wit be
rcaved over four pearn om ransaction closing Dases an ceran parformence MmNsines Thae Uassactan alse e the teens
fix Comalruction hunding by Ascwrdas for futuse growin of the Pamat Company’s tusness Tro Paceat Company smady possesses the
eguisie ed o e Ukere deswiogmen

Cn tansecion choaing dato of Ind February 2018, (ha SPV Nao Scqirsd kog-lem esehold 1ighs Yom he Parart Comparny and the
e a0 Hotod back under o0 oporing 030 DrANgOMAant DUrUaN! D expation of subJsase ool Saled Jrd Felauary 2218 1
Aewriga Lifestte Lirded CALLT), & wholy owrmd scbastary of the Pacenl Compeny, or 3 sub-lease Serm of § (%) years rernewabie s
per mutua by agreed Lorms, in consderation of Pae-agpaed ronlas

Accordngly derng fe year ended 3tsl Mavch, 2018 tha Porent Company has mauced 1na valus of ansets. prenied on laasahold rigeis
0 APFL, froem As fond waseds. Tha gain on gowt of masshcid righix 1o APFL smouning 1o e 12 633,79 Wkhs bus Seen concling i the
sanement of pIot 000 1088 3N2 1 SBU0IEY &S 0N CeCepionl M.

Hased cn the sbove, ALL woud cowate snd siacags Fese Ak wivehcuses x1d pay the leass mntas to APFL a5 defied i e sk
16050 apRanerl. Harce froen Srd Felruary, 2013 crrwatids sl severus Yo thaan sasets will bo aczoun ied by ALL Howevaet 1he Parant
Company will 1pcogsice Te nel riverue i derrm of & bl 2uckng ug el wrbeted inlo beba tha Farwrt cormpmny und
ALL.

Disclosum peryuant 8o Indian Accounting Sssndard (IND AS) 136 ~ Sepment Information

Primary Segmant Information

The Grow cpecales In Hros primary mportable basiress segments, e "Freo Tade and Wanhousing Zone” and "Rl Tramspot
Cperatorainiand Gontsiser Copet’ ang “Uomerss Wirehcusng Zone” ang omo gecgraphicsl segrmam (e Inde a3 per Actouting
Sundard 108 « “Segreen: Repawng'.

Segmant Rovenue, roselts, 255e1s and labiities
Revense and rosuits howe been Mentifed 10 @ segment 0 Mo Dide of IEaronshg 10 cpanving activtias of the segment

Segmect ssants ang wegment labites meprasect assets #nd Iabidleg in respecive segmosis. Segmen asses nouce Wi opesating
asdaty used oy the operming sepmen! and mastly NSUSES Bade recevatio, Nverioses and cther recovabies Segment Mabiies
Emaly Gudo BaTowngs, boe payabiss and other lbimae. Asats nd fatitiss which cannct be pfiocaned to any of the sagmann
arw shoran as » pard ol unelocabis waawis ang Satifles.

The chie! cpemsone Jocson MONE Monders e dperalng resuls of s Bushess Segrients separiely i Ihe pULoss of saung
dacisions about esourte ACALon Bd PErOMIANOS ASSESSTEE Segrernt pammance s evalaied based on ool o loss nd &
Moasured coreistenty with rofk o 10ss 1 the fnancl satements. Oparaing sopment Pave toen Kortfiad oo Tie 2ose of Hho nature
of serdces.

D
A
iy g}r/’—. N
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consolidated fimancial statoments for the year onded 318t March, 2018

B4 Segmental Information s e und for the year onded 31t March, 2098 s as follows:«

e in Lakk)
Year Ended Year Endec
JisiMarch2018 | JtsiWeron20tE
14,768 68 1 a7
1375018 13683
A28 4 2000
2T 2390609
TA25 17 1,000 73
(£ 957 50) 435
1.106.05) i1 AB3.01)
(3 7m) RIS
74 280
21550, 5% 1,506 35
Bistoal
|ersosTy IV
BN T | S Y
26,767 35| 10411
18956562 1.65,856.32
Y NETY
45 582 63 45,550 04
20284 2,199.05
3.85.790.11 31562463 |
17,981.34 13,87 0%
V14504 / 541.09
12038 360
237 54811 220,759 B8
AR L W X Y S
3,256 88 5.844 3¢
I7als 883 58
1945 -
35447 682307
305437 3694 §7
491325 A908 73
141934 L ATEDE
$419.54 10,71.78
W 5555
24 70 101.%8
32480 136 68

MUMSA! | ;' | M
:"\ s : K
S
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consolidated fnancial statements for the year ended Jist March, 2019

§1 Ruated paety daciosurss, a8 rquined Sy Indan Accoerting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclesures” (IND AS-24) e
Fven below

{0 Pecson hwving significant influsnca ower the Pareot Company
M Ajay S MU - Chalon s 3nd Mg ng Doecior
Mes. Archans A Vit — Jont Managiag Dreciar

|1 Koy managersent sersonmel
M. Ashish Bakagra « oependent O
M Nusesh Kecher - ndepandent Drecier
Pozl, G Ragharsen - Indegecdert Diector (11 1520 May, 2017)
M. Rshath Shah - imdepandent Drocior
Mo Tara Sanear Bhaliechays - bcapqrodent Direcior tw. o £, 24th May, 2018)
Ms Savia Dalal = Company Secretary of Arstiys Limitod
M. Ganjay Suivan Lakdhan - Corepany Secalary of Arshye Indusisl & Oodisution Hus Limisd (88 71h Feboary, 2019
Mz Avani Cpakcumar Lachart - Compony Searetary of Arshiya Sarl infrastuciure LUimted jw.e I 2600 Maren, 2015
Mr S Maheshwarl - Chif Financlal Officer of Acghiva Limiid jw.e.f. 8:h February, 2017) and Group Prasident
Mr. Nayrit Choudhacy - Chis? Finandiol Ofcer of Arshiya Northem FTWZ Limited qwa.f. 20 Fetwuary, 2047)

My, Dinash lemay Sodant - Chied Fnancist OMoer of Arshya Rak infrastruciore Limded (w.e.l. 0 Febevary. 2017 9 120 Janury.
2008

mclnmwm « Chiof Financia| Offcer af Arsniga nousirial 8 Distabution Hud Limiod (w.e 1. Bth Fetuary, 2017 to 31st
I Diresh Kumae Sodard « Chief Financl O%cer of Arshiya indusiial & Distisution Hub Uimited fw.o.l. March 26. 2018]

M. Vinod ek - Chied Financh Offcer of Arstiys Ral Inkasiruchive Limied (W 20h March, 2018

M. Amsrgeep Gupla - Chief Firgncial Oficor of Arstiy Ral inastrucaure Limied (w.e.t 260 Masch, 2018)

Me Siddarin Kasturly - Chief Exacutive Ocer of Arshiya Rad inlrastruciem Limited (we 1 23i0 Narch, 2016)

M1 it Gupta « Chief Esecutve Offoar of Arghiya Indusisial & Distribution Hub Limited (w .t Narch 25, 2019)

1) Mutwtive of Perscn having significant InSussce aver the Parsat Company
M. Ananya Nl - Compotate Sravgy Cifoe

(IV] Emarprise owned or significantty Inflsonced by hoy manaperent personmel or the ir relatives
Rudtadey Properses Private Limied

Mega Maragenert Secaces Prvake Limitod
Viakione Sobwine Consultency Privale Lissies
Neowa! FYVZE Lantied (formady keoan az Arshys Coreal FTWE Lirtied)

The nature and a0t of FNSACins wilh De atoss fuliled pantkes e s fobows:

We. Aneng b MiZS T2668] 2508

pad 15 Hey Maragetl Perton ord
’ e of Panson havieg significent nfvence o M S Nahorvan a0 e
Vs, S3vea Calal 651 =
Wi, Avan Dipakumar Lathan e -
Wi Anardeap Gupea 036
Wi Vared Jan 2048
M Sakda Sasiuse 0.5
|Coector siting oes (X
Ne_ Wadiesh Kaches 0.4 \
A B 0
W R 4%7 7
M_T S Gratacrarya 0.7
|rdnrwal [Nowval FTVIZ Larisas | 0.92| )
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Arshlya Limited

Notos to Consclidated fimancial staturments for the year onded 313t March, 2018

Loans wd Advirces Sk T Ay S T3 % 3,084
Nrs_Archana A sl 111614 4
ILumw [ w8 FTVIZ Liriied 325.00 | =
Loars snd Advmces BAan sepodind fated LN Ajsy 5 Nimal R 2,534 62
W Vs Avchana A Wital 253804 §m|
Rutesdor Properties Privete Limstes . 100
70 Marapement Gericos Prvale 332 |
Comutancy 0.16
Piberie Urmiled
ImeasAmeris purthases from [Mis Avchana A Mital -1 043
ssue of Equiy Shares and Wamans Mr Ajay S M
Equity Srom EYED)
Ehave Viarrants 542000
Mr, 5. Mahastem
Equity Share | 583 80
into Equity Mr Awy S \Mgal L E B5.25( 4356875
balances {Rs. in Laki)
Yo As
Naturs Malated Party st 2019 | 31 Marcs
wonies 2018
and Aduancos taken (Vir Ay § Uiial i -
Mrs_Archana A Mizal 5522 1485 01
Fucradies Moty Prrats Livied - e
P_w [ Noww FTWZ Livited 1 2513 ] =
izmm IMe Ny S Mittal i msl
I@g Srares jextiuding share preswium) INe. 5 Meheshwas I E 20.00 20 00)
: 1 14657 02
e ——— IM 24282001 5126200
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consalidsted financial statements for the year anded 31st March, 2019

FE)
‘otal ProfiiLosy) for the year o6 cluted EPS (Ra. n Lokn)

of oguity srares

weimge numee of eguty shares (Nurrker) PDANLITE 1031, 2050m
A0 Adusament on soooun! of Brase \Wanans - L8170
A3 Adusbiract on scesunt of U8 Concnaly Convenitn Radoemabie Predemencel - G482 860
Suwes (DCRPS|
Toma! Wogh a0 ar0002 rumber of sQuly shanssistares wamen W OGRS BRI AL IR RS
Nomieal velus por $hare (Amownt in Rs ) 2% zm
Eammings ser thare ~ Bosic and Dioed (Amount o Rs ) 111.24] 1.7

0% OCRPSE ang share warranis had on ool Gl ool 08 GOMag Dir Share hence Nive nO! DO COMKW & I cugaie of
CerpElng SAME mam g per stam dutng e Zwacus e

Tasatoo

The Growp has not recogrised any delernd lax sssels on Jezucithe lemporary dtorences. Unused Wax 08ses a6 | & N3l proseble Nat
the Gooup Wil have sficient fiture tssakie Sroft which can Bo avadsbio agnst fra avisiatie tax ioesns.

Unused tax oeses for which a0 deforred tax 65418 has Doen resognisad

Asscsamant Year Business Loss Unabmostiod “"ubzum"-"'
20122013 ey :.o;aon AV, 20202521
20132014 wm 41008 AY. 20212022
0142015 19,548 50 7342 16 AY 20222023
20152018 3,164.05 8251 08 AY. 22004
20182017 240474 4,520 29 AY. 20342028
20312018 £3,307.00 wostas| Ay amsame
20182019 18,374 67 %600 4B AY. 30203097
Elb-m A0 59 C‘u_‘! 27 AY 20379058

Toul 1,20,039.21 8¢

Assesament Year Long teem Caphal Loss """"!! . "'!E

0163017 2801 LAY mpefod |
Tetal 165889

Defened fax assels A% 1 3151 Nasch, 2015 R 27 420 06 Laks (319 Masth 2098 - s 45798 08 Lakr) has Aot Been mecognsed. o
oot is e comincing evidence Pt Sulfciert lasadio profls wifl Do avaiat e ageiret which e unadiusiod A« 04508 w A Lo Wied ty
e Group Detals of cwimoed Saa aseets are rerbiornd below

As
31st March, 2048
1699177

121,908 29))
unde sachon 435 ard 40 (o) () 16,087 0%)
[35,047.07)
— 1642242
Tolal Defarved tax assecs (31,429.08)

Financlal Risk Managoment

Tra Growg's & d 4 | bnizd of borrowings, Irsde mnd oher payslies and Srance guarenises contracks Tre
mmumwmuummm Oroup's oparsticns. The Growp's fnencial oasets compses of inde a~d
Chir reosvaties. cooh snd depoeis that arises diectly hom s cperasons.

The Group's podvides espoee Lt vadely of francy sekx incuding oedd mék [gudiy mak and markel sak The Crowps nsks
MANpATert 055085TeNt, MaTEZETNT! MNd procesnas e eatstished 1o astfy ard mnifze Tie fehs loed by 1o Gioup 1o sl up
AERTpan ks it 85d COMIOE, 08 12 MOTRY WY FEkS 300 COMPIaNCs Wit e sarro, Righs actassrant and manegen el
poltas and roceises e revewed segolarty 10 refact Crarpes n manvet condlcre and the Groug's acivtos

b o=
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Arshiya Limitod
Netes to Consolidated fimmncial statements for the year ended 318t Mareh, 2019

:_.J, - Uro arlaing from | Measeremert
Crad risk ASENg sy Hogunr sevew of orect
»

q

Liudity nex
Vadites

lﬂlﬁo Ay Towmplamkitery ol Bovowng)

sis
et 1Sk = e ettarge Sorstwy amahas fUntedged

me-mmz e

Tty arsiyan fm-w-f

Trm Groups cak sianapement i caved cul by & componaie feance tenm Uider (he pokoes approved by he Board of Dirscis, The
f:momunmmﬁuhmdmtmumluwwm peciic wesis, 3uch as oedi rak nisrest rate

Cradit Risk
The Gious B Gaposed 53 Lrad] Fak, wisch |8 ik Tiat counlorpanty wil defsul on B3 contactus cbigaton resuing it & Seanciyl 'oss 1
e Group. Crodl ek anses fom coih and S squvantts &3 wall a3 ondl epasns 1 tnde cutomrs No@eg cusstardng
recoivablea

Trache rwcaenwiclen arm bypcaly i 3nd are dedved Tom levenue samed Som customes Dcaied in inds. Coadi tek mas stvaps
Coin maroged By the Crows (hrough contnuossly mornomg the cwdivethiress of Caatomers 12 wihich e Group gients sTes terms
N o nomal course of Dusiness Quisiandng cusorrer receivalies are regularty maniiares. Cradz Ask is Bigh as Saly few Caslomers
sccoun for maoety of e svenus 0 the year prasented O account of adoplion of Ind A3 108, e Group uses sspacied oodt ss
P00 35 Rscvassk (e mmgsdnnien | loss of g

Liquidiny Risk

Uity <sh i the rise Bl the Grosp mey nct S abiv to mest ity Snsaciel cbigations wihou! Incurmng unscospiatle Beans. The
Geoup's chjocine & 10, a1 o Smes; Marmain Spleoams vols Of Bguidiny 10 Med! It cash and osdwiond reguirnnests. The Growp mis ts
Iquitity siek By enuNng U moriumng of funds fom tratie and cther recervaties. The Group neles ¢n 225003 MN1 Lusneds mode
rough moneteation of assats and Soup of constructon fendiag and operaiing cash Nows 10 mest 15 /axas o Juios

Tre b balow Rrovides UNaBcouU e cash Sows towards Trancia! Rabiioes 10D relovant maturtly Desed O 1y I maning panod al the
DaNcch $hoct 10 Ihe contraciunl maurty date

| _inLa

T S = T 15 £ yeurs 3
Tat Narch, 20%%
lal Fahiities
55 154 61 12847326 -

2 ([Equety ared Liabuity Component) . 120000 -
Trace payobies 257026 . '
Crades ir Coplted Gooda 7. 22805 - .
Finansa gusvamiae obl gsbony 10458 - -
OPe Srancial lotibes 51,093 13 S1211 .

Toul K7L FI¥IK :
$181 Mareh, 2018
Firancial labtises
Uomomings 90,17836 1374917 "
OCAPS (Equity a2 Uity Component) . o 55,6848 19
Tridy parrabies 100020 . .
Coad ioes for Copsl Goods Liz224 . -
Finan ol peaenice ctigetons . 22403 ”
Othar Srancial kabittes 35 105 55 207878 .
Tou) $550806 TN — 1)

Marses Risk

Market Risk i3 1o risk 9101 He far voiue of Niem cas fow of 8 Inancel Rstruments wil fucliale Because of voullty of peces 1 Mo
francisl markets Markal mek can be Urher sepagaies sx 1) Formgn cumency nsk md 2) Istirest e dsk

W
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Arshiya Limited
Noles (o Consulidated Saancisl statements for the yoar ended 313t March, 2018

Fereign cumency rink
Forege cuvency risk & ®ie ok tha! the tar viriw of Ak ot Sow or an posure Wil fluchate Decouso of Chasges N frage
sachonge mies The Growp's sepoause 10 1he rish of Chesges i Rrege cochangs redes selales piranly 1o (re Group's aperasng

Foregn sumeney vk sxposure
Dutain of forwgn curmency sctiorad tadances not hedged by Servalve Etuments of Shesatse e 05 urder.
Forwgn curmency Equienient smoun!
srvcslers Finanzlal Year Exdea amoum __in INR
JAmouctinkenhl | @sjotedhl |
b Moy
NED TieA Vaon, S8 I . [ =
Ftat Masch, 3010 013 £.24 |
Irade mosvatiss i
“Siat Warch, 1019 605 3.207.35
usp It 08 jaes 1,033
AR 3191 Warsh, 3018 0.4 0.9
R Wace, 04y LT
It March, 2018 047 J665
{Eacieny Dapost fom cosiemen
S0 FT51 Vaen, 3019 Ba0 Gees |
J1e1 Mavc, J014 581 380.71
R Jen Wanch, 3016 002 .95
3ttt 2010 0032 272
25D 3192 Ve, 2019 0nas (X
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AIvoncs 11om cusynT s
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0wt Warc, I0M0 053 Je 0
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mnmmunmm1mumummmvamawuwmuawmw
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Arshlya Limited

Notes to the Conaolidated financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2018
065 Fair Valuo Moasurements

{0 Financinl ks tramants -
Ll {19 4 o
Aseats
cost

Trode a28617 Jaz 61 4% Az BT
4014 £95,5¢ 40138 tw“"
326 12 . 32542 -1

504123 14,151,190 5041.28 1135100

56255 238569 202538 3305680

1654989 19,063.93 16.640.29 19.063.93

ST EeE] Leee] e

722806 _mef 7 '.',m! T T3 "mu,
1238 53 3,206 53 1288 43 120553
EIRTIE ] | Simrae] Sswers)
Total 24273033 B42.47 79038 | 2,37.84247 |

(1) Fair Valustion techniques usad 10 determine falr value
Tha Group maintsing procaduras 10 valua Snancial assets o Fnencal labives using INe best and mosl rokusst duts
availabie. The fair vaboes of the Reancial assets and Fabilfies are ndused of the amount that would ba received 10 sell
an assel o paid (o YarGior @ lab iy in an ordony Uanaettion Detmedn market parieanta & e seaiuremant Salo

The lotloweg msthods sl sssumprions were used to sshimades the far vues:

{a) The Group assessed Inal tho fair vaiue of cash and cash equaalent. tade reocivabios, lrade cayabies. anc oWer
cumam feancin asasty and liabatiey spprosissaie their Caimnng amounty lergely dus 10 the st leen malunses of
ete netruments.

(5) The far vales for secunty deptals and other Snanciel Fateblios wore cxloudsted besed on cash Nows dacounied
VNG & Curtent Mending 1. They are ceasfod a6 vel 3 far values 11 108 Fai vk hunrchy das 10 the nduiion of
wnGtaervalie Fpuls Fouting coundsperty credd sk

(5r The G ywues of ron cared Somowings w0 basec on discounted Cast fows Ueng 8 Curest Somrowiog rese. Trey
o csssifed as lavel D fer vakues n the fair valuo Merarchy Guo to e use of unobsorvable Dputa, Inclidng own
oredt nsk.

(%) Fal value hierarchy
The saction expiaing the Judpoments and estimaies made m delermining the tar vakses of 1he inancisl nerunonis
Pat are recogrised and measuie at fair valua To provide an ndicadon about the reiadiity of e Rpus used In
datmmng e vilue. e Group his cassifed ity feancial nstraments info Tes bves prescribed under ihe
sscourting standard.

(4) Lewol 1 - Level 1 hiersrchy incudes Snancal ingbussants meaturod using cuoied pricos.

(5) Loavol 2 - Tha fair vase of Snanda nsbruments that are not Yaded in an active market (lor exampie. imoed tonds,
owir the CHUMEr dervatives) i 0er™ifed UsNg VAUAION NEMNIUeE Which MaKmze the 20 of oteorvabia markat
data and refy os itle 35 possible on enfityspedific estimates. If i significart nputs requieed 1o fair vwue an
nsrument am anservaio, the inatrument is Incidec i lovel 2.

1) Lavel 3 « ¥ one or more of Ihe signficant mpsds are nol based on chissrvabp markst duln the rarumont = Boded
el 3. This is tho case for unisiod equity shares, contingert corsdoraion and Indemniicaton assals Incudes in
fewel 3
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to Conselldaied feancial statoments for the yoar ended 318t March, 2019

Capital Maragemont

For the Group's shipcive whan memaging sapital i 43 safeganid e Group's abity 10 conteue 030G N Srther 33 provwds he
retum 10 shamehodars 300 Berefil 1o othr Ssha hokiers w)d 4o manrie n an cptosal capdl siuctie 10 mauce the sost of cagtal capil
dides oace! sty cazta ahae pramire and al oher a9ty resatves MY ouable 10 Hhe equty Nodders of 90 Growp

T Group manegen s copdal and acloarments i1 Iget of CIANgRs N S50N0TIG CONSNINSS NS 180 fegU BT TS of e
feancl comnarts. To mpistan of o4l he Ceplal srucire, he Orouz may ol (e deidend peyment 1o sharokdens, retum
caprlal 1o sharshclders or maue new shars | penmitied]. The Grous monicn captsl waing o gasring s, which |s gebits Shvide! by
$ainl mcpuity .

AS V00 N N0 10 BLC0STLS, 100 GouD S0 NaVIng SShOME Of OVERQE® 68 12 MBOYINDs e SpM | Kt

p 3 Ax ol Ax ol

Totw Cotits 231900 22.735.08
Totsl Bty R MLTS nie
Totw! dabst to & o) a3 a2
Notes:-

o3t is delfred ar long wm ard thod e barrowings Naudng curert malurting of LoTowings ane Imers

Tols ety Ges $vows in bince shecl) ohades asued capite! ardd ol cthwr ssurly.

Dot Covensats
Linder e tame of Raatucierng Agroament (RA), the Group & maured D comply with Isowing fnancial sovesais

Without prce spgeova of lender. $w Sroup ated] oot
Lears, debarmure & charge - Moue Or SLelo 10 Jny JRLOTIIDS, VA0S, Mise any loans, Jepost Yom pubic. Hsue sauly or
pruieescn captsl, chasge s tasial striciine OF create Sty charDs on &8 Sasets inchuding e Cas Sow OF Dive BTy QUGS

Cividend on squity shares « declarspay dvidand on sguity shases unisas ofereas soproved by e Lesde Bus s Mondoong
Commitine n 0000100700 with the provisons of RA

18 2000 10 @XRired I Cotvadl ST, 110 CRZEN MArOenrasl, OMongs! O NG, SRS 10 nRue Dat Laeoms Tnd rck! aovenams
stiache: ¥ the Tieras! baarng Loans and homawings itat dathe cagital sduckiie rgurements, e have been truactes in He
franchl Covenants of Itras! Beanng Dans pnd DONOWNg 0 110 CUmant penod and PIsWIous petod

Tom Pacert Cormpany tas ool wd Ay Anicend in ot Puee yeer ko e of loases moutred
mnuommmmu1m

Thm Group dosgoreoeie e i cand by Dype of pooducts and services DOSOrasly and teng of revenue
recogriion

Ravense 0530000050 Uy type of 5ervices s ghven noie 1o 29
Ravanisn ORaggiegaion by geogagity is as iok owy

Geogeaphy Year Encled Your Ended
3182 Masch 2018 JistMare
o 286543 7_1 15,064 58
oo __saer o0
Totw —BRI738
Revomen dsagaregaion By Bmng of revrus rcogn 1o & 4k fekoes
Grogrphy Yoar Ended
st March, 2018
UEN3300e0 Ol 518 e
| Tonsl BT

Trassaztion Price slfocated 1o rerain g seriormasce cbigations:
Tha ajpregain amourt of the Fassetion pioe BROCNST 1D 1he perormance obigatont ot am 1o te satafied ax of 3 Moy, 2019
oty 15 Ry 700055 Lakh se per Lesas desdd. The remaneg pevimance cbiigaion ae afecied by several o inckeding
Preredd Slzesge Mot codl) oW CoV, CORCIIONE Wit B2 doys o mutialy agwed. Tre cf e Parort Corepany
mm:mummma“mmumumumu-ummmu
s 250000 Lawy with baance In fufure bwd raporting gences homa P,
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Arshiya Uimited
Netes to Cansolidutnd fmancial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2019

Trarsitional Provesion - IND AS 115 . Rovenso from Contiazts with Customer

Tra Mty of Corporate Afnrs [NCA| oa 288 Moron, 2018 notles 1ad AS 115 °R Yo cor i a " ps part of the
Companime [Indan Accountng Stendards) Amerdmant Ruos, wsmum.mvmmmmw
#er 141 Agry, 2010, Tha Group hes appied mockied feiospectve 2ppacach It Ad0cEng he fiow Mandsed nrd acoordngly, the sevenue
Fom opesations for e year ended D1st Marcy, 2015 s nol 2ONParRbie With e sravidus yeir As & fssile of Coa708 N 32T0UNITD
poices, adjvetments (o 90 DONEION DYOVISON Pas Dodn Made | reepecive B s ¥t 13t Apal 2018 wih cormespondng Inpact o
squty Datakds of changes mads 0 tom 2kong wih oauty have gven b bakow leble.

[ Particelars Hs in Labn
[ Reverus 3041
on ather in 39041

The Greug's bonem ngs hive bimn assigned Sy barmens to an ANC / restrctured wils banks urder CDR PDceago and 1osTucturod wily
NEFQ. Canain landerz Ro2 nvolo2 e COA pechege The ARC / COR Landers and NEFC have champed pensl idesmall addmcnsl
Irfsal/ niscsal amcurting %o Ry 2 538 23 Wkh apie ihe year ended Macch 39, 2018, which was not accested by the Giowp and hence
liuWMMhl&delMﬁnmmvanmﬁdm Ba Group has moogeised e ssdd

peral int wd has Gl siaed the Sranoe COM B0d 0RO CONSEAUENTRI IMB0CIs in the yoor ended March 31, 2078

mmhwﬂ.onmmawmu 656,20 lakhns which is pertaining 10 perod uplo 311 Mk, 2017, Therstare
S in acusied n G s on et Aprl 2017 Dus to this reporded S0 of spening other EQusty was Re 20077 1T lakh and
mmlmnummc&m&nm 28,321 30 sahs

Futttar, suthg the ymar erdes March 31, 2078 reporied $9um of S~arce covl. ofter Equly ang interess pooruad ane tun on BOTOWNgS
wis Fs 29 65508 Whh, Rs 60948 40 e ad Rs. 25348 29 lekh sescectvely. Resteled Sguies of Secoce cont, olter sgety s
bisrest accrued and cue o0 Somowngs a0 Rs 3¢ 50839 lakh Rs 56 937.52 lokd and Re 27 047,02 wkh teagocively. Euning P
Stare (BPS) pieo recalcu ioled bosed on the resiated fgures.
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements foe the yeas entded 315t March, 2019
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\RSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
JALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

ANNEXURE-I-II

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 44,322.37 47.856.82
(c] Intangible Assets ] 2,825.28 3,223.16
(d) Financlal Assets
{i) Other Financial Assets 7 663,64 818.60
{e) Other Non-Current Assets 8 1,335.26 1,227.72
49,146.55 53,126.30
 Current assets .
(a) Inventories 9 - 15.66
(b} Financial Assets
{1) Trade Recelvables 10 1,323.33 ' 666.59
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 120.24 375.35°)
{in} Bank Balances Other than {Il) above 12 267.30 386.16
{iv} Other Financial Assets 13 32237 348.59
{c) Other Current Assets 14 133.81 308.46
2,167.05 2,100.81
TOTAL ASSETS 51,313.60 $5,227.13
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ‘
Equity
{a) Equity Share capital 15 4,238.44 4,238.44
(b) Other Equity 16 {18,197.13) {14,073.62)
{13,958.69) (9,835.18)
Liabilitles oL
Non Curreat Liabilities .
{a) Financial Liabilities T
{1} Borrowings 17 31,902.67 33,533.04
{b} Provisions 18 120.52 -18%2
{c) Other Non-Current Uabilities 19 1,632.22 1,723.59
33,655.51 35278.15
Current Liabllites i
{a) Financiaf Liabilitles
(i) Borrowings 20 304.38 2,029.26
{ii) Trade Payables 21
(A) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 15.77 5.24
[B)Total outstanding dues of creditors Other than Micre and £
Small Enterprises 1.307.44 620.88
{iil) Other Financial Liabllities 22 28,103.68 25,206:84
(b) Other Current Uabllities 23 1,874.90 1,918.23
{c) Provisions 24 10.61 3.69
31,616.78 29,784.14
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES Mﬁ.&ﬂ 55,227.11
Nates to the financlal statements 157
As per our Report of even date r
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of =,
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Uimited /’-{{ﬂf !9:-7,‘2-':\
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355 Jo TN
ﬂ,\l‘%f I ?,j—: [RETE L]
S\ \_SK 4 om0y
Vijay Napawallya Ajay § Mittal Navnit Choudhary .
Partner Director Director
Membership Number. 109859 \ DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576
\:
Place : Mumbai Am upta pakkumar Lakhani

Date: May 27, 2019

Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary
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ISHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
'ATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

ICOME
Revenue from operations 25 13,614.83 13,598.32
Other income 26 641.87 1,459.39
otal Income (1) : 14,256.70 15,057.71
MPENSES
Cost of operations 27 11,400.27 11,507.38
Employee benefits expenses 28 1,121.91 B26.79
Flnance costs 29 7,015.57 8,018.94
Depreciation and amortization expenses 30 4,099.64 4,130.61
Other expenses 31 1,253.59 895.48
Total Expanses (11} 24,890.98 25,379.20
Loss before exceptional items and tax [1-N) {10,634.28} {10,321.49}
Exceptional items {Net) 32 {6,475.186) 424.26
;Lnss before tax (4,159.12) {10,745.75)
Tax expense: 45

Current tax . .

Deferred tax -

Loss for the year (4,159.12) {10,745.75)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {0C))
Item not to be raclassified to profit and loss :

Remeasurement of gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans 37 {24.39) 7.19
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {4,183.51}) {10,738.56)
Earnings per Equity shares (Face Value Rupess 10 each) 33
Basic/ Diluted earnings per share {In Rupees) {9.81} {25.35)
Notes to the financlal statements 1-57

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355

For and on babalf of Board of Directors of
Arshlya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Al
\/Jj S (a0 'y Qi o
Vijay Napawallya Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership Number, 109859 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019

S Y
(A
Rvani Dipa ar Lakhani

Company Secretary
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 15)

As at Aprll 1,2017
Equity Shares
Issue of equity share during the year

Rupees in lakhs

ey

4,238.44

As at March 31, 2018

4,238.44

Equity Shares
Issue of equity share durlng the year

4,238.44

As at March 31, 2019

4,238.44

3 Other Equity (Refer Note 16)

{Rupee

"~ (3,330.44)

Asat April1,2017 38,123.31 | {43,189.57) 1,564.45

Loss for the year - {10,725.75) - - {10,745.75)
Other comprehenslve income - 7.19 - - 7,19

Total comprehensive income for the year - {10,738.56) - - {10,738.56)
Falr valuation of financial guarantees given - (4.62) - - (4.62)
As at March 31, 2018 38,123.31 (53,932.75) 1,564.45 171.37 (14,073.62)
Loss for the year - {4,152.12) - . {4,159.12)
Other comprehenshve income - {24.39) - - {24.39)
Total comprehensive income for the year - {4,183.51) . - {4,183.51)
Fair valuation of financial guaraptees given - - 60.00 - 60.00

As at March 31, 2019 38,123.31 {58,116.26) 1,624.45 171.37 {18,197.13)
Notes to the financial statements 1-57

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturved! & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355

(.}'1 of?

Vijay Napawallya
Partner
Membership Number. 109859

bl Gu’f’/

Place : Mumbal
Date: May 27, 2019

:‘H“«\'*'N

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

T
T REE——

Alay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Director Director

DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Amard upta Avani Dipakkumar Lakhani
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

156



SHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
sh Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

iSH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
58 for the year before tax (4,159.12)
Jjustmants for :
spreclation and amortization expenses 4,099.64 4,130.61
terest Income (21.10§ {29.38)
15 on sale/dlscarded Property, plant and equipment - 182.79
ain on sale of investment . (5.00}
andry Balances Written Back [net) {245.67) (614.53)
nance Expense 7,015.57 8,018.94
ad Debts Wrlitten off - 101.36
sttlernent of Claims {6,475.16) 302.54
Inwinding of Interest en loan to related party - {476.14)
air value of financial Instruments (5.76) {1.28)
iovernment grant - [ncome (365.49) (365.49)
‘inancial Guarantee Income {3.85) (0.77)
dvange rent 6.13 1.45 |
JPERATING PROFIT / [LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES {154.81) 499,35
\djustments for
‘rade & other payables £40.92 {817.42)
nventarles 15.66 0.07
Trade & other recelvables (483.73) 1,532,56
-ASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 18.04 1,214.56
Jirect Tax (Pald)/ Refunds {113.22) 24,58
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Total (A) 195.18 hm_:u
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (167.78) {295.31)
Purchase of Intanglble assets - (500.00)
Purchase of Invastment (77.69) -
Proceeds from Sale of Investment 196.55 31.85
Proceeds from Sale of Praperty, Plant and Equipment 047 ”
Interest Income 21,10 29.38
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Total (8) 527.351 {734.08)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Praceeds from borrowlngs - Non current 2,960.00 3,220.74
Repayment of borrowings - Non current {1,060.00) {3,756.60)
Borrowing - current {Net} {1,788.58) 1,402.08
Interest pald on borrowings [244.00) (1,172.85)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Total [C) {132.58) {206,653
Net Increase/{Decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C) {255.11) 198.43
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 375.35 176.92
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 120.24 375.35
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 120.24 375,35
*Note:- Changes in liabilithes arising from financing activities :
Particulars March 31, 2018 Cash flow INDAS impact Cther non cash March 31, 2019
Long term borrowing (Refer Note no. 17 & 22} 42,469.34 1,900.00 144.94 996.38 43,517.90
| Short term borrowing (Refer Nate no. 20) 2,029.26 {1,788.58) €3.70 -~ 304.38
Notes to the financlal statemants 1-57
As per our Report of even date —
AN
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

CORPORATE INFORMATION:
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited {CIN : U93000MH2008PLC180907) Is 3 public company domiciled in India and Is Incorporated on April 7, 2008 under

the provisions of the Companles Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company s located at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate
F-Block, Dr. Annle Besant Road, Worli, Mumbal- 400 018. '

Arshlya Rall Infrastructure Limited (ARIL) Is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limited (AL} AL is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. In
April 2008, AL acquired a Category-l llcense 1o operate a pan-indla rail loglstic service, giving rise to ARIL. ARIL is a specialized entity of AL, offering
unprecedented rall Infrastructure, including private modern rakes, customlzed contalners, Private Frelght Terminal {PFT), pan-india network and
superior connectlvity. The company 1s engaged in Private Container Train Operator (PCTO) business and Is helding Category-l license which allows the
company to operate on Indian Rall network on pan Indla basls both Domestic and Exim Trafflc. ARIL's unique offering provide unparalleled efficiencies
with capabllity of large scale evacuation of carge from Ports, Domestic Distriparks, Free Trade and Warehousing Zones , Inland Container Depot (ICD}
and customer Sidings.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 were approved and adopted by board of directors in their meeting held
on 27th May 2019,

BASIS OF PREPARATION:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
{indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™).

The Company prepared Its financlal statements in accordance the Indian Accounting Standards {IND AS) are notifled under the section 133 of the
Companles Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 {Indian GAAP),

The financial statements have heen prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain financlal assets and liabilities, which are measured at
falr value/ amortised cost,

The financlal statements are presented in Indlan Rupees (Rs.}, which is the Company’s functional and presantation currency and all values are rounded
to the nearest lakhs, except when atherwise indicated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENT:

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase
price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to the bringing the assets to its working condition for its Intended use.

Depreclation on the property, plant and equipment Is provided using straight line method over the useful life of assets as specified in schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, Depreclation on property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed off durlng the year, Is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the date of addition / deletlon. Freehold land is not depreclated and under the previous GAAP land was revalued,

The asset's residual values, useful lives and method of depreclation are reviewed at each financial year end and are adjusted prospectively, I
appropriate. '
Capltal work-in-progress Includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.

Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the period of lease.
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financlal statement, elther on disposal or when retired from active use, Profits / losses arlsing in
the case of retirement / disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of Its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the indian GAAP financlal
statements as deemed cost at the transition date l.e. April 1, 2016.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are carrled at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, If any. Cost includes expenditure that Is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the Intangible assets.

\dentifiable Intangible assets are recognised when it Is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the
cost of the asset ¢can be reliably measured.

Railways License fees is amortised over a period of twenty years being the license perlod as per agreement,

Computer softwares are capitalised at the amounts pald to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised over the period of five years. The
assets’ useful llves are reviewed at each financial year end, .

Galns or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of its intangible assets as recognised In the Indlan GAAP financlal statements as
deemed cost at the transition date i.e, April 1, 2016.

Leases:
A lease Is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to gwnership to the Company |s classifled as a finance lease.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

The Company as a lessee

Finance lease

Assets acquired under finance lease are capltalized and the correspending lease Nabllity Is recognised at lower of the fair value of the leased assets and
the present value of minimum lease payments at the Inception of the lease. initial costs directly attributable to lease are recognised with the asset
under lease.

Operating lease
Lease of assets under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classifled as operating lease. Lease payments
under operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basls In accordance with the respective lease agreements.

The Company as a lessor

Finance lgase

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments is recognised as a recelvable, The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable ls recognised as unearned finance Income. Lease Income Is recognised over the
term of the lease using the net investrment method before tax, which reflects a constant perlodic rate of return.

The lessor derecognises the leased assets and recognises the difference betwean the carrying amount of the leased assets and the finance lease
recelvable In the statement of Profit and Loss when recognising the finance lease receivable.

Operating lease
Rental Income from operating leases Is recognised In the statement of profit and loss on a stralght line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern In which economic benefits from the leased assets Is diminished.

Initial indirect costs Incurred in negotiating and arranging as operating lease are added to carrying value of the leased asset and recognised on :
straight line basls over the lease term.

inventories:
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cast of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and othe
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to thelr respective presant locatlon and condition. Cost is computed on the First In first out basls,

Cash and cash equivalants:
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term depeslts with an original maturity of three month:
of less, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net o
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are consldered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Impalrment of assets:

An asset Is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet, there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset, o
where applicable, the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of the net asset selling price anc
value in use).The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction Is recognized as an Impairment loss In the statement o
profit and loss. The impairment loss recognized in the prier accounting period is reversed If there has been & change in the estimate of recoverabl
amount. Post Impalrment, depreclation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impalred asset over Its remaining useful life.

Financdial instruments — Initial recognition, subsequent measurement and Impairment:
A financial Instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financlal llability or equity instrument of ancother entity.

Financlal assets -Inftlal recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initlally recognized at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of flnanclal assets
which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Financlal assets are classifled, at Initial recognitior
as financial assets measured at fair vatue or as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-
a) Financlal assets at fair value

b} Financial assets at amortlsed cost
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions Is measured at amortisad cost (net of any write down for impairment) unless the asset is
designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

a} Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model Is to hold the financial asset to coliect the contractual cash flow.
b} Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiow that are solely payments of
principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following twe conditions Is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the asset is designated
at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

a) Business model test: The financial asset Is held within a business model whose objective Is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and
selling financial assets.

b} Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset glve rise on specifled dates to cash flow that are solely payments of
principal and Interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Ali other financial asset Is measured at falr value through profit or loss.

Financlal assets - Equity Investment in subsidiaries
The Company has accounted for ts equity invastment in subsidlaries at cost.

Financial assets - Darecognition

A financlal assets (or, where applicable, a part of a finencial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised [1.e. removed
from the Company's statement of flnancial position) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have explred, or
b) The Company has transferred its rights to recelve cash flaw from the asset,

Financlal Rabilities - Initial recognition and measurement:
The financial llabilities are recognised initlally at fair value and, In the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Rnandal liabilitles - Subseguent measuremant:
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one
year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are approximate at their falr value due to the short maturty of these instruments.

Financial Liabllitles - Financial Guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for 2 loss it incurs
because the specified debtor falls to make a payment when due In accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised Initlally as a liabllity at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the Habllity is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation.

Financial Liabifities - Derecognition:

A financlal liabillty is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or explres. When an existing financlal liability is
replaced by another, from the same lender on substantially dlfferent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new llabllity, The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Compound instruments

An issued financla! instrument that comprises of both the llabliity and equity components are accounted as compound financial instruments. The fair
value of the llability component Is separated from the compound Instrument and the residual value is recognised as equity component of other
financial instrument. The liability component is subsequently measured at amortised cost, whereas the equity component Is not remeasured after
initial recognition. The transaction costs related to compound Instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in the propartion to the
allocation of gross proceads. Transaction costs related to equity companent is recoghised directly in equity and the cost related to liability component
Isincluded in the carrying amount of the liability companent and amortised using effective interest method.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LEMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Provisions, Comtingent Liabllities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. It is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money Is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent period govemment securities interest rate.
Unwindlng of the discount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilitles are disclosed when there s a possible obligation arlsing from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it s either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a rellable estimate of the amount cannot be
made. Information on contingent {labllity ls disclosed In the Notes to the Financial Statements. However, when the realisation of Income Is virtually
certaln, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it Is recognised as an asset.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of goods {equipment) or rendering of services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to recelve in exchange for those goods or services.

Income from services is recognized upon completion of services as per the terms of contracts with the customers.
Revenue Is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, price concesslons and Incentives, If any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. ’

Amounts bllled for services In accordance with contractual terms but where revenue is not recognized, have been classifled as unearned revenue and
disclosed under current liabliities

Contract assets are recognized when there Is excess of revenue earned over blllings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbllled recelvables
{only act of involcing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time Is required, as per contractual terms.
Unearned revenue {“contract llabllity”) Is recognized when there is billing in excess of revenues.

Revenue Is measured at the amount of consideration which the company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or
services 10 a customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes and dutles collected on
behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a recelvable is recognized when it
becomes unconditional.

Revenue fron sale of services e.g rail freight Income recognised as per the terms of contracts with customers based on stage of completion when the
outcome of the transactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably. For Fixed-price contract, revenue is recognised based on the
actual service provided to the end of the reporting perlod as a proportion of the total services to provided (Percentage of completion method)

Measement of revenue : Estimates of revenues, cost or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change.Any resulting
increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period In which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by management.

Revenue from handling and other ancillary services is recognised at the time of rendering of service which is at the time of loading/unloading of
container/cargo.

Contract balances
Trade recelvables
A recelvable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Contract labllities

A contract liability Is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an amount of
conslderation is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability Is recognised when the payment is made. Contract llabllitles are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Interest Income:

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised when It Is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective Interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend Income:
Dividend Income Is recognised when the right to recelve the payment is established.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Forelgn currency relnstatement and translation:

Transactions in foreign currencles are initially recorded by the Company at rates prevalling at the date of the transaction, Subsequently monetary
Items are translated at closing exchange rates as on balance sheet date and the resulting exchange difference recognised in statement of profit and
loss. Differences arising on settlement of monetary items are also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction. Non-monetary items carried at falr value that are denominated in foreign currencles are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (Le., translation differences on Items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OC! or profit or loss, respectively).

Forelgn exchange differences regarded as an ad)ustment to borrowing costs are presented In the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All
other finance galns / losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Employee 8enefits:
Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss of the year In which the related services are rendered.

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is made In accordance with the statute, and Is recognised as an expense in the year in
which employees have rendered services.

Defined Benefit Plan

Leave encashment belng a defined benefit plan Is accounted for using the projected unit credit method, on the basis of actuarlal valuations carrled out
by third party actuarles at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarlal gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptlons are charged or credited to other comprehensive income In the year in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in statement of profit
and loss.

The cost of providing gratulty, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the basls of actuarial valuations
carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date, Actuarlal gains and losses arlsing from experlence adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the perled In which they arise. Other costs are accounted in statement of
profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the other comprehensive income
in the year In which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Taxes on Income:

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax {including MAT and income tax for earlier years) and deferred tax . Tax is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to Items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases the
tax Is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive Income, Any subsequent change In direct tax on items initially recognised in equity
or other comprehenslve Income Is also recognised in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax pravision Is computed for income calculated after considering allowances and exemptlens under the provisions of the applicable Income
Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Deferred tax Is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabllitles in the Balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it Is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilitles are measured at the applicable tax rates. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wili be avallable against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax during
the specified perlod, i.e., the period for which MAT credit Is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognised as an asset, the sald asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no
longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified perlod.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Borrowing Costs:

Barrowlng costs specifically relating to the acquisition or constructlon of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantlal period of time 1o get
ready for its Intended use are capitalized (net of income on temporarily deployment of funds) as part of the cost of such assets. Borrowing costs cansist
of interest and other costs that the Company incurs In connection with the borrowing of funds. For general borrowlng used for the purpose of
obtzining a gualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of cbtalning a qualifylng asset. The amount of borrowing
costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that periad. All other borrowlng costs are expensed in
the period In which they occur.

Earnings per share:

Baslc earnings per share |s computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and welghted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity and
potentlal equity shares outstanding during the year including share options, convertible preference shares and debentures, except where the result
would be anti-dilutive, Potential equity shares that are converted during the year are included In the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the
beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of conversion,

Current and non-cusrent classification:

The Compary presants assets and fiabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification.

The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current llabilities and current labllitles in accordance with
Schedule 1I, Division 11 of Companies Act, 2013,

An asset |s classified as current when it Is:

a} Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed In normal operating cycle,

b} Heid primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting perlod, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restrictad from belng exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All gther assets are classified as non-current.

A llability is classified as current when It is:

a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Thera is ne unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabllity for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilitles are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle Is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reallsation in cash or cash equivalents, Deferred tax assets
and liabllities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The Company has identified twelve months as Its normal operating cycle.

Falr value measurement:

The Company measures financial Instruments at falr value at each balance sheet date.

Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
elther:

a} In the princlpal market for the asset or llability, or

b} In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or llabillty.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate ecanomic benefits by using the asset in
Its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficlent data are avallable to measure fair value,
maximlzing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable Inputs.

All assets and liabilites for which falr value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorized within the falr value hierarchy.

Ofi-setting financial Instrument:

Financlal assets and liabllities are offset and the net amount Is reported In the balance sheet where there Is a legally enforceable rights to offset the

recognised amounts and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the labllity simultaneously. The legally enforceable

rights must nat be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and In the event of default, Insolvency or
perathe Comparny or counterparty.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Governmant Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at thelr fair value where there Is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the company
will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

Gavernment grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-currant llabilitles as deferred Income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis aver the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other Income.

Segmant Reporting - identification of Segments

An operating segment Is a compenent of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, whose
operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating declslon maker to make decisions for which discrete financial informatlon is
available. Based on the management approach as defined In Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company’s performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance Indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

Contributed Equity
Equity Shares are classified as equity, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction
net of tax from the proceeds. !

Cash flow statemant

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recelpts or payments, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Campany are
segregated based on the avallable information.

Dividend Tistribution

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a llability in the period In which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any
interim dividend paid s recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised
directly In other equity.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS:

The preparation of the financlal statements requires management to make judgements, estimatas and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liablllties, and the accompanylng disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilltles. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or llabilities affected in future
periods. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertalnty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of assets and [labilities within the next financlal year, are described below. The Company
based on its assumptlons and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arlsing that are beyond the contrel of the Company.
Such changes are refiected in the assumptions when they occur.

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets:

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful fives and residuai values as per schedule Il of the Companles Act, 2013 or are based on the Company’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes, whichever is more appropriate.

Income Tax:
The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used In estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to an adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial stataments.

Contingencles:
Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impairment of financlal assets:

The Impairment provisions for financlal assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss. The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each raporting period.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset Is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount Is the higher of an
asset’s or Cash Generating Units {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an Individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent to those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the camrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered impalred and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. if no such transactions can be identifled, an appropriate valuatlon model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other avallable fair value indicators.

Definad benefits plans:

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of such obligation are determined using actuarlal valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptlons that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved In the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined 'beneﬁt
obfigation Is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Recoverabllity of trade recelvable:

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those recelvables Is
required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticlpated future payments and any possible
actlons that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Provislons:

Provisions are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events
and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated, The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of
judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be sublect to change, Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the
carrylng amounts of provisions and Tlabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances. '

fair value measurement of finandial Instruments :

when the fair value of financial assets and financial llabllitles recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices In active
markets, their fair value Is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF} model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this Is not feaslble, a degree of judgement is required In establishing falr values. Judgements
include conslderations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptlons about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financlal Instruments. .
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

{Rupees in lakhs) i

Gross Carrying Value m
As at April 1, 2027 213.3t 3,208.33 3,421.64
Additions 500,00 - 500.00

Disposals - - .

As at March 31, 2018 713.31 _3,208.33 3,921.64
Addltions - -
|Disposals . -

As at March 3%, 2019 713.31 3,208.33 3,921.64
|Accumutated Amortisation

As at April 1, 2017 84.03 250.00 334,03

Amortisation for the year 114.61 249.84 364.45

Deductlons - . )

As at March 31, 2018 198.64 499.84 688.48

Amaortisation for the year 148.04 249.84 357.88

Deductions - - -

As at March 31, 2019 346.68 749.68 1,096.36

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 366.53 2,/458.65 2,825,28

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2018 514.67 2,708.49 3,223.16
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

[Rupees In lakhs)

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Financial assets carrled at amortised cost

57.88

Security Deposits 14.21
Financlal Guarantee 605.76 804,39
Total 663.64 818.60

3 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, considered goaod unless otherwise stated

{Rupees in lakhs)

Capital Advances 869.64 864.64
Advances other than Capital advances

~ Other Advances - gratulty (Refer Note 37) - 10.05

- Prepaid Rent 1.89 3.79

~TDS Recelvable 458,59 345.37

- Service tax pald under protest 5.14 3.87

Total 1,335.26 1,227.72

9  INVENTORIES

Stores and Spares

{Rupees in lakhs}

JASEA N

Total

10 CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Recelvables consldered good - Secured . .
Trade Recelvables considered good - Unsecured 1,323.33 666.59
Trade Receivable which have Significant increase in Credit Risk 29.11 4.39
Trade Receivable -credit Impaired - .
1,352.44 670.98
Less: Provision for expected credit loss 29.11 4.39
29.11 4,39
Total 1,323.33 666.59
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Balances with banks in current accounts 119.96 375.29
Cash on hand 0.28 0.06
Total 120.24 375.35

2 CURRENT ASSETS - OTHER BANK BALANCES

Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money 258,12 357.68
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposlt 9.18 28.48
Total 267.30 386.16

13 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Finandial assets carrled at amortised cost

Security Deposits 7344 111.83

Financial Guarantee 248.93 236.76
Total 322.37 348.59

14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advances other than Capital advances
- Advances to Related Parties
- Advances to Suppllers
- Advances to Employees
-Others
Others
- Other recelvable
- Prepaid expenses
- Balance with Government Authorlty

39.84
2.87
16.54

35.66
1.54
37.36

0.23
81.34

- 16.58
1555

35.66
2,02
157.08

Total
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

{Rupees In lakhs)

15
1} Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares
4,36,50,000 (As at March 31, 2018: 4,36,50,000) Equity shares of Rupees 10 each 4,365.00 4,365.00
Preference Shares
13,50,000 {As at March 31, 2018: 13,50,000) Preference Shares of Rupees 10 each 135.00 135.00
Total 4,500.00 4,500.00
i) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
4,23,84,417 (As at March 31, 2018: 4,23,84,417) Equity Shares of Rupees 10 each 4,238.44 4,238.44
Total 4,238.44 4,238.44

i) Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the

Equity Share Capltal
Equity shares of Rupees 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully pald
At Aprll 1,2017

Issued durlng the year

At March 31, 2018

lssued during the year

At March 31, 2019

4,23,84,417

4,238.44

4,23,84,417

4,238.44

4,23,84,417

4,238.44

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rupees 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

in the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

Iil. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

BNV IR RS0 O

Slrinfe . ATy S

Equity shares of Rupees 10 each fully
paid
Arshiya Limited {Holding Company }
Shares held by Nominee and jointly
shareholders

4,23,83,817 4,23,83,817

600 600
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE UIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Rupeas in lakhs)

16
Securitles Premium Account 38,123.31 38,123.31
Retalned Earnings (58,116.26) (53,932.75)
Equity Component of Guarantee given by Parent Company 1,624.45 1,564.45
Equity Component of [oan from Parent Company 171.37 171.37
Total {18,197,13) {14,073.62)

a) Securities Premium Account

pees In lakhs)
Opening balance 38,123.31 38,123.31
Add: On issue of Equity shares . .
Closing Balance 38,123.31 38,123.31

Opening balance {53,932.75) (43,189.57)

Add/(Less):

Net Profit/{Loss) for the year {4,159.12) (10,745.75)

Other comprehensive income {24.39) 7.19

Equity component of Guarantee given - (4.62)
Closing balance {58,116.26) (53,932.75)

by Parent Company

Rupees in lakhs)

Equity Component of Guarantee glven by Parent Company

Opening balance 1,564.45 1,564,45
Add/{Less): Transaction during the year 60.00 .
[ Closing balance 1,624.45 1,564.45

{d) Nature & purpose of Reserves

Securitles Premium Account:

Securities premium reserve represents the amount recelved In excess of the face value of the equity shares. The utilisation
of the securities premium reserve is governed by the Provision of Companies Act, 2013.

Retalned Earnlngs :

Retained Earnings are the profits/losses of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

Equity Component of Guarantee given by Parent Company:

The fair value of financlal guarantees given to the lenders of the Company by the Parent Company Is recognised as a

deemed equity component.

Equity Component of loan from Parent Company:

smed equity component by the Parent Company.

e difference between the fair value of Interest free loans on the date of Issue and the transition price is recognised as a
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

7 NON CURRENT BORRQWINGS . (Rupses in lakhs)

Secured
-Term Loans
From Others {refer note 17.1 below) 31,902.67 33,538.04

Total 31,902.67 33,538.04

7.1 Rupee term loan from other parties :-
- Rupee term loans (including current maturity) of Rupees 33,647.31 lakhs (March 31, 2013 : Rupees 33,538.04
lakhs) are securaed by
(1) Details of Security
i. First charge on all movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipment's} and immovable properties of the
company both present and future on pari passu basis.
ii. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets of the company on pari passu basis.
ili. Pledge of 100% equity shares of the Company held by Promoters.
iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Holding Company.
v, Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

{2} Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from others 10% p.a. compounded quarterly,

(3} Terms of repayment :-

Rupeas in lakhs)

2019-2020 1,744.63
2020-2021 6,130.19
2021-2022 2,276.52
2022-2023 23,954.16
Total 34,114.50

{a) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off of incidental cost of borrowings aggregating to Rupees 467.19
lakhs for March 31, 2019 and Rupees 612.13 lakhs for March 31, 2018.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

I8 NON CURRENT LIABIUITIES - PROVISIONS

Provislon for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer Note 37) 72.03 .
Leave encashment {Refer Note 37) 48.49 16.42
Tatal 120.52 16.42

19 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Government Grants

1,632.32

1,723.69

Total

1,632,32

1,723.69

20 CURRENT BORROWINGS

 Unsecured

{Rupaees in lakhs)

Loans from Holding Company (refer note 20.1 below & Note 41) 304.38 2,029.26
Total 304.38 2,029.26
20.1 Interest free loan upto 1 year and repayable on demand.
//:'\FRAS =
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22

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

CURRENT LIABILITIES- TRADE PAYABLES

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer note 39 & 52) 15.77 5.2

Total outstanding dues of creditors Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 1307.44 !

{Refer Note 52} ,307. 620,88
Total 1,323.21 626.12

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilisies at amortised cost
Current maturities of long term borrowlngs

Term Loans from banks (Refer Note 22.1)* 6,910.60 8,931.30
Term Loans frem others {Refer Note 17.1 & 22.2) 4,704,64 -
Interest accrued and due on borrowings** 11,710.49 13,183.84
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3,280,15 1,370.35
Security Deposit 41.44 57.64
Financial Guarantee - 3.85
Others

Project Creditors{ Refer Note 35 & 52) 959.28 1,054,01
Employee's Dues *** 216,98 103,59
Payable for Expenses 280.10 502.26
Total 28,103.68 25,206.84

* [nclude Loan aggregating to Rupees 6,510.60 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupees 8,931.30 lakhs) recalled by banks.

**Include Interest accrued and due on Term Loans aggregating to Rupees 8,289.98 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupees 11,893,70 lakhs)

recalled by banks,

*¥|nclude Interest accrued and due on Term Loans aggregating to Rupees 390.64 lakhs recalled by others.

***|nclude Full and Final settlement of Rupees 25.28 lakhs {March31, 2018 Rupees 14.04 lakhs)

22.1 Rupee term loan from Banks :-
- Rupee term loans of Rupees 6910.60 lakhs {March 31, 2018 : Rupees 8931.30 lakhs) are secured by

{1} Details of Security

i, First charge on all movable assets {including rakes, contalners, equipment's) and immovable propertles of the company bot}

present and future on pari passu basis.

l. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entlre current assets of the company on parl passu basis.

Tii, Pledge of 100% equity shares of the Company held by Promaters,
iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Holding Company,
v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company/ Promoter.

{2) Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from Banks from 10.45% p.a- 16.25% p.a.

{3) Terms of repayment :-

{Rupees in lakhs}

2012-2013 2250

2013-2014 75.00
2014-201% 277.50
2015-2016 3,695.60
2018-2019* 2,840.00

Total 6,910,60
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(4) Amount and period of default In repayment of borrowings

{Rupees in lakhs

Current maturity of Rupee Term loans 22,50 2012-13
75.00 2013-14
277.50 2014-15
3,695.60 2015-16
2,840.00 2018-19
Total 6,910.60

222 Rupee term loan from Others :-
- Rupee term loans of Rupees 2,960.00 lakhs are secured by
(1) Details of Security
i First parl passu charge on all present and future cash flows of the Company
ii.First parl passu charge on all movable assets and Immovable assets of the company.
fll. Charge on cash flows and movable assets by deed of Hypothecation.
Iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Holding Company.
v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

{2) Terms of Interest rate;
- on Term Loans from others @ 20% p.a payable quarterly

(3} Terms of rapayment :-
Rupees in lakhs

2022-2023* 2,960.00
Total 2,960.00

* During the year the loan has been recalled by others.

{4) Amount and perlod of default in repayment of borrowlngs

{Rupees in lakhs)

Current maturity of Rupee Term loans 2,960.00 2018-19
Total 2,960.00
=
RS
p/ \\' - S *."0

|()
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

*+ Amount and perlod of default in payment of interest on borrowlings**

Interest accrued & due on borrowing 2013-14 965.05 -
2014-15 876,51 -
2015-16 1,035.94 -
216-17 1,287.23 -
2017-18 1,512,65 1,378.00
2018-19 2,612,60 2,042.51
Total 8,289.98 3,420.51

3 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Rupees in lakhs)

Advance recelved from Customers 107.02 151.12
Other Advances 0.51 1.74
Government Grants 365.49 639.61

Qthers
Statutory Liabilitles* 811.31 598,99
interest on Delayed payment of Statutory dues 590.57 426.77
Total 1‘874.90 1,918.23

* Statutory liablities Include TDS,Goods & Service Tax, Service tax,PF,ESIC payable,Employee professional tax

GOVERNMENT GRANTS Rupees In lakhs)
Sk o8 2l
Opening balance 2,363,30 2,728.79
Released to statement of profit and loss (365.49) (365.49)
Closing balance 1,997.81 2,363.30
Current 365.49 639,61
Non Current 1,632.32 1,723.69

24 CURRENT UIABLLITIES - PROVISIONS

FEER T LV TH] o PO

Provision for employe benefits
Leave encashment {Refer Note 37)

Rupees In lakhs)

Total
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Rall Frelght Income 12,098.57 12,338.16
Road Frelight Income 722.70 440.86
Handling Income 626.06 643.90
Terminal Income 167.50 175.40
Total 13,614.83 13,598.32
5 OTHER INCOME (Rupees In [akhs)
Interest Income on Flnancial assets carrled at amortised cost
Unwinding of interest on loan to related party - 168.45
Unwinding of Interest on Security deposit 5.76 1.28
Other interest income
Interest on Bank fixed deposits 21.10 29.38
Interest Income on income tax refund - 16.92
Income on derecognistion of related party loan - 307.69
Other Income
Government Grants 365.49 365.49
Financlal Guarantee Income 3.85 0.77
Sundry Balanca/ Excess provision Written Back 245.67 553.46
Gain on sale of investment . 5.00
Miscellaneous Income - 10.95
Total 641.87 1,459.39

27 COST OF OPERATIONS {Rupees In lakhs)

Rail Freight Expenses 9,434.84 10,172.63
Road Freight Expenses 687.64 448.10
Handling Expenses 227.76 231.86
Terminal Expenses 357.55 304,26
Other operating expenses 692.48 350.53

Total 11,400.27 11,507.38
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(Rupees in Ikhs

Salarles, wages and bonus 1,037.47 776.16
Contribution to provident and other funds 23.21 15.09
Staff welfare expenses 61.23 35.54

Total 1,121.91 826.79

29 FINANCE COST

[Pt

AbidT 2l

{Rupees in lakhs)

Interest expense on Financial liabllities measured at amortised cost

Interest expense on borrowings 6,476.59 7.451.08

Unwinding of interest for loan from related party (Refer Note 41) 63.70 56.88

Interest expense on Securlty Deposit 1.24 1.24

Interest expense others

fnterest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues 167.51 263.01

Interest on MSME vendors 0.50 -

Other borrowling costs

Guarantee Commission Expense 246.46 240.56

Interest Charges Others 53.33 .

Bank charges 5.84 6.17
Total 7,015.57 8,018.94

30 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on tangible assets 3,701.76 3,766.16
Amortisation on intangible assets 397.88 364.45
Total 4,099.64 4,130.61
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

1 OTHER EXPENSES

Repalrs and maintenance
- Bullding 16.73 17.97
- Others 58.25 46.10
Advertisement 35.62 38,79
Payments to Auditors (Refer note below) 12,50 8.50
Bad Debts written off - 101.36
Electricity charges 33.81 28.54
Insurance 21.45 18.41
Legal and professional fees 176.32 75.54
Rates and taxes 15.89 7.36
Rent 472,99 374.08
Printing and Statlonary 16.08 7.82
Office Expenses 32.26 13.38
Security charges 59.11 45.14
Telephone and internet expenses 25.47 18,07
Travelling & conveyance expenses 185.37 46.98
Vehicle Expenses 44,54 28.18
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 24.71 -
Miscellaneous expenses 22.19 18.86
Loss on sale of scrap 0.30 -
Total 1,253.59 895.48

(ai Detalls of Payments to auditors {Rupees In lakhs)

32 EXCEPTIONALITEMS

Sundry Balance / excess provision written back
Loss on sale/discarded of Property, plant and equipment

As Statutory Auditor
Audit Fee 12.50 8.50
Total 12.50 8,50
{Rupees In lakhs)

(61,07}
182.79

Settlement of Claim 302.54
Total (6,475.16)| 424.26

ZNSIN

e

H
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

33 Eamings per share (Basic and Dilutad)

Profit avalizble 1o equity sharshokd
Profit/{Loss) after tax (A} (Rupees In Lakhs} (4,159.12) (10,745,75)
Number of aquity shares

Welghted average number of equity shares outstanding {Basl and Diluted} (B} 4,23,84,417 4,23,80,417
Baslc & Diluted earnings per share{A/B} (Rupees) 9.81) {25.35)
Nominal Value of an equi 10| 10

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENT
{To the axtent not previded for)

1) Capital Commitments
Rupaes In lakhs}

S

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for {net |

of advances pald)
Cash outflow expected on execution on such capltal contracts

{li} Contingant llabiNitles:

(a) Carrler Bond (Bond has been givan to Principal of custom for the safeguarding duty liability on goods
movemant from respective ports to ICD Khurja}
{ b] Bank Guarantee 101.25 162.00
{c) Letter of Credlt { Letter of Credit given In favour of Railways for avalling e-freight facility for haulage 100.00 100,00
payment)

d) Claims Against the Company not acknowledged as Debt 23.39 23,39
(e} Service tax Demand 51.55 51?1
No Cash outflow Is expected in near future |

35 Certaln creditors have initlated legal proceadings against the company and its directors and the company has defaulted In payment of instalments of
consent terms for which the company is in process of negotlating and finalising the revised consent terms. MaJority of the creditors have been settled
over the past few years and some of the creditors have also shown interest and faith not anly In logistics and infrastructure sector but also in the
Company and are belng alictted equity shares of Holding Company.

36 Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee
The company has taken office on lease under non-cancellable operating lease expiring at the end of 3 years. The leases have varylng terms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.
The company has paid Rupees 340.65 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rupees 278.56 lakhs)during the year towards minimum lease payment,

(Rupees In lakhs}
aine ]
Curnmltrnznu for minimum lease payments In refation to non cancellable operating leases are as|
|Tollows
Future Lease Payment:

a) Within one Year 35192 340,65
b) Later than one year but not later than five years 599.19 1,051.11
<} Later than five years - .
Total 1,051.11 1,391.76

Lease rents recognised as expense in the year | 340.65 | 278.56

37 EMPLOYEE BENEAT
37.1 Discl to Indlan Ac ing Standard (IND AS) 19 - Employee Benafits

{a} Defined contribution plans
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expenses for the years are as under:

(au In lakhs)

i

Employer's Contributlon to Provident Fund
Employer's Contributlon to Penslon Scheme
Employer's Contribution to ESIC
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(1) Brigd descriptions of the plans
The Company's defined contributlon plans are Provident Fund and Employeas State Insurance whare the Company has no further cbligation beyond
making the contributions. The Company's definad benefit plans Indude gratulty. The employees are 8lso entitled to leave encashment as per the
Company’s policy.

{c} Leave Obligations

Provisions for Leave encashment

Current 10.61
Non-Qurrent 4845

Total 59.10 20.11

{d) Defined banefit plan — Gratuity:
The employee’s Gratulty fund Is managed by the Uife insurance Corporation of Indla. The present value of obligation Is determined based on actuarlal
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognised each perlod of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitiemant and measures each unit sepearately to build up ta final obligstion.

Particulars March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018

I. Actuarial assumprions

Martality Table indian Assured lves|/indian Assured live

Mortality (2006-08) Ult| Mertallty {2006-08) Uit

Discount rate 6.95%| 7.00%
Expected return on plan assats 6.95% 7.40%
Salary Escalation Rate 9.00%) 7.00%
Withdrawal Rate 17.00% 15.00%
Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Years
11, Change [n Present value of dafined benefit obligations

Liabliity as at the beginning of the year 47.31 27.19
Interast cost 350 230
Current service cost 19.62 7.78
Benefits paid (2.95} {0.93)
|Actuarlal [galn}/ioss on obligations 24.39 0.98
Acquisition adjustment 41.75 -
Liability as at the end of the year 133.62 47.31
111, Change In Fair value of plan assats

Fair value of plan assets as at the beglnning of the year 57.35 46,28
Expected return on plan assets 423 14.01
Actual Enterprise’s Contributions - 0,93
Banefits paid - {0.53)
Actuarlal gain/{loss) on plan assets - {2.93)
Falr value of plan assets as at the end of the year 61.58 57.35
V. Actual return on plan assets

Expected return on pian assets 423 14.01
Actuarial galn/(loss) on plan assets - (2.93}
|Actual return on plan assets 4.23 11.08
V. Liabllity recognised in the Balance Sheat

Liabllity as at the and of the year 133.62 47,31
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 61,58 57.35
Liabi Asset) nised in the Balance Sheet 72.03 {10.05)
V1. Percentage of each category of plan assets 10 total fair value of plan assets

Insurer managed funds 100%| 100%;
Vil, Amount recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 19.62 7.78
Interest cost - .30
Expected return on plan assets (0.74) {14.01)
Net actuarial (gain)/loss to be on obllgation . R
Expense/ (income} recagnised in Statement of Profit and Loss 18.88 {3.93)
Vill, Amount racognised In the Other Comprehensiva Income {OCI)

Amount recognised In OC), beginning of the year {7.29} {0.10)

ampanents of actuarial galn/losses on obligations

to Change in financlal assumptions 16.19 (1.16)
3o Change In demographic assumption (1.82)

o Change In exparience assumption 10.02 213
Hted return on plan assets - {2.93}
ffie in Asset Celling - -
| remasurement recognised in OCI 24.3% {7.19)
ecognised in OCI, end of year 17.10 {7.29)
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L Balance Shaet raconclilation

Opening net liability {10.08}) (9.09)
Expenses recognised In Profit & Loss 18.88 716
Actual Empioyer Contribution {2.04) {0.93)
Total Remeasuremeant recognised In OC! 24.39 17.19)
Acquisition adjustment 475 X
Closing net llability 72.03 {10.05)

(e} Sslary escalation assumption has been set In discussions with the enterprise based on their estimates of overall long-term salary growth rates after
taking into consideration expected earnings Inflation as well as parformance and senlority related increases,

87.2 Sensithity analysis:

Effect on Gratulty
Particulars Changes in obligation (Rupess in
assumptions takhs}
For the year endad 31st March, 2018 {
Salary growth rate +0.50% 47,66
-0.50% 45.40
Discount rate +0.50% 45,41
-0.50% 47.66
For the year ended 31st March, 2019
Salary growth rate +0.1% 140,38
0.1% 127.32
|Discount rate 40.1% 127.26
-0.1% 140.58

The above sensitivity analysls Is based on & change in an assumption while halding all other assumptions constant. In pratice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes In some of the assumptlons may be correlated. (n presenting the above sensitivity anaysls, the present value of defined benefit obligation
has been caleulated using the projected unit credlt method at the end of reporting perlod, which Is the same as that applied in calculating the defined
obligation llability recognised In the balance sheet.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarlal risks such as: longevity risk and salary risk.

[A) Interest risk - A decrease in the discount rate will increase tha plan llabllity.
(8] ‘Longevity risk - The present value of the defined baneflt plan liability Is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An Increase in the Hife expectancy of the plan participants. As such, an increase the pian's liability.

(€) Salary risk - The present value of the defined pian liability Is calculated by reference to the future sataries of plan participants. As such, as increase in the
safary of the plan participants wili increase the plan's llability.

37.3 The welghted average duration of the defined henefit obligation at the end of the reporting perlad Is 5 years (31st March, 2018 - § years).
38  Disclosure pursuant to Indain Accounting Standard 108 - Operating Segment

The company Is engaged in Private Container Train Operator (PCTO] business and is holding Category license which allows the compaay to operate on
Indlzn Rall network on pan India basls both Domestic and Exim Traffic. in the opinion of the company, the entire eperations are governed by the same
&t of risks and returns and hence the same has been tonsidered as representing a single primary segment.

The company provides services within Indla and hence does not have any aperation in aconomic environments with different risks and returns, Hence,
it is considered that the company is operating In a single geographical sagment.

Customers Individually contributes to more than 10% of revenue :-

There are 2 customers | March 31, 2018 - 3 customers) aggregating to Rupees 8,179.24 lakhs { March 31, 2018 Rupees 8,619.29 lakhs} constituting 60% {
March 31, 2018- 64%) of Revenue.

39 DISCLOSURES UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 (MSMED ACT, 2006)
To the extentthe company has received intimation from the “suppliers' regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, the details are provided as under

(lil} Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier heyond the

i) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but - -
‘-{.\5. ond the appelnted day during the year] but without adding the interest specitied under the Micro,

Herest remaining due and payable even in the succeading years, until such date when the interest -
ks above are actually paid to the small enterprise.
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} RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE
On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Afiairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 - Leases and certaln amendment to existing Ind AS, Thess
amendments shall be applicable to the Company from April 01, 2019. ’

A) ISSUE OF IND AS 116 - LEASES

Ind AS 116 will supersede the current standard on leases i.e. Ind AS 17- Leasas, As per Ind AS 116, the lessor will have to bring ta books all the non-
canceliable portion of leasing arrangement.

B) AMENDMENT TO EXISTING STANDARD

The MCA has also carried out amendmants of the following accounting standards
I Ind AS 101- First tima sdoption of Indlan Accounting Standards

1l, Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations

1L, Ind AS 109 - Financlal Instruments

v, Ind AS 311 - Joint Arrangements

v. Ind AS 12 - Incoma Taxes

vi. Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits

i, Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

iil. Ind AS 28 - Investment In Assoclates and Jolnt Ventures

Application of above standards are not axpected to have any significant impact on the Comgany’s financlal statements.
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RE\ATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

List of velated parties as per the mquirements of ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclotures

Arshiva Limlted Holding Company

H

arshiva Rall Siding and infrestructure Umited (tilt February 3, 2018) bsidi

¥

india

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited {til March 21, 2018)
Arshiya Northern FTWZ2 Limited

Arshiya industrial & Distribution Hub Limited Felow Subsidiarles Indla
Arshiva Logistics Services Limited (Formerly known as. Laxmipat] Batajl Exlm Trading Limited)

M. Ajay 5. Mittal - Director

Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director

Mr, Ashish Kumar Bairagra - Independent Director

Mr. Rishabh Pankaj Shah - Independent Director

Mr. Siddarth Kasturia - Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. March 26, 2019)

Ms. Avani Dip Lakhanl - C: vy {w.e.f. March 26, 2019}
M. Vinod Jain - Chief Finandal Officer [till March 25, 2019)

Mr. Amardeep Gupts - Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f. March 26, 2018}

Key Managerial Personnal {KMP}

Mrs. Archana A Mittal
Mr. Ananya A Mittal [Relative of Key Managerial
jPersonnel

0}

The nature and amount of transactians with the above related parties are as foows

Loans given - 375.05
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited | Loan repayments™ - (131283}
[ Rall Fraight income 749.45 23.48
Unwinded Interest Income on - 67.20
Loan to subsidiaries
Leang givan - 543.84
Arshiva Northern FTWZ Limited Loan rapayments™® - {2,354.81)
Unwinded interest Income on - 101.22
Loan to subsidlaries
Loang taken** {733.31) [4.831.75)
Lo&N repayments 2,996.44 3,751.60
location of cost and {419.55) {418.25)
expenses by Holding Company®
Arshlya Limited
Unwinded Interest expanse on (63.70} (56.88}
Loan from helding company
Fnanclal Guarantees {246.45; {240.56)
Arshiya Supply Chaln Management Private Limited Loans ghven - 1181
Loan repayments”? - {11.81)
Arshiva Logistics Services Limited (formerly knawn as Laxmipat] Balaji Exim Trading Limited) | Loans glven - 0.3
Loan repayments 0.23 -
* During the year, the Halding C has all d certatn cost and exp incurred by it, to the company aggregating to Rupees 419.55 lakhs (315t March, 2018 - Rupees
418.25 lakbs} based on Helding Company’s estimates of such cost and exp attributable to the Hence, Employee henefit exp [ Refer Note Mo. 28} and certain expenses
stated under other mxpenses (Refer Note No. 31] are pr d as Inclusive of such allacation of certain costs and exp
** The Company has ad d baj Ivabl of Arshiya Industrial, Distribution & Hub Limited (AIDHL) on March 31, 2019 Rupees NIL {March 31, 2018 Rupees 1,269.42 lakhs),

recaivable amaum of Arshiya Northem FTWZ Limited (ANFTWZ] on March 31, 2019 Rupees NIL {March 31, 2018 Rupees 2,026.74 lakhs), recefvable amount of Arshiva Supply Chain
Managemant Private Limited {ASCM) on March 31, 2019 Rupees NIL [March 31, 2018 Rupees 4.45 fakhs } with Arshiya Limited.
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Closing

Rupees in lakhs
Arshiya Loglstics Services Umited (formerly known as Lmanipati Bala)s Exim Trading Limited) 023
Arghiya Umited 304.38 2,029.26
Arshiva indystrial Distribution & Hub Limitsd 235,58 .
Arshiya Limited [ £54.69 1.041.15
Ajay § Mittal 54,120.00 51,120.00
Archana A Mittal 54,120.00 51,120.00
Asshiya Limited | 51,200.19 48,200.19
_ =
Mey gerisl p ! ath
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financlal Instruments by Ca

Amortised cost
Trade Recelvables 1,323.33 666.59 1,323.33 666.59
Cash and Cash Equlvalents 120.24 37535 120.24 37535
Security Deposits 131.32 126.04 13132 126.04
Other Bank Balances 267.30 386.16 267.30 386.16
Financial Guarantea 854.69 1,041.15 854.69 1,041,15

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost
Borrowings 43,822.29 44,498.60 43,822.29 44,498.60
Trade Payables 132321 626.12 1323.21 626.12
Other financlal liabilities 16,488.44 16,275.54 16,488.44 16,275.54

Fair Valuation tachniques used to determine falr value

The Company maintains procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available,
The fair values of the financial assets and lisbilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a llabllity In an orderty transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The followIng methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The Company assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade recelvables, trade payables, and other current financial
assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these Instruments.

The falr values for security deposits and other financlal llabilities were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current
lending rate. They are classified as level 3 falr values in the Falr value hierarchy due to the Inclusion of unobservable inputs including
counterparty credit risk,

The fair values of non current berrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as
level 3 fair values In the falr value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financlal (nstruments that are
recognised and measure at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the Inputs used in determing falr value, the
company has classified its financlal Instruments Into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial Instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded In an active market (for example, traded bo nds, over the counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

& or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the Instrument is inctuded in be

3. Thisis
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3 Financial Risk Management

The Cornpany's princlpal financial liabllitles comprises of borrowings, trade and othar payables and financial guarantees contracts. The main purpose of
these financlal liabilities is to manage for the Company's operations. The Company’s financial assets comprises of trade and other receivables, cash and
deposits that arises directly from Its operations.

The company's activities expose it to variety of financlal risks including credIt risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's risks management
assessment, management and processas are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company to set up appropriate risks limits and
controls and to monitor such isks and compllances with the same, Risks assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the company's actlvitles.

Ageing anas

Credit risk o sh and cash

Regular review of
equivalents, trade credit limits
receivables and
Financlal assets
measured at amortised
cost.

Liquidity risk Borrowlings and other  (Rolling cash flow Availability of
liabilities forecasts financial support from
|parent company
Market risk - interest rate Long-term borrowings |Sensitivity analysis Unhedged
atvariable rates

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a corporate finance team under the policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk, Interest rate risk.

{A} Cradit risk
The Company Is exposed to credit risk, which is risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting In a financial loss to the
Company. Credit risk arlses from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures to trade customers including outstanding receivables.

Trade recelvables are typlcally unsecured and are derlved from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed
by the company through continugusly monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. Outstanding customer receivables are regulariy monltored and any further services to major customers are approved by the senlor
management. Credit risk Is high as only few customers’ account for majority of the revenue in the year presented. On account of adoption of Ind AS 108,
the company uses expected credlt loss model to assess the impalrment loss or gain,

Liquidity risk .
(:(:uir:‘tly !:?l; is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without Incurring unacceptable
losses, The Company’s objective is to, at all times; maintain optimum levels of liquldity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company limits
Its liquidity risk by ensuring funds from trade receivables. The Company relies on operating cash flows and funding from helding company to meet its
needs for funds.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards financial liabilities Into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
to the contractual maturity date.
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Contractual maturitles of financlal lisbilitles

Heer o

March 31, 2019

Borrowings 11,919.62 32,369.86 -
 Trade payables 1,323.21 - -
Other financlal liabillties 16,489.00 - -
Total Financial llabilities 29,731.83 32,369.86 -
March 31, 2018

Borrowings 11,024.26 34,150.17 .
Trade payables 626,12 - -
Qther financlal Habilities 16,276.91 - -
Total Flnancial llabilitles 17,927.29 34,150.17 .
{C) Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of volatllity of prices in the financial
markets. Market risk can be further segregated as: 1) Forelgn currency risk and 2} Interest rate risk

1) Forelgn currency risk
1} Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow or an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In foreign exchange rates.
However, the Company does not have any forelgn currency exposure.

2} intarest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
During the 31st March, 2019 the Company's borrowlngs at the varlable rate were mainly denominated in Rupees.

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost, They are therefore not subject to Interest rate risk as defined In IND AS- 107, since
neither the earrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market Interest rates.

Interest rate Hsk exposure
The exposure of the company's horrowing to Interest rate changes &t the end of the reporting pericd are as follows:-

{Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Variable rate borrowings 6,910.60 8,931.30

Interest sensithvty
Profit or loss Is sensitive to higher/ lower Interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in Interest rates.

particulars impact on profit before tax
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest seasitivity
50 bps Increase the profit before tax by* (34.55} {44.66}
50 bps decrease the profit before tax by* 34.55 44,66
* Holding all other variable constant
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the company's objective when managing capltal is to safeguard the company's ability to continue going concern in order to
provide the return for sharehotders and benefit to other stakeholders and to malintain an optional capital structure to reduce the

cost of capital, Capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders
of the company.

The company manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or Issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a Debt equity ratlo.

Borrowings 43,822.29 44,498.60
Other Financial Liabilities (Interest accrued) 14,990.64 14,554.19
Total Debt 58,812.93 59,052.79
Equity 4,238.44 4,238.44
Other equity {18,197.13) (14,073.62)
Total Equity {13,958.59) [9,835.18)
Nates:-

{i} Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings Including current maturities and interest.
(if} Total equity {as shown in balance sheet) includes Issued capital and all other equity.

As stated In Notes to accounts, the company [s also having scheme of arrangements to reorganise the capital structure,

Debt Covenants

Under the terms of Restructuring Agreement, the company Is required to comply with followling financia!l covenants:-

Withaut prior approval of lender, the company shall not:

Loans, debenture & charge - Issue or subscribe to any debentures, shares, raise any loans, deposit from public, issue equity or
preference capital, change Its capital structure or create any charge on Its assets Including its cash fiow or give any guarantees.

Dividend on equity shares - declare/pay dividend on equity shares unless otherwlse approved by the Lender/Business Monitoring

Committee and subject to the payment of recompense amount payable by the borrower to the lender in accordance with the
provisions of RA.

In order to achleve this overall objective, the Capital Management, amongst other thing, aims to ensure that it meets Financial
covenants attachad to the Interest bearing Loans and borrowings that define Capital structure requirements, there have been
breaches in the Financial covenants of interest bearing loans and borrowing in the Current period and previous perlod.

The Company has not proposed any dividend in last two years In view of losses Incurred.
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15 Taxation

1) In view of loss for the year, no provision for current tax has been made.

ii) The Company has not recognised any deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses as [t is not probable

that the Company will have sufficlent future taxable profit which can be avallable against the avallable tax losses.

i) Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised

{Rupees in lakhs)

2014-2015 14,739.87 2022-2023 6,512.68
2015-2016 - 2023-2024 5,536.76
2016-2017 - 2024-2025 3,192.80
2017-2018 13,093.10 2025-2026 3,717.69
2018-2019 431.07 2026-2027 3,199.58
2019-2020 - 2027-2028 2,104.24

Total 28,264.04 24,263.74

Unused deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2019 Rupees 9,217.76 Lakhs {March 31, 2018 - Rupees 13,290,59 Lakhs) has not been
recognised, as there Is no convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the unadjusted tax losses
will be utillsed by the Company.

Details of Deferred tax assets are mentioned below:- (Rupees in lakhs
Property plant equipment 4,268.76 4,084.31
Unabsorbed depreciation (6,308.57) {5,773.59)
expense allowable on payments under section (166.12) {3,651.00)
Unahsorbed loss {7,348.65) {8,397.44)
Financial Instruments 336.82 447.13
Total Deferved Tax Assets (8,217.76) {13,290.59)
46 Preparatlon of financial statements on # Going Concern” basis
The company has Incurred net loss of Rupees 4,183.51 Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2019 and as of that date, the company's
current liabllities exceeded by its current assets by Rupees 29,449.72 lakhs. Accumulated losses have also resulted into more than net
worth of the company. Some of Its lenders have recalled their loans and the company Is in the process of negotiating the revised
payment terms with the lenders.
The Company Is EBIDTA positive and with the commencement of the two dedicated freight corridors, the said company will benefit
immensely. Moreover, a unique contract entered into with one of the largest global shipping lines has already started to improve the
profitabllity. Also, the proposed merger of Fellow subsldiary with the company as mentioned in note no. 51, would make thelr
operations not anly complementary, but enhance their profitability.

In view of the focussed emphasis of the Government on |ogistics infrastructure sector, the proposed restructuring and considering the
fact that the facilities are yet to achieve full operational potential besides the sirategic locations of the facilities, the management’s
future outlook of its businesses is very promising. Accordingly the financials have been prepared on golng concern basls, based on
financial support from the Parent Company.

The management of the company is In the process of restructuring its business operations and steps are as under :
i Focus on long term contracts with corporate clients for stable revenues.
i Focuson reduction of empty haulage / return business In different sectors to increase in revenue and margins.
i Diversified focus from only Steel industry to Cement, Agro and Tlles also so as to have a balance of product mix.
v Increased focus oo 3 as a distribution hub post G5T implementation

a,,,
g
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Government focus on Multi-modal logistic and transport services to increase the throughput of the Infrastructure already created by
the company;

Government focus on the revamping of the Rallway Boards and Increasing clarity on regulatory aspects to support resolution of the
regulatory lssues;

Two Dedicated Freight Corridor(s) (DFC} along the Western and Eastern part of India to support increase in the business volume,

Government announcement of Jewar Airport and Merut Highway connecting Jewar via Khurja and thereby connecting to Yamuna
Expressway( i.e. Delhl to Agra).

The above steps shall enable the Company to improve Company’s Net worth and its ability to discharge its debts/liabilities in near
future.

As per debt covenant, the Company are required to adhere to repayment schedule and any short payment gives Edelwelss Asset
Reconstruction Company (EARC) the right to convert whole of the outstanding amount of restructured rupee loan and/or part of the
default amount into fully paid up equity shares of the Company. No such notice of conversion in writing has been given by EARC and the
Company continues to disclose the amount as current and non-current as per repayment schedule, in the Balance Sheet.

The company had entered into one-time settlement (OTS) with a lender during the year. The company had paid partlal amount against
0TS and the effect was taken as an exceptional item during the year ended March 31, 2019, However, the Company has defaulted In
payment as per the terms of the OTS. As a result, the Company needs to reverse the exceptional gain recorded during the year and
needs to recognise Interest on the entire flabllity as per the original terms. The Company is in discussion with the lender for additional
time to repay. Accordingly, the company continues to reflect the outstanding amount of loan as per OTS in the financlal statements,

The Company has not reversed the galn, nor provided for additional interest. Had the Company reversed the gain and provided for
additional interest, exceptional item would have been lower by Rs. 6,604.55 Lakhs and finance cost would have been higher by Rs.
3,500.76 Lakhs having consequential impact on total comprehensive income, liabilities and other Equity for the year ended 31st March,
2019.

The Company has procured certain capital goods under EPCG scheme at concesslonal rate of duty. On non fulfiliment of certain
conditions, the company may become liable to pay differential custom duty along with interest thereon such procurement. The
management is hopeful of completing the expected cbligation within the stipulated time.

The scheme of arrangement u/s 230 to 232 is scheme of merger of the Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Limited and Arshiya
Transport & Handling Limited into the company, which s pending with NCLT. The scheme is conditional on various approval / sanctions
and is effective thereafter; accordingly ho effect of the sald Scheme Is given In the financlal statement. The Creditors meeting of the
respective companies was held on 6th May 2019. No accounting impact and disclosures Is considered and necessary at this stage
pending requisite regulatory approvals.

In addition to above, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company at their meeting held on 24th May, 2018, has approved a scheme to
reorganize corporate structure i.e. demerger of “Domestic warehousing business” of the Parent Company into the company. This
proposed scheme of arrangement is conditional upon approval of above scheme {refer note no. 50}. No accounting impact and
disclosures is considered and necessary at this stage pending requisite regulatory approvals.

The Company has sent request letters/ emails to various parties for confirmations of balances under borrowings, trade recelvables
trade payables et, loans and advances to which only few parties have responded. Accordingly, the possible adjustment, if any, required
in the financial statements will be accounted as and when the same is determinable.

Corporation Bank has flled a suit with Debt Recovery Tribunal, New Delhi, towards recovery against Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited,
Arshiya Limited as a Corporate Guarantor and two promater directors of the holding company as Guarantors, for Rupees 2,012.60
Jakhs. The same is pending before the DRT Delhi. The matter Is sub-judice.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by type of products and services, geography and timing of revenue
recognition.

Effective Aprll 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The effect on adoption of Ind AS
115 was insignificant.

Revenue disaggregation by type of goods and services is given note no. 25
Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

{Rupees in lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
G by
eograpny 31*!5 rch 2018 3!“ March 2018
In India 13,596.16 13,560.32
Qutside india 18,67 38.00

Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location of the customers,
Revenue disaggregation by timing of revenue recognition s as follows:
(Rupees In lakhs

Geotraphy For t‘:ta year ended For the year ended

31" March 2019 31" March 2018
Goods transferred at a point in time - -
Service transferred over time 13,614.83 13,598.32

Based on recent Supreme court judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 there are various interpretive issues including
its applicabllity thus prospective provision w.e.f. March 01, 2019 been considered of Rs. 0.44 lakhs.

The Company's borrowlngs have been assigned by bankers to an ARC/ restructured with banks under CDR Package. Certain lenders had
invoked the CDR package. The ARC/ CDR lenders have charged interest/ penal interest/additional Interest amounting to Rs. 511.89
lakhs upto the year ended March 31, 2018, which was not accepted by the Company and hence s under negotiation. In light of audit
qualifications In previous year as a matter of prudence, the company has recognised the sald interest/ additional interest/ penal
interest and has accordingly restated the finance cost and other consequentlal impacts in respective year.

Further, during the year ended March 31, 2018 reported figure of finance cost, other Equity and Interest Accrued an borrowings was
Rs. 7,507.05 lakhs, Rs. (13,561.72) lakhs and Rs. 12,671.96 lakhs respectively, Restated figures of finance cost, other equity and Interest
Accrued on Borrowings are Rs. 8,018.94 lakhs, Rs, (14,073.62) lakhs and Rs. 13,183.84 lakhs respectively. Earning Per Share (EPS) also
recalculated based on the restated figures,

The figures for the previous year have been re-grouped /re-arranged, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current year's
classificatlon/disclosure.

Notes to the financial statements 1-57

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

=

Chartered Accountants Arshiya Ralil Infrastructure Limlted ((ﬁf'&&'%\

Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355 ,/ A N
1

[ ¢ 1-UiBaT

%’a\,\\ —~_JA qu:rtgl.._:
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Vijay Napawaliya Ajay § Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership Number. 109859 DIN : 00226355 DiN : 00613576
[
\” an
Place : Mumbai Ama upta akkumar Lakhani
Date: May 27, 2019 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE ]

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,

MUMBAI BENCH, COURT II

ARSHIYA LIMITED

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv
Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie
Mumbai

Besant Road, Worli,

400018 Maharashtra India

ARSHIYA RAIL
INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv
Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie
Mumbai

Besant Road, Worlj,

[IANO 859/2020

IN
C.A. (CAA)/2926/MB/2019

Under Section 230 to 232 read with section 66 and
section 52 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013
INTHE MATTER OF
Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited
bearingCIN: L93000M H1981PL C024747(Demerged
Company/Applicant Company 1)

And
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited bearing CIN:
U93000MH2008PL C180907 (Resulting
Company/Applicant Company 2)

And

Their Respective Shareholders.

)
)
)
)

)... Demerged Company/Applicant Company 1

400018 Maharashtra India



)... Resulting Company/Applicant Company 2
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Order delivered on: 26.02.2021

CORAM:
Mr. H.P. Chaturvedi : Hon’ble, Member (Judicial)
Mr. Ravikumar Duraisamy : Hon’ble, Member (Judicial)

For the Applicants: Hemant Sethi, i/b Hemant Sethi & Co. Advocates

Per: Harihar Prakash Chaturvedi, Member (Judicial)

193

ORDER

1. This IA has been taken out by the Applicants to reschedule meetings of the
secured Creditors of the Applicant Companies. By order dated 9th December 2020
passed by this Tribunal in CA No 2926 of 2019 this Bench s directed that the
meetings of the Secured creditors of the Applicant Companies be convened on
14th January 2020 at 11AM and 1PM at 302 Ceejee House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar
Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besent Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018.

2. It is further stated that Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited being
major lender in both the Applicant Companies needed more time to analyses and
evaluate the benefits the scheme. the letter is annexed at PDF page no 43 of IA.

3. In light of the above circumstances, the meetings of the Secured Creditors of the
Applicant Company be convened and held at 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv
Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018 on 20th
March 2021 at 11.00 am and that of Applicant Company 2 on 20th March 2021 at
1 PM at 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant
Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018.

4. Applicants are directed to intimate afresh all the secured lenders of the Applicant
Companies about the adjourned date of meeting by hand delivery/email /speed
post and file compliance report.
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5. Rest of the order dated 9th December 2019 remains same.

6. TANO 859/2020 is disposed of.

Sd/- Sd/-
RAVIKUMAR DURAISAMY H P CHATURVEDI
MEMBER (Technical) MEMBER (Judicial)
26.02.2021
ANKIT/SAM
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Annexure K

INFORMATION DOCUMENT OF ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED IN TERMS OF SEBI CIRCULAR NO. CFD/DIL3/
CIR/2017/21 DATED MARCH 10, 2017 IN RELATION TO THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN ARSHIYA LIMITED (HERE
IN AFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “DEMERGED COMPANY” OR “AL”) AND ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (HEREIN
AFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “RESULTING COMPANY” OR “ARIL” OR “COMPANY”) AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS
AND CREDITORS (“SCHEME”)

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U93000MH2008PLC180907
Reg Off: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018
T:+91 22 42305500/02 F: +91 22 4230 5555

E-mail: info@arshiyalimited.com /Website: www.arshiyalimited.com

PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY
ARSHIYA LIMITED (Refer PartI of this Document i.e Promoters of the Company)
SCHEME DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE

The Board of Directors of the Company is proposing the Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (here in after referred to
as the “Demerged Company” or “AL”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (here in after referred to as the “Resulting Company”
or “ARIL” or “Company”) and their Respective Shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”) under sections 230 to 232 read with Section
66 And Section 52 and other applicable Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. On the Scheme becoming effective the shareholders
of AL would be allotted equity shares in the Company and would become shareholders of the Company as on the determined record
date. The shares of AL are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”), National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). The equity shares so issued
pursuant to the Scheme to the shareholders of AL would be listed on stock exchanges in terms of Rule 19 of the Securities Contract
(Regulation) Rules, 1957. Therefore this Information Document be read accordingly. The shareholders of ARIL may also download
from the website of AL this Information Document, the Scheme as approved by the Board of Directors of AL and ARIL, the valuation
report dated May 24, 2018 issued by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the fairness opinion dated May 24, 2018 issued by
Chartered Capital and Investment Limited and other relevant documents related to the Scheme.

Post sanction of the Scheme, the equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed on BSE and NSE. For the purposes of this
listing, the Designated Stock Exchange is BSE.

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

There being no initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended (‘ICDR
Regulations’) does not become applicable.

However, SEBI vide its Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 stated that the listed entity shall include the
applicable information pertaining to unlisted entities involved in the scheme in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as
provided in Part E of Schedule VI of Securities Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018, as amended, and the same has to be annexed with the Notice or explanatory statement or proposal accompanying resolution to
be sent to and passed by the shareholders while seeking approval of the scheme.

Accordingly in compliance with Regulation 37 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 read with
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 the Company has submitted the relevant information, as and where
applicable to an Unlisted Company, in line with the format for Abridged Prospectus specified in Part E of Schedule VI of Securities
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended.

GENERAL RISKS
Investment in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds unless they can

afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Specific attention of the shareholders is invited to the section titled “Internal
Risk Factors” on page 8 of this Information Document.
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PRICE INFORMATION OF MERCHANT BANKER

Not Applicable (Since there is no invitation to Public for Subscription by way of this Document)

COMPANY’S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILTY

The Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Information Document contains
all information with regard to the Company, which is material, that the information contained in this Information Document is true
and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein
are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which makes this Information Document as a whole or any of such
information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect.

MERCHANT BANKER

STATUTORY AUDITORS

COMPANY SECRETARY

Chartered Capital and Investment Limited

Address :418-C, “215 ATRIUM”, Andheri
Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400
093

Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Address: 714-715, Tulsiani
Chambers, 212, Nariman Point,
Mumbai-400021

Ms. Avani Lakhani

Address: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv
Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant
Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Sr. | Particulars Page No.
No.
1. | Promoters of the Company 4
2. | Business Model/Business Overview and Strategy 4
3. | Board of Directors of the Company 5
4. | Objects of the Scheme 6
5. | Audited Financial Statements 8
6. | Internal Risk Factors 8
7. | Summary of Outstanding Litigations, Claims and Regulatory Action 9
8. | Other Regulatory And Statutory Disclosures 10
9. |[Declaration 11

I.  PROMOTER OF THE COMPANY

ARSHIYA LIMITED

Name of the Company

Arshiya Limited

Date of Incorporation

July 03,1981

CIN

L93000MH1981PLC024747

Registered Office

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,

Mumbai - 400018

Nature of Business

The Company is engaged in the business of developing, operating and maintaining
special economic zones (SEZs)/free trade and warehouse zones (FTWZs), inland
container depots (ICDs), industrial parks, logistic parks, warehouses, infrastructure or

infrastructure projects.

Names of Stock Exchanges where|:
Equity Shares of the Company are
Listed

» BSE Limited
» National Stock Exchange of India Limited

II. BUSINESS MODEL / BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

Business Overview

. Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited is a Public Limited Company originally incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 on April 07, 2008 as Public Company Limited by Shares. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Arshiya
Limited. The registered office of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited is located at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv

Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Ro

ad, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra.
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III.

The main objects of the Company as set out in its Memorandum of Association inter alia include:

1.

To carry on the business of setting up of Rail Infrastructure/Network within India and abroad including operations/
movement of Container/Goods Trains using Indian Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain on lease/
licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or Obtain on lease/licence basis
Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

To carry on the business predominantly in the Northern Region of India, of container freight stations which, inter-alia
includes setting up of bonded warehousing infrastructure and services, facilities for customs examination, EDI, empty
container yard for storage of shipping containers, repairs and refurbishment of containers, truck, cargo and material
handling equipments, transportation, non-bonded warehousing, IT & ITES infrastructure and services, warehousing,
cold storage and other cargo related activities.

To carry on the business of Transport & Handling of Containers/ Goods/ Network within India and abroad including
operations/movement of Container/Cargo/Goods Trains using India Railway Network and also to acquire, procure,
obtain on lease/licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or obtain on lease/
licence basis Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

The Company is engaged in the business of setting up of Rail Infrastructure/Network within India and abroad including
operations/movement of Container/Goods Trains using Indian Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain on
lease/licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or Obtain on lease/licence basis
Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

Business Strategy

Sharpening focus on railway business combined with Inland Container Depot (ICD) and Domestic Warehousing Business to
provide excellent logistic facility. The company’s ICD at Khurja is co-located with a state-of-the-art Rail Terminal. ICD-Khurja is
the only private ICD in the country to have exclusive connectivity with 6-lane private rail siding offering regular and prompt rail
connectivity through owned rakes to all the major gateway ports that service the northern region of India. ICD Khurja is located
strategically with multiple road approaches from the major 4/6 lane highways providing a congestion-free movement of cargo
and containers.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Sr.
No.

Name of the Director Designation Experience including current/past position held in

(Independent / Whole other firms
time / Executive /
Nominee)

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal Mittal Director Mr. Mittal is the key driving force behind Arshiya’s growth

as an integrated supply chain management and logistics
infrastructure solutions company. With over three decades of
experience, Mr. Mittal has successfully scaled Arshiya Limited
by developing Free Trade Warehousing Zones (FTWZs),
Rail & Rail Infrastructure, Industrial & Domestic Hub, and
Transport & Handling to its unified business portfolio.

Mr. Navnit Jugal Kishore Director Mr. Navnit Choudhary, a Chartered Accountant, looks after
Choudhary the Commercial and Taxation aspects of the company. He

is associated with the Arshiya group since last 10 years.
During his 20 years of career, he was associated with many
organisations like KK Birla group. RPG Group, Future Group.

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Independent Director  [Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra has extensive experience in

handling internal audits, statutory audits, management
audits, tax advisory and business advisory assignments.
He is a Partner of M. L. Bhuwania & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants, which is an independent member of Geneva
Group International (GGI).

Mr. Rishabh Pankaj Shah Independent Director  |Mr. Rishabh Shah is a practicing legal counsel and a legal

consultant who advises on several areas of Civil Law. He has
over 20 years of experience representing major corporations
as legal counsel.
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IV. OBJECTS OF THE SCHEME

(A) General Objects of the Scheme

The Board of Directors of the Company is proposing the Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (here in after
referred to as the “Demerged Company” or “AL”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (here in after referred to as
the “Resulting Company” or “ARIL” or “Company”) and their Respective Shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”) under
sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 And Section 52 and other applicable Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The proposed demerger of the Domestic Business Undertaking of Arshiya Limited into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
as envisaged in the Scheme would be:

To integrate / consolidate its DWA, RAIL, PFT & ICD business into ARIL, which would enable Arshiya to focus solely on
FTWZ Business ;

To provide more flexibility in terms of creating business synergies in the Resulting Company i.e. ARIL, enable cost
savings, rationalizing capital requirements and optimizing utilization of valuable resources which will enhance
management focus on the different businesses being housed under separate entities, thereby leading to higher
operational efficiency;

To enhance value for the shareholders and allow focused strategy on expansion/ operation of both the FTWZ and the
Domestic Business independently;

To achieve and fulfill their objectives more efficiently and economically and the same is also in the interest of all the
stakeholders.

On the Scheme becoming effective the shareholders of AL would be allotted equity shares in the Company and would
become shareholders of the Company as on the determined record date. The shares of AL are listed on BSE Limited
(“BSE”), National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). The equity shares so issued pursuant to the Scheme to the
shareholders of AL would be listed on stock exchanges in terms of Rule 19 of the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules,
1957. Post sanction of the Scheme, the equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed on BSE and NSE.

(B) Means of financing: Not Applicable

(C) Schedule of Deployment of Issue Proceeds: Not Applicable

(D) Name of Monitoring Agency: Not Applicable

(E) Terms of Issuance of convertible security: Not Applicable

(F) Shareholding Pattern as on December 10,2019

Sr. | Particulars Pre - Issue % Holding of Pre
no. Number of equity Issue
shares
1. |Promoter & Promoter Group* 4,23,84,417 100.00
2. | Public 0 0.00
Total 4,23,84,417 100.00

*Note: Promoter and Promoter Group Shareholding include shares being held jointly or through nominee.

(G) Number/amount of equity shares proposed to be sold by Selling Shareholders, if any - Not Applicable
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V. AUDITED FINANCIALS STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS F.Y2018-19* F.Y2017-18* F.Y2016-17* F.Y2015-16 F.Y2014-15
Total income from operations (net) 13,614.83 13,598.32 15,539.26 19,758.55 23,823.90
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and (4,159.12) (10,745.75) (8,275.22) (6,819.48) (10,328.81)
extraordinary items

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax and (4,159.12) (10,745.75) (9,233.34) (8,330.30) (10,409.61)
extraordinary items

Equity Share Capital 4,238.44 4,238.44 4,238.44 4,088.92 4,088.92
Reserves and Surplus / Other Equity (18,197.13) (14,073.62) (3,330.44) (9,573.12) (1,066.62)
Net worth (13,958.69) (9,835.18) 908.00 (5484.20) 3,022.29
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (9.81) (25.35) (22.58) (20.37) (25.46)
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (9.81) (25.35) (22.58) (20.37) (25.46)
Return on net worth (%) (29.80) (109.26) (1016.89) (151.90) (344.43)
Net asset value per share (Rs.) (32.93) (23.20) 2.14 (13.41) 7.39

*Figures are based on the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Ind AS as prescribed u/s 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013.

VI. INTERNAL RISKFACTORS

The below mentioned risks are the top 6 risk factors:

The Resulting Company is party to certain litigations which if determined against it could adversely affects its financial

The Resulting Company is required to obtain certain approvals, licenses and permits in the ordinary course of business and
is required to comply with certain rules and regulations to operate the business and failure to obtain any such approvals,
licenses and permits or to comply with the rules and regulations in a timely manner may adversely affect the operations.

The success of the Resulting Company is largely dependent upon the knowledge and experience of its Promoters and Key
Management Personnel. Any loss of Key Management Personnel could adversely affect the business, operation and financial

The Resulting Company is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations which may impact its cash flow and

If the Resulting Company is unable to identify expansion opportunities or if the Resulting Company experiences delays
or other problems in implementing such projects, the Company’s growth, financial condition, cash flows and results of

" position and business operation.
2.
3.

conditions of the Resulting Company.
4.

operating and financial results.
5.

operations may be adversely affected.
6.

The Resulting Company has certain contingent liabilities which if materializes may adversely affect the financial position of
the Resulting Company.

VII. SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTION

A.

Total number of outstanding litigations against the Company and amount involved

ARILisinvolved in 3 litigations against them. Total Amount involved in all the litigations, wherever quantifiable is Rs. 204.10
Crores.
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B. BriefDetails of top 5 material outstanding litigation against the Company and amount involved

Sr.
No

Particulars

Litigation Filed
by

Current Status

Amount Involved
(Rs.In Crores)

The next date of the

81.24

1. | Defaultin Repayment of loans Corporation Bank
matter is scheduled dated
19.12.2019 in National
Company Law Tribunal,

Mumbai.

Kalindee Rail
Nirman

The next date of the 5.86
matter is scheduled dated
18.12.2019 in National
Company Law Tribunal,

Mumbai.

The next date of the
matter is scheduled
dated 13.01.2020 in Debt
Recovery Tribunal, Delhi.

2. |Non-Payment of service charges and
Dishonour of Cheques for the services availed
by the Company.

3. | Defaultin Repayment of loans Bank of India 117

Regulatory Action, if any - disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters / Group
companies in last 5 financial years including outstanding action, if any

Nil
Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters

Nil

VIII. OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

Authority for the Scheme:

The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 24, 2018. The samg
is subject to the approval from the SEBI, Shareholders, Stock Exchanges, National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Branch
Regional Director, Registrar of Companies, Official Liquidator and such other regulatory authorities, as may be applicable.

Expert opinion obtained, if any:

Valuation Reportand Fairness Opinion

Documents for Inspection:

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company

Audited Financial Statement for the last five Financial Years

Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on December 10,2019

Draft Scheme of Amalgamation

Valuation Report issued by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Fairness Opinion on Valuation Report issued by Chartered Capital and Investment Limited, SEBI registered Category I
Merchant Banker, having SEBI Permanent Registration No. INM000004018

7.  Networth Certificate Pre and Post Scheme

O UE W

Time and Place of Inspection of Documents:

Copies of the above mentioned Documents may be inspected at the Registered Office of our Company situated at 302, Ceejay
House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 between 10.00 a.m. and 2.00 p.m
from Monday to Friday, except public holidays from the date of this Information Document until the Listing Approval.

202




IX. DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines/
regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, as the case may be, have been complied with
and no statement made in this disclosure document is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act,
2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, or rules made or guidelines or regulations issued there under, as the
case may be. We further certify that all statements in this disclosure document are true and correct.

For Arshiya Limited

Sd/-

Ajay Shankarlal Mittal
Managing Director
DIN: 00226355

Date : 26t February, 2021
Place : Mumbai
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ANNEXURE L

Following additional documents are required to be submitted for Demerger cases wherein a division of a listed company is
hived off into an unlisted company or where listed company is getting merged with an unlisted company:

1.

Clarification as to what will be listing status of the Resulting/Transferee Company/ies.

The New Equity Shares to be issued in terms of Scheme of Arrangement shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited where the equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed.

Also Attached as an Annexure - XIII-A

Details of Assets and Liabilities of the Demerged division that are being transferred.
(In Crores)

Demerged division FY 2017-18
Assets:
a. Land 74.99
b. Trade Receivable: 00.24
Sundry Debtors
Total Assets 75.23
Liabilities:
a. GST Liabilities 00.04
b. Inter Division Loans 74.99
c. Profit & Loss retained earnings 00.20
Total Liabilities 75.23

Also Attached as an Annexure - XIII-B
Confirmation from the Managing Director/ Company Secretary, that:

a) There will be no change in Share Capital of the resulting/transferee company till the listing of the equity shares of the
company on BSE Limited.

b) The shares allotted by the resulting company pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system till
listing/trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.

Attached as an Annexure - XIII-C

Confirmation by the Managing Director/ Company Secretary of the resulting/transferee company on the letter head of resulting
company that:

a) Equity shares issued by the company pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation/ arrangement shall be listed on the BSE
Limited, subject to SEBI granting relaxation from applicability under Rule 19(2) (b) of the Securities Contract (Regulation)
Rules, 1957.

b) The company shall comply with all the provisions contained in SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10,
2017.

c) The company shall also fulfill the Exchange’s criteria for listing and shall also comply with Rules, Byelaws, and Regulations
of the Exchange and other applicable statutory requirements.

Attached as an Annexure - XIII-D
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5. Percentage of Net Worth of the company, that is being transferred in the form of demerged undertaking and percentage wise
contribution of the Demerged division to the total turnover and income of the company in the last two years as per the following
format:

(Rs. in crores)
Particulars Financial Net worth % to total Turnover % to total Profit after % to total
Year Tax

Demerged 2017-18 75.19 6.41% 0.20 0.23% 0.20 0.38%
division 2016-17 - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
FTWZ 2017-18 1,097.71 93.59% 85.22 99.77% 51.79 99.62%
divisions 2016-17 (102.50) 100.00% 75.81 100.00% (105.35) 100.00%
Total 2017-18 1,172.91 100.00% 85.42 100.00% 51.99 100.00%

2016-17 (102.50) 100.00% 75.81 100.00% (105.35) 100.00%

FOR ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Navnit Choudhary

Director
DIN: 00613576

Date: 4" February, 2019
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Pre De-merger Shareholding Pattern of Resulting Company
(Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited)

Annexure M

Sr. | Name of the Shareholders Address Number of % of Amount per
No. Shares Holding share
(InRs.)
1 | Arshiya Limited 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 4,23,83,817 100.00 10
Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worlj,
Mumbai- 400 018
2 | Mr. Ajay S Mittal Mittal Bhavan, 62-A ,Pedder Road, 100 - 10
(Nominee of Arshiya Limited) Mumbai-400 026
3 | Mrs. Archana A Mittal Mittal Bhavan, 62-A ,Pedder Road, 100 - 10
(Nominee of Arshiya Limited) Mumbai-400 026
4 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mr. Navnit [ 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Choudhary Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018
5 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mr. Navin | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Saraf Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worlj,
Mumbai- 400 018
6 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mrs. Joyce | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Collaco Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worlj,
Mumbai- 400 018
7 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mrs. Mini | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Suresh Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018
Total 4,23,84,417 100.00

For ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN: 00613576
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Post De-merger Shareholding Pattern of Resulting Company
(Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited)
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Table [ SUMMARY STATEMENT HOLDING OF SPECIFIED SECURITIES
Categ | Category No.s of No. of No.sof | No. of Total nos. Share Number of Votting Rights No. of Share Number of Number of Number of
ory |of Share fully Partly | shares shares holding held in each class of Shares holding, Locked in Shares equity
m share holders paid up paid- unde held asa % of securities Under asa% shares pledged or shares
holder (I equity up rlying (vin= total (IX) lying assuming (x1) otherwise held
(Im Share equity Depo (IV)+(V) no. of No of Voting Total | Outstating full encumbered in
held Share sitory +(VI) shares Rights asa conver conversion (X1I1) dema
(v) held | Receipts (calculated Class Class Total % of tible of No. Asa% No. Asa% | terialized
m (vn as per Equity Others (A+ securities | convertible (@) of (@) of form
SCRR, X y B+(C) (including | securities( total total (X1v)
1957) Warrants) asa% shares shares
(v X) of diluted held held
As a % of share (b) (b)
(A+B+C2) capital)
(XD=
(VID+(X)
As a % of
(A+B+C2)
(A) Promoter & 2 63458113 0 0 63458113 51.58 63458113 0 63458113 51.58 0.00 51.58| 10000000 15.76| 63458113| 100.00 63458113
Promoter
Group
(B) | Public 9590 59564220 0 0 59564220 48.42 59564220 0 59564220 48.42 0.00 48.42 1218187 2.05 NA NA 59389483
(C) [ Non 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 NA NA
Promoter-
Non Public
(C1) | Shares 0 0 0 0 0 NA 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 NA NA
underlying
DRs
(C2) | Shares 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 NA NA 0
held by
Employee
Trusts
Total 9592 | 123022333 0 0| 123022333 100| 123022333 0| 123022333 | 100.00 0.00 100.00| 11218187 9.12| 63458113 51.58| 122847595
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Table Il - STATEMENT SHOWING SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP

Category & PAN No of No of Partly No. of Total nos. Share Number of Voting Rights No. of Shareholding, Number of Number of Number of
Name of the (Im Share fully paid-up | shares shares holding held in each class of Shares as a % assuming Locked in Shares equity
shareholders holders paid up equity under held % securities Underlying | full conversion shares pledged or shares held
(U] (1) equity Share lying (vin= calculated (IX) Outstating | of convertible (X1) otherwise in
Shares held Depo (vy+ (V)+ as per No of Voting Total convertible | securities(as encumbered dema
held (W] sitory vn SCRR,1957 Rights asa securities a% (XII) terialized
(v) Receipts As a % of % of (including | ofdiluted share No. Asa No. | Asa % of form
Q) (A+B+(2) ECl:iSS octl:::s Total | a+Bscy | Warrants) capital) @ %of | (@ | total (X1v)
(Vi) qX ty x) (XD)=(VID)+(X) total shares
v Asa % of shares held
(A+B+C2) held ®)
(b)
1 Indian
@) Individuals/Hindu undivided Family
ARCHANA AAGPM6545C 1 44279894 0 0 44279894 35.99 | 44279894 0 44279894 | 35.9934 0 35.9934 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 44279894
MITTAL
AJAY AAGPM6550R 1 19178219 0 0 19178219 15.59| 19178219 0 19178219 15.5892 0 15.5892| 11218187 0.0000 0 0.0000 19178219
SHANKARLAL
MITTAL
Total 2 63458113 0 0 63458113 51.58 | 63458113 0| 63458113 | 51.5826 0 51.5826 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 63458113
(b) | Central Government/State Government(s)
0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0.0000
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
(c) | Financial Institutions/Banks
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Sub-Total (A)(1) 2 63458113 0 0 63458113 51.58 | 63458113 0| 63458113 | 51.5826 0 51.5826 0| 0.0000 0| 100.0000 63458113
2 Foreign
(a) | Individuals(Non-Resident Individuals/Foreign Individuals)
0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
(b) | Government
0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0.0000
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
(c) | Institutions
0 0 0.00 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0.0000
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
(d) | Foreign Portfolio Investor
0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Sub-Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Total 2 63458113 0 0 63458113 51.58 | 63458113 0| 63458113 | 51.5826 0 51.5826 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 63458113
Shareholding
of Promoter
and Promoter
Group (A) = (A)
1)+(A)(2)
Details of Shares which remain unclaimed may be given hear along with details such as ber of shareholders, outstanding shares held in demat/unclaimed suspense account, voting rights which are frozen etc.

Note:

(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s).
(2) The term “Encumbrance” has the same meaning as assigned under regulation 28(3) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.”
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Table III - STATEMENT SHOWING SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE PUBLIC SHAREHOLDER

Category & Name PAN No.s of No. of Partly No.sof | Total nos. Share Number of Voting Rights No. of Total Number of Number of Number of
of the (I Share fully paid-up | shares shares holding held in each class of Shares Share holding, Locked in shares Shares equity
shareholders holders | paid up equity | underl held % securities Underlying asa% (X1 pledged or shares held
(U] () equity Share ying (vin= calculated (IX) Outstating assuming otherwise in
Share held Depos | (IV)+ (V)+ as per No of Voting Total convertible | full conversion encumbered demat
held (4%] itory vn SCRR,1957) Rights asa securities | of convertible (XII1) erialized
vy Receipts As a % of % of (including securities ( form
vn (A+B+C2) Class Class Total Total Warrants) asa No. As a % of No. Asa (XIV)
(viy” Equity | Others Voting X) percentage (@) total | (Notappli | % of
X y Rights of diluted shares cable) total
share held (@) shares
capital) (b) held
(XD)=(VID)+(X) (b)
As a % of
(A+B+C2)
1 Institutions
(a) | Mutual Funds 1 12500 0 0 12500 0.01 12500 0 12500 0.01 0 0.01 0 0.00 NA NA 0
(b) | Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Funds
(c) | Alternate Investment 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Funds
(d) | Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Capital Investors
(e) Foreign Portfolio 1 661494 0 0 661494 0.54 661494 0 661494 0.54 0 0.54 0 0.00 NA NA 661494
Investors
(6] Financial Institution/ 2 1822500 0 0 1822500 1.48 1822500 0 1822500 1.48 0 1.48 0 0.00 NA NA 1822500
Banks
IDFC BANK LIMITED | AADCI6523Q 1 1387500 0 0 1387500 1.13 1387500 0 1387500 1.13 0 1.13 0 0.00 NA NA 1387500
(g) Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Companies
(h) | Provident Funds/ 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Pension Funds
SUB TOTAL (B)(1) 4 2496494 0 0 2496494 2.03 | 2496494 0| 2496494 2.03 0 2.03 0 0.00 NA NA 2496494
2 Central / State
government(s)
(a) | Central 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Government/ State
Government(s)/
President of India
SUBTOTAL (B)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
3 Non-institutions
(a.1) | Individuals - i. 9174 5242285 0 0 5242285 4.26 5242285 0 5242285 4.26 0 4.26 73313 0.06 NA NA | 5242284.50
Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital up to Rs. 2
lakhs.
(a.2) | INDIVIDUAL 46 9095704 0 0 9095704 7.39 9095704 0 9095704 7.39 0 7.39 | 1144874 0.93 NA NA 9095704
- ii. Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital in excess of
Rs. 2 lakhs.
NAISHADH AAAPP9781B 1 1488135 0 0 1488135 1.21 1488135 0 1488135 1.21 0 1.21 0 0.00 NA NA 1488135
JAWAHAR PALEJA
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Category & Name PAN No.s of No. of Partly | No.sof | Totalnos. Share Number of Voting Rights No. of Total Number of Number of Number of
of the (m Share fully paid-up | shares shares holding held in each class of Shares Share holding, Locked in shares Shares equity
shareholders holders | paid up equity | underl held % securities Underlying asa% (X11) pledged or shares held
(U] () equity Share ying (ViD= calculated (IX) Outstating assuming otherwise in
Share held Depos | (IV)+ (V)+ as per No of Voting Total convertible | full conversion encumbered demat
held (4%] itory vn SCRR,1957) Rights asa securities | of convertible (X111) erialized
vy Receipts As a % of % of (including securities ( form
vn (A+B+C2) Class | Class | Total Total | Warrants) asa No. | Asa%of | No. Asa (x1v)
vi)” Equity | Others Voting X) percentage (@) total | (Notappli | % of
X y Rights of diluted shares cable) total
share held (@) shares
capital) (b) held
(XD)=(VID)+(X) (b)
As a % of
(A+B+C2)
(b) | NBFCs registered 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
with RBI
(c) Employee Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
(d) | Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 2.03 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Depositories
(holding DRs)
(balancing figure)
(e) | Any Other(BODIES 164 40017275 0 0| 40017275 32.53 | 40017275 0| 40017275 32.53 0 32.53 0 0.00 NA NA 40017275
CORPORATE)
ECAP EQUITIES AABCE8997N 1 4867500 0 0 4867500 3.96 4867500 0 4867500 3.96 0 3.96 0 0.00 NA NA 4867500
LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE7452N 1 3914215 0 0 3914215 3.18 3914215 0 3914215 3.18 0 3.18 0 0.00 NA NA 3914215
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6688G 1 1250476 0 0 1250476 1.02 1250476 0 1250476 1.02 0 1.02 0 0.00 NA NA 1250476
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6841P 1 2008954 0 0 2008954 1.63 2008954 0 2008954 1.63 0 1.63 0 0.00 NA NA 2008954
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6490L 1 2079638 0 0 2079638 1.69 2079638 0 2079638 1.69 0 1.69 0 0.00 NA NA 2079638
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE7680C 1 4967701 0 0 4967701 4.04 4967701 0 4967701 4.04 0 4.04 0 0.00 NA NA 4967701
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6570B 1 2188095 0 0 2188095 1.78 2188095 0 2188095 1.78 0 1.78 0 0.00 NA NA 2188095
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6849F 1 1717160 0 0 1717160 1.40 1717160 0 1717160 1.40 0 1.40 0 0.00 NA NA 1717160
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6341A 1 1676195 0 0 1676195 1.36 1676195 0 1676195 1.36 0 1.36 0 0.00 NA NA 1676195
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET AAATE7922P 1 6429215 0 0 6429215 523 6429215 0 6429215 5.23 0 5.23 0 0.00 NA NA 6429215
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LTD
(e) Any 47 711476 0 0 711476 0.58 711476 0 711476 0.58 0 0.58 0 0.00 NA NA 711476
Other(CLEARING
MEMBER)
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Category & me PAN No.s of No. ¢ Partly | No.sof | Totalnos. Share Number of Voting Rights No. of Total Number of Number of Number of
of the (Im Share full| paid-up | shares shares holding held in each class of Shares Share holding, Locked in shares Shares equity
shareholders holders | paid | equity | underl held % securities Underlying asa% (X11) pledged or shares held
m (I equity Share ying (ViD= calculated (Ix) Outstating assuming otherwise in
Share held Depos | (IV)+ (V)+ as per No of Voting Total convertible | full conversion encumbered demat
held (4%] itory vn SCRR,1957) Rights asa securities | of convertible (X111) erialized
vy Receipts As a % of % of (including securities ( form
vn (A+B+C2) Class | Class | Total Total | Warrants) asa No. | Asa%of | No. Asa (x1v)
vi)” Equity | Others Voting X) percentage (@) total | (Notappli | % of
X y Rights of diluted shares cable) total
share held (@) shares
capital) (b) held
(XD=(VI)+(X) (b)
As a % of
(A+B+C2)
(e) | Any 2 3000 0 0 3000 0.00 3000 0 3000 0.00 0 523 0 0.00 NA NA 3000
Other(DIRECTORS
RELATIVES)
(e) | Any 8 8776 0 0 8776 0.01 8776 0 8776 0.01 0 0.01 0 0.00 NA NA 8776
Other(EMPLOYEE)
(e) | Any Other(FOREIGN 4 150000 0 0 150000 0.12 150000 0 150000 0.12 0 0.12 0 0.00 NA NA 25000
NATIONALS)
(e) | Any Other(NON 41 327957 0 0 327957 0.27 327957 0 327957 0.27 0 0.27 0 0.00 NA NA 327957
RESIDENT INDIANS
(NON REPAT))
(e) | Any Other(NON 97 377694 0 0 377694 0.31 377694 0 377694 0.31 0 5.23 0 0.00 NA NA 327957
RESIDENT INDIANS
(REPAT))
(e) | Any 3 1133560 0 0 1133560 0.92 1133560 0 1133560 0.92 0 5.23 0 0.00 NA NA 1133560
Other(OVERSEAS
BODIES
CORPORATES)
SUBTOTAL (B)(3) 9586 57067726 0 0| 57067726 46.39 | 57067726 057067726 46.39 0 46.39 | 1218187 0.99 NA NA 56892989
Total Public 9590 59564220 0 0| 59564220 48.42 | 59564220 0 | 59564220 48.42 0 48.42 | 1218187 0.99 NA NA 59389483
Shareholding (B) =
(B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)
(3)

Details of the shareholders acting as persons in Concert including their Shareholding (No. and %): 0

“Details of Shares which remain unclaimed may be given hear along with details such as number of shareholders, outstanding shares held in demat/unclaimed suspense account, voting rights which are frozen etc.

Note:

(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s).

(2) The above format needs to be disclosed along with the name of following persons:

Institutions/Non Institutions holding more than 1% of total number of shares.”
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Table 1A% - STATEMENT SHOWING SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE NON PROMOTER - NON

Category 4 PAN | No. oKo. oPfartly | No.s oTfotal no. Share Number of Votting Rights No. of Total Number of Number of Number of
Name of | (dh)e| Share fy lypaid- | shares | shares holding held in each class of Shares Shareholding, Locked in Shares equity
shareholders holders | paid up under held % securities Underlying asa% shares pledged or shares
m (1) up equity | lying (vin= calculated (IX) Outstating assuming (X1ID) otherwise held
equity [ Share | Deposi (v)+ as per No of Voting Total | convertible | full conversion encumbered in
Share | held tory W)+ SCRR,1957) Rights asa securities | of convertible (XI11) dema
held (V) | Receipts (v Asa % of o of | (including | securities( as | No. | Asa % No. Asa % of | terialized
() (v (A+B+C2) (A+B | Warrants) a% @) of (Not total form
(v +C) (X) of diluted share total | applicable) | sharesheld | (XIV)
Class | Class | Total capital) shares (@) (Not
Equity | Others (XN)=(VI)+(X) held applicable)
X y As a % of (b) (b)
(A+B+C2)
1 [ Custodian/DR
Holder
1 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 | 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 | NA NA
“Total Non 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 | 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 | NA NA
Promoter-
Non Public
Shareholding
@)=
W+HO@)"
“Note
(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s).
(2) The above format needs to disclose bame of all holders holding more than 1% of total number of shares.

(3) W.r.t. the information pertaining to Depository Receipts, the same may be disclosed in the respective columns to the extent information available.”

Table V- STATEMENT SHOWING DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT BENEFICIAL OWNERS

Sr.No Details of the significant beneficial owner Details of the registered owner Details of holding/ exercise of right of the SBO in the reporting company, Date of creation /
m (Im whether direct or indirect *: acquisition of significant
(1) beneficial interest*
Whether by virtue of: av)
Name PAN/ Nationality Name PAN/ Nationality Shares % Voting Rights on Exercise of Exercise of

Passport Passport rights % distributable control significant

No. in case No. in case dividend or influence

of a foreign of aforeign any other
national national distribution







ARSHIYA LIMITED -

CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747
Registered Office: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-400018

FORM NO. MGT-11 (PROXY FORM)
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Meeting of all the Secured Creditors (including Debenture Holders) of Arshiya Limited (“the Company”)

(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 26th Day Of February, 2021 Passed By The Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)

Time & Date: 11:00 a.m.(1100 Hrs), Saturday, 20th March, 2021

Venue: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-400018

Name of the Secured Creditor (s):

Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

1/We, being the Secured Creditor (s) for Rs of the above-named company, hereby appoint

1 = o' (PP
12300 F= 11 18 OSSOSO SRR STPPT
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Signature: , Or failing him/her
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PN Lo =TT OO

Signature: Or failing him/her
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote, in case of a poll, for me/us and on my/our behalf at the said Meeting of the Company, to be held on
Saturday, the 20th March, 2021 at 11.00 a.m. (1100 Hrs) at Hall of Culture (Nehru Centre), Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400
018 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of resolutions are indicated below:

Item | Resolutions Outstanding I assent to the I dissent from the
No. Amount owed resolution resolution
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

1 Approval of Composite Scheme of Arrangement Between
Arshiya Limited And Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
And Their Respective Shareholders And Creditors.

**This is only optional Please put a Vin the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. Alternatively you may
mention the Outstanding amount owed to you in the appropriate column in respect of which you would like your proxy to vote, if
you leave all the columns blank against any or all the resolutions your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks

appropriate.

Signed this day of

Signature of Secured Creditor:

Signature of Proxy holder(s):

Notes:

2021

Affix
Revenue
Stamp
Rs.1/-

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the said meeting

A proxy need not be a Secured Creditor of the company.

2) In case the appointer is a body corporate the proxy form should be signed under its seal or be signed by an office or an attorney
duly authorized by it and an authenticated copy of such authorization should be attached to the proxy form.
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ARSHIYA LIMITED

CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747

Reg. Off: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
T:+91 22 42305500/02 F: +91 22 4230 5555
E-mail: info@arshiyalimited.com [ Website: www.arshiyalimited.com

Attendance Slip for Meeting of all the Secured Creditors (including Debenture holders) of Arshiya Limited (“the Company”).

(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 26th Day Of February, 2021 Passed By The Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)

I, a Secured Creditor/ proxy / authorised representative for a such Creditor of the Company, hereby record my presence at the said
Meeting of the Company on Saturday, the 20th March, 2021 at 11:00 a.m.(1100 Hrs) at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar

Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra.

Name and Address of the Secured Creditor

If Proxy, please mention name and sign here
Name of Proxy Signature

If Secured Creditor(s) please sign here

Notes:

(1) Secured Creditors / Proxy holders as the case may be are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed at the Meeting

entrance.

(2) Said creditors holding slip in physical form, are requested to advise change in their address, if any, to the Registered address of

the Company as mentioned above.
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Meeting of all the Secured (including Debenture holders) /Unsecured Creditors of Arshiya Limited (“the Company”)
(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 26th Day Of February, 2021 Passed By The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench)

Time & Date for Secured Creditors: 11:00 a.m (1100 Hrs)., Tuesday, 14th January, 2020

Venue: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018.

BALLOT PAPER
[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1) (c) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Company: Arshiya Limited
Registered office: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worlj,
Mumbai- 400 018

S 1 .| Particulars Details
No.
1. Name of the Secured/unsecured Creditor
(In block letters)
2. Postal address
3. Class of Creditor Secured

in the following manner:

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Special resolutions enumerated below by recording my assent or dissent to the said resolution

Item | Resolutions Outstanding I assent to the I dissent from the
No. Amount owed resolution resolution
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

1 Approval of Composite Scheme of Arrangement Between

Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
and Their Respective Shareholders And Creditors.

Date:
Place:

(Signature of the Secured Creditor)
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